SkyOcean International Holdings Limited

= _. X ABEBERERA
% /‘¥ (Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(REFEEMR L 2 BRAR)
SkyOcean (stock Code B35 : 593)

2016
ANNUAL
REPORT

& I



18

23

25

44

67

79

85

87

89

92

94

CONTENTS
B &

Corporate Information

ATRER

Shareholders’ Reference

BRRSEZEHR

Chairman’s Statement

FRE®|E

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEBHRRDN

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EERERTHRAE—E

Investor Relations Report

REEBRERE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RiIE HEREARBRE

Corporate Governance Report

TEERBRE

Directors’ Report

ESgHRE

Independent Auditor’s Report

BB BE

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

and Other Comprehensive Income
EHEEREMRERER

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
E OB AR R &R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EHEZEER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHEERER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI RR M E



CORPORATE INFORMATION
NGIR=g

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Zhou Zheng
Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Lam Yu Yee, Benjamin (appointed on 18 January 2017)
Executive Director and Vice Chairman
Liu Li (resigned on 21 June 2016)
Executive Director
Yang Hongguang
Executive Director
Lin Guoxiong (appointed on 13 July 2016)
Executive Director
Zhu Ling (appointed on 21 June 2016 and
resigned on 18 January 2017)
Executive Director
Chan Tak Kwong
Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
Li Chak Hung
Independent Non-Executive Director
Meng Xiaosu
Independent Non-Executive Director
Yang Buting
Independent Non-Executive Director
Zhao Daxin
Independent Non-Executive Director

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Li Chak Hung Chairman
Meng Xiaosu

Yang Buting

Zhao Daxin

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Li Chak Hung Chairman
Yang Hongguang

Meng Xiaosu

Yang Buting

Zhao Daxin

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Zhou Zheng Chairman
Li Chak Hung

Meng Xiaosu

Yang Buting

Zhao Daxin

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
China Construction Bank Corporation

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

Hengfeng Bank

Bank of Beijing

China Merchants Bank

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X /¥ Bl ZAZ B R A 7]

BEEE
AR
HITEE  FEHRTHAAE
MR T (FR20179F1 B 18 EZ1(T)
HITEEFREFE
2177 (201656 A21HEHT)
HiTEE
BEX
HiTEE
MEIRE (720165F7 138 EET)
HiTEE
KE (R20165F6 A21 HER(T
I 201741 A18H BHT)
HiTEE
PR1EN
HITEEREGEYIFE
=2
BUIHTTEE
T AR
BUIHTTEE
BE=
BUIHTTEE
AT
BUIHTTEE

EREEE
M T
& B
1855
B

el E o
TRIE
BEN
0 if
BT

HAH

REZEY
AE
TR

7 WA

B

PN

FEFRET

i HBELETERAT
B R RTR O BRAF
b B T 79 4R 1T

fB 4R T

JEFERT

R iRAT



REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Unit 1101-12, 11/F, Sun Hung Kai Centre
30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN BERMUDA

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

COMPANY SECRETARY
Sze Wing Kin, Pierre

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Sze Wing Kin, Pierre
Zhou Zheng

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

SOLICITORS

PC. Woo & Co.
Conyers Dill & Pearman

STOCK CODE
593

INVESTOR RELATIONS DEPARTMENT OF THE
COMPANY

Tel: (852) 3628 2352

Fax: (852) 3628 2335
E-mail:  investor.inquiry@skyocean.com
COMPANY WEBSITE

www.skyocean.com

CORPORATE INFORMATION
NAEH

AMRERE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

BMEEN T ELS LN
EE G B EE305%
FRESAOLIEN02E

BRERODBFERAR

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

EEROBFERTE

BEEEEGRA A
B
SFARER183HR
AR 0221E
NEWE

iR N

REARRE
ik e

B

B SH

1) « IR IR AT
S H

&b

RS RS

Conyers Dill & Pearman

R 424X 5%

593
REREEBHERS

£ ¢ (852) 3628 2352
fBE : (852) 36282335
FH ¢ investorinquiry@skyocean.com

NGNS

Www.skyocean.com

Annual Report 2016 F 3§



4

SHAREHOLDERS” REFERENCE
REREEEH

LISTING PLACE
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND MEDIA CONTACT

Strategic Financial Relations (China) Limited
Tel: (852) 2864 4874
Fax: (852) 2527 1271
Email: sprg-skyocean@sprg.com.hk
Address: 2401-2, Admiralty Centre |,

18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

FINANCIAL YEAR END

31 December

FINANCIAL CALENDER

Annual Results Announcement Date
29 March 2017

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
2 June 2017

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X /¥ Bl ZAZ B R A 7]

L it B
ERWERBHERD AR

REEBRRERBS

MEBHEABEER (TR AR A A
B 5E : (852) 2864 4874
{5H : (852) 2527 1271
B H : sprg-skyocean@sprg.com.hk
il BESEERE185%

BE L —H24012F

MBFELERS

12H31H

Bt 7% B &%
N AT AR H Ef
201743 A29H

BRRBFRKESHH
201796 A2H



CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT
FERE

Y



CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT
FTRHBSE

| am pleased to present the annual results of SkyOcean
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2016.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year under review, the Group recorded revenue
from continuing operations of approximately HK$12.8 million,
a 78.2% decrease compared to approximately HK$59.0
million in 2015. The decrease in revenue mainly resulted from
the decrease in sales of completed commercial units in the
Group's property project located in Qian’an, Hebei Province,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), namely the
“4th Generation SkyOcean City” urban complex project. The
Group recorded profit attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$45.5 million in 2016 as compared to
approximately HK$551.8 million in 2015. Such decrease mainly
resulted from the decrease in gain on fair value change
of investment properties for the Group in the PRC from
HK$1,019.6 million in 2015 to HK$511.5 million in 2016.

Basic earnings per share attributable to the owners of
the Company for 2016 amounted to HK$0.1743 (2015:
HK$2.3448).

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board” or the
“Directors”) has decided not to propose a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

APPRECIATION

| would like to express my greatest appreciation to the
entire staff of the Group for their hard work and efforts.
| would also like to extend my gratitude to the investors,
business partners, and shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) for their support and confidence in the
Group over the years. | am highly confident that the Group
will continue to grow and create significant value to the
consumers of our services, which shall generate significant
shareholder value. | look forward to sharing with you more
positive developments in years to come.

Zhou Zheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EXRE ARSI

BUSINESS REVIEW

The revenue of the Group declined significantly for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Year” or the “period
under review"”) was mainly attributable to the disposal of
the operations of elderly care services in Hong Kong, which
was completed in August 2016, and the decrease in sales
of completed commercial units of the “4th Generation
SkyOcean City” Urban Complex project. The disposal of the
operations of elderly care services was an important step of
the strategic adjustment of the Group and was in line with
the interests of the shareholders as a whole in the long run.
Under the Hang Seng Industry Classification System of Hang
Seng Indexes Company Limited, the industry classification
of the Group has changed from “Healthcare Services” to
“Property Development”, effective from September 2016. In
December 2016, the Group succeeded in the bid of the land
use rights of land situated in Wujiang District, Suzhou City,
Jiangsu Province and Jiashan County, Jiaxing City, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC, with a plan to develop property and
tourism resorts-related business.

The year 2016 was crucial to the long term strategic
adjustment of the Group. The disposal of original principal
business and development of new business might have
brought pressure on the operating results of the Group in the
short term, however, the management was of view that such
adjustment was necessary. We are confident that, as new
business achieves progress and matures, the comprehensive
strengths and profitability of the Group will be greatly
enhanced in the coming years.

During the period under review, excluding the elderly care
service which has been disposed of, the principal activities
of the Group included development and operation of property
and tourism resorts, and operation of innovation and start-ups
incubation platform.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROPERTY AND TOURISM RESORTS-RELATED BUSINESS

Beijing Fangshan “COMB+" Project (The “Fangshan
Project”)

The Fangshan Project is located between the Southwest
5th and 6th Ring Roads in Beijing, the PRC, within 2-minute
walking distance from Suzhuang Station on Fangshan Line
of the Beijing Subway. The Group acquired three land parcels
for the North, Central and South Zones of Phase 1 of the
project in July 2014. Phase 1 of the project occupies a total
site area of approximately 113,000 square metres, with a
gross floor area of approximately 430,000 square metres and
a planned saleable gross floor area of approximately 323,000
square metres. The project, as the first large-scaled integrated
community in the region, comprises 25 apartment buildings,
offices and high-end clubhouses, as well as a number of
shopping malls, walking streets, outdoor car parks and
leisure parks as auxiliary facilities. Owing to the high quality,
excellent design, well-established auxiliary facilities and
supreme service, the real estate projects of the Group enjoy a
sound reputation. For instance, the show flats and clubhouses
of this project were designed by renowned interior designer
firm in Hong Kong. As a result, the project garnered strong
support from the local government and continuous attention
of residents in the local and surrounding cities since its
inception.

The construction of the North Zone and Central Zone of Phase
1 of the Fangshan Project was expected to be completed in
2017, and the South Zone was to be completed in 2018. Given
the favorable market conditions and strong demand in the
region, several apartment buildings of the North Zone of the
Fangshan Project were highly sought after when they were
launched to the market in May 2016, September 2016 and
March 2017 As at 31 December 2016, the Group received
partial prepayment from pre-sale amounted to approximately
HK$507 million. The revenue will be recognised upon the
delivery of properties to purchasers in mid-2017.

The management will keep abreast of the market trend and
make timely adjustment to the marketing strategy, with the
aim of maximizing profitability and shareholders’ returns.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRRDN

“4th Generation SkyOcean City” Urban Complex Project
(The “Qian’an Project”)

The Qian‘an Project is located in Qian‘an City of Hebei
Province, the PRC. It will be developed into a multifunctional
urban complex for commercial, office, apartment, tourism,
cultural, dining, entertainment and shopping purposes, with a
shopping center, a commercial zone, offices, restaurants and
apartment units.

As at 31 December 2016, the Qian'an Project comprised ten
parcels of land with a total site area of approximately 225,000
square metres. Phase 1 of the Project comprised two parcels
of land with a total site area of approximately 106,000 square
metres, a planned gross floor area of 163,000 square metres
with six commercial buildings. Phase 2 and 3 of the Project
have a total site area of approximately 119,000 square metres
and a planned gross floor area of approximately 389,000
square metres.

The Group is optimistic about the long-term outlook of the
region. During the period under review, sales revenue and
rental income from the Qian'an Project amounted to HK$4.68
million and HK$4.13 million respectively, totalling HK$8.81
million.

Irvine Project in California, U.S.A.

In April 2016, the Group established a subsidiary in order to
develop the project located in Irvine, California, U.S.A.. The
Group invested US$22.5 million and owned 90% interests of
the subsidiary.

The project was a property development project located in
Irvine, California, U.S.A. with a planned gross floor area of
380,000 square feet, and would be used to construct 371
apartment units.

The Group has actively been seeking relevant investment
opportunities with growth potential to expand its business
portfolio, diversify its income source and possibly enhance
its financial performance. Given the location of the project
is close to the Silicon Valley where numerous established
technology companies, startup companies and incubators
are located, the project (i) represents a sound opportunity
to expand the Group's incubation-related business; (i) will
generate satisfactory return to the Group; and (iii) strengthen
its overseas portfolio.

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X /¥ Bl ZAZ B R A A

[RFFHAR I BT HEEEE ([BRE
=Hp)

BREE A EALEBET SRR
RBZBRETELE KL BOE-
DE RS X R IRE R R —
g WREDHO BEE BAE KR
ERON IR

R2016F12A31H BLIBEHMB TR
BRARRK - 48 T b E B 892258 F 5 oK - 1B
E—HmEmiELi 21+ 1mmiEL10.6
BYFK REBEEEEARI63BFTH
KoBEKeEEmEAE - BEE-_RE=
it EBEAONIEF K EElpae
SETEH38.98 F K-

AEEHZE REERFBLBEE [
FHA REBELRBEHMNHEEWRA B4.68
BEAET HeWABRLIBSEEETL A&
He81HEBTe

XEMAEEEHERE

R2016F4 R  AREEKZHEB AR AR
BEFMANGEESHEZER - AEEY
MEBARRE2AEETL WIHEEWB
NEO% Z HEZF °

T8 B AR S B AN A& fE o R Z B ) 3 59
18 B (R 84 12 52 75 /3380,000°F 75
R) - AREES7TEARBER -

AEB-BEHEBEGEYEERENEAZER
ERE MWEAEXBHESG EEHEKRA
KERBAERAELYHRE - ERIAH
ZUEBRAOZRETAKEMRAR AIEAR
AR R BERBEALEHE
BEEEEE CREHE: (IKAAEE
T ORR AR @ R ¢ R (i) AT 4B o8 HUBSNE EE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Woujiang Project and Jiashan Project

In December 2016, the Group succeeded in the bid of the
land use right of land situated in Wujiang District, Suzhou
City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC for a consideration of
approximately RMB135 million. The land parcel has a site area
of approximately 26,000 square metres and will be developed
for Phase 1 of the Wujiang Project.

In the same month, the Group succeeded also in the bid
of the land use right of land situated in Jiashan County,
Jiaxing City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC for a consideration
of approximately RMB65 million. The land parcels have a
site area of approximately 70,000 square metres and will be
developed for Phase 1 of the Jiashan Project.

Wujiang Project and Jiashan Project are to be developed into
cultural tourism real estate projects, where the Group strives
to establish a cultural landmark and tourist destination in
Greater Shanghai region. The management is of view that the
co-development of traditional real estate and cultural tourism
real estate projects will boost the long term profitability of the
Group and enhance our comprehensive strengths.

OTHER BUSINESS

Operation of “COMB+" Global Innovation and
Entrepreneurship Incubation Platform (“COMB+")

The short-term objective of “COMB+" is to build brand
recognition and explore the best operating and profit
model in the course of development. During the period
under review, “"COMB+" witnessed rapid business growth
and achieved significant growth in service income (mainly
derived from start-up services including company registry,
public administration, financial management, legal advice,
tax advice, trademark registration and maintenance, patent
registration and maintenance, marketing and PR, recruitment,
industry resources, investment and financing, etc.). The
increase in “COMB+" service income was mainly attributable
to the cooperation between “COMB+" and overseas famous
incubators during the period under review and “COMB+" has
provided short-term innovative courses on legal, taxation and
marketing matters for overseas startups entering the Chinese
market in exchange for service fees.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRRDN

Elderly Care Service (Disposed)

In July 2016, the Group and the purchaser entered into the
Agreement for the disposal of the entire business of elderly
care services of the Group, at a consideration of HK$20
million. The transaction was completed in August 2016 and
recorded gain on disposal of approximately HK$4 million.

PROSPECTS

Leveraging years of experience in property development, high
quality real estate projects, as well as creative and world
leading design concepts, the Group is always able to secure
land resources at a competitive price, which are converted
into quality commercial units and bring considerable revenue.
In addition, the Group upholds innovative entrepreneurship
and aims to expand into diverse businesses that have growth
potential with its global vision and internal strengths, with a
view to further expand customer base and revenue resource
in the future, thus generating sustainable and better returns
to shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the equity attributable to the
owners of the Company amounted to HK$2,749.8 million,
representing an increase of HK$26.6 million from that of
31 December 2015. During the current year, 15,763,780
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were issued for cash at an
adjusted subscription price of HK$4.95 per share, pursuant
to the exercise of the Company's warrants before their
expiry date of 4 March 2016 for a total cash consideration
of approximately HK$78.0 million. The listing of the warrants
have been withdrawn from The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on 4 March 2016.

On 12 November 2015, the Company issued a two-year
term RMB 8.5% secured convertible bonds due 2017 in
an aggregate principal amount of RMB29,520,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds |") to an independent third party. In
addition to which, on the same date, the Company also issued
a two-year term HK$ 8.5% secured guaranteed bonds due
2017 in an aggregate principal amount of HK$270,000,000
(the “Bonds 1”) to the same holder of the Convertible Bonds I.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 24 December 2015, the Company issued a five-year term
RMB zero coupon convertible bonds due 2020 in an aggregate
principal amount of RMB1,500,000,000 (the “Convertible
Bonds I1”) to SkyOcean Investment Holdings Limited,
the immediate holding company of the Company which is
beneficially owned as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng.

On 28 June 2016, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with the same holder of the Convertible Bonds
| and the Bonds |, for the purpose of issuing three-year
term HK$ 8% secured guaranteed bond due in 2019 in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$470,000,000 (the “Bonds
[I"). The Company issued the first tranche of the Bonds Il
amounting to HK$70,000,000 on 30 June 2016. The second
tranche of the Bonds Il amounting to HK$400,000,000 was
issued on 5 July 2016.

On 28 June 2016, SkyOcean Investment Holdings Limited,
the holder of the Convertible Bonds Il entered into a deed
of charge with the holder of the Bonds Il, and charged
over certain part of Convertible Bonds Il amounting to
RMB450,000,000 in favour of the holder of the Bonds II.

On 28 June 2016, the Company reached an agreement
with the holder of the Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds
| to extend the maturity date of Convertible Bonds | and
the Bonds | from 12 November 2017 to 30 June 2019. The
extension mentioned above did not result in material impact
on the financial information of the Group for the current year.

In March 2017, the holder of Convertible Bonds | converted
part of the Convertible Bonds | with principal amount
of RMB9,840,000 into 1,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at the specific conversion exchange rate and
conversion price.

As at 31 December 2016, no warrants (2015: approximately
16,000,000 warrants) and approximately 281,000,000 (2015:
281,000,000) conversion shares remained outstanding and
have not been converted.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRRDN

The Group normally provides its business with the operating
fund that comes from internal cash flow and the credit
provided by principal correspondent banks in Hong Kong
and the PRC. As at 31 December 2016, the Group's cash
and bank balances amounted to approximately HK$1,042.3
million (2015: approximately HK$242.3 million), the majority of
which were held in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"”) and Renminbi
("RMB"). As at 31 December 2016, the Group’'s bank and
other borrowings amounted to approximately HK$3,986.8
million (2015: approximately HK$2,102.8 million) and were
principally settled in RMB carrying interest at fixed and
floating lending rates.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's liability component
of Bonds and Convertible Bonds with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$1,932 million (2015: HK$1,485 million)
comprised of four portions, including bonds in the amounts
of HK$270,000,000 and HK$470,000,000 respectively and
convertible bonds in the amounts of RMB1,500,000,000 and
RMB29,520,000 respectively. In 2016, the interest expenses
incurred were approximately HK$155 million.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's current ratio was 2.14
(2015: 1.14), based on the current assets of approximately
HK$5 billion (2015: HK$3.95 billion) and current liabilities of
approximately HK$2.34 billion (2015: HK$3.45 billion). As at 31
December 2016, the Group’s gearing ratio was approximately
2.6 times (2015: 1.9 times) based on total liabilities of
approximately HK$7.39 billion (2015: HK$5.18 billion) and
total equity of approximately HK$2.81 billion (2015: HK$2.79
billion).

CURRENCY AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

With the majority of the Group’s businesses transacted in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar, the aforesaid currencies are
defined as the functional currency of the Company and some
subsidiaries respectively. Apart from certain bank balances
and cash and bonds denominated in foreign currencies, the
Group is not subject to any significant risk from fluctuations
in exchange rates. No currency hedging arrangement had
been made by the Group during 2016. The Group will closely
monitor and manage its exposure to fluctuation in foreign
exchange rates.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, deposits of RMB862,000,000
(equivalent to HK$963,656,000) (2015: deposits of
HK$909,525,000) and bank deposit of HK$3,589,000 (2015:
Nil) were pledged to secure the loans granted to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In March 2017, part of loans from a financial institution
with carrying amount of RMB99,212,000 (equivalent to
HK$110,914,000) were repaid by the Group. The pledged
deposits in relation to the aforesaid part of loans were also
released by the third party and received by the Group in
March 2017.

As at 31 December 2016, properties under development
for sale with carrying amount of approximately
RMB1,326,094,000, which is equivalent to HK$1,482,481,000
and investment properties with carrying amount of
approximately RMB4,301,646,000, which is equivalent to
HK$4,808,942,000 were pledged to certain bank and other
financial institutions to secure borrowings obtained from the
aforesaid bank and other financial institutions.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’'s and the non-
controlling shareholder’s equity interests in Beijing SkyOcean,
properties under development for sale with carrying amount
of approximately RMB596,592,000, which is equivalent to
HK$712,111,000 and investment properties with carrying
amount of approximately RMB2,636,503,000, which is
equivalent to HK$3,147,011,000 were pledged to a trust
fund company to secure a loan obtained from this trust fund
company. The aforesaid loan was early repaid in full by the
Group during the current year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had the following
contingent liabilities. Pursuant to the Share Sale Agreement
dated 8 October 2010, the Group disposed of the entire
interest in Quality HealthCare Limited, Quality HealthCare
Medical Holdings Limited, Quality HealthCare Medical
Services Limited, Quality HealthCare Services Limited and
Portex Limited (“Disposal Group”) in 2010. The Group has
signed a tax deed to indemnify the purchaser for tax liabilities
of the Disposal Group prior to the completion of the disposal
which have not been provided for in the closing account of the
Disposal Group as at 30 November 2010. The valid period for
claims under the tax deed shall be 7 years from completion.
The Group currently considers it is not probable that any
liabilities will arise therefrom.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group did not
hold any significant investment in equity interest in any other
company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWRDN

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2016, there were no
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries by the Group
except for the disposal of Elderly Care Services in August
2016.

MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

At 31 December 2016, the total number of employees
(including both full time and part time) was approximately
259. Total staff costs amounted to approximately HK$63.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$64.5
million). The Group offers competitive remuneration packages,
together with discretionary bonuses to its staff, based on
industry practices, and individual and Group performances.
The Group also offers training courses and continuous
education sessions as part of the Group's emphasis on staff
training and development.

DIVIDEND

The Board resolved not to recommend any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are certain risks and uncertainties that the Group face
during its operation. Among which, there are certain risks
that the Group cannot control. Such risks and uncertainties
including factors such as economy conditions of both inside
and outside China, credit policy and foreign exchange policies,
and changes related to laws and regulations and enforcement
policies.

With the growth and expansion of the Group's operations,
the potential risks to the Group's business increase as well.
In order to identify, assess and control the risks that may
create impediments to the Group's success, the Group
have implemented a risk management system that covers
each material aspect of its operations, including financial
security and compliance. The Group's Audit Committee is
responsible for overseeing and assessing the Group's risk
management policy and they supervise the performance of
risk management system.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IN COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Company is established in Bermuda, most of the
Group’s operations are performed in domestic China, while
the Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The operations of the
Group have to be in compliance with laws and regulations
of China and Hong Kong. For the year ended 31 December
2016 and until the date of the annual report, the Group has
in compliance with all the laws and regulations in China and
Hong Kong in all material respects.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of
its businesses and the communities with which it engages.
The Group pursues this business approach by managing its
business prudently and executing management decisions
with due care and attention. Over the years, the Group
has been fully committed to environmental protection.
Periodic seminars are held to update environmental laws
and regulations and to make valuable suggestions and
recommendations for improvement.

RELATIONS WITH CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Relationship is the fundamentals of business. The Group fully
understand this principal and thus maintain good relationship
with the customers to fulfil their immediate and longterm
need.

The Group strives to maintain fair and co-operating
relationship with the suppliers.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESRERTRAE—E8

DIRECTORS
ZHOU ZHENG

Mr. Zhou, aged 46, was appointed as an Executive Director,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since January
2014. He is the sole director and beneficial owner of 80% equity
interest in SkyOcean Investment, the immediate holding company
of the Company. He is also the sole director of two subsidiaries of
the Company, including Skyleaf Holdings Limited and SkyOcean
International United Limited. Mr. Zhou has over 12 years of working
experience in the property development and commercial retail
industries and over 9 years of experience in the financial investment
industry. He is currently a shareholder, chairman of the Board and
president of SkyOcean Holdings Group Co., Ltd. ( KE1ERxEE AR
ANA]), a company established in the PRC and principally engaged in
cultural, technological, financial investments and property development
and consumer goods industries. Mr. Zhou is the chairman and general
manager of Sichuan Tuopai Shede Group Co., Ltd, and the chairman
of Sichuan Tuopai Shede Wine Co., Ltd., the shares of which are listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600702.SH) Mr. Zhou
is also a director of China Minerals Mining Corporation, the shares of
which are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange.

LAM YU YEE, BENJAMIN

Mr. Lam, aged 56, was appointed as an Executive Director and Vice
Chairman of the Company since January 2017 Mr. Lam was the
executive director and deputy chief executive officer of Pacific Century
Premium Developments Limited (“PCPD"), a property developer
listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Lam served the company between 2004 to
2015. Prior to joining PCPD in 2004, Mr. Lam was chief financial officer
of Asia Pacific Resources International Limited in Singapore in 2003
and was appointed as president of China operations in April 2004.
Between 1999 to 2003, Mr. Lam was executive director and group
chief financial officer of Sino Land Company Limited, a major property
developer in Hong Kong. Prior to joining Sino Land Company Limited,
he had worked in various investment banks and financial institutions for
over 12 years and has substantial experience in corporate finance and
investment banking. Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Industrial Engineering from the University of Hong Kong and a Master
of Business Administration degree from the Manchester Business
School.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

YANG HONGGUANG

Mr. Yang, aged 54, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company since January 2015. He graduated from Beijing Iron and
Steel Institute (3 F M 2262 ) (now known as University of Science
& Technology Beijing (b REHEARE) in 1984 and completed the
Executive MBA Programme of China Europe International Business
School and was awarded the degree of Master of Business
Administration in 2003. Mr. Yang is currently an executive director
and vice president of SkyOcean Holdings Group Co., Ltd. ( K/F3%EA%
E£EAMRAR]) . Prior to that, Mr. Yang had been the executive vice
president of Changchun Jida Easy Software Engineering Co., Ltd.
(REZT AT SEMHAMR AT, general manager of Beijing Weihao
Smart Glass Co., Ltd. (L REZE BB AR A7), deputy general
manager of Qinhuangdao Anyue Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(REELEFMEREBRAF]), deputy general manager of
Qinhuangdao Ocean Properties Co., Ltd. (REEBFEEBR A
A1) and vice president of Baotou Iron and Steel Design and Research
Institute, Qinhuangdao Branch (BB MEFA MR EZE2E D
BT) . Mr. Yang has more than 30 years of experience in enterprise
management and development.

LIN GUOXIONG

Mr. Lin, aged 52, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company since July 2016. He is responsible for strategic mergers
and acquisitions investments. Mr. Lin has over 20 years' experience
in corporate finance and corporate strategy development. In 2015,
Mr. Lin was the chief investment officer of China National BlueStar
(Group) Co., Ltd (FEHEE (£&E)RHAERAF]) . From 2010 to
2014, Mr. Lin was a global emerging markets corporate development
vice president of Covidien plc, a company then listed on the New
York Stock Exchange (stock Code: CQOV). From 2007 to 2010, Mr. Lin
was an Asia Pacific corporate mergers and acquisition vice president
of Honeywell International Inc., a company listed on New York Stock
Exchange (stock Code: HON). From 2000 to 2007, Mr. Lin was a global
business development vice president of Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd.
Mr. Lin graduated from Monash University, Australia, with a master’s
degree in business law in 2006, and obtained a master's degree in
applied finance from Macquarie University, Australia in 1992. Mr. Lin is
currently a vice president of SkyOcean Holdings Group Co., Ltd. ( X/F
Y& B AR A R]) and general manager of mergers and acquisition
centre.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERERITHAR-E

CHAN TAK KWONG

Mr. Chan, aged 46, was appointed as an Executive Director and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company since January 2014 and March 2016
respectively and served as Company Secretary of the Company from
January 2014 to January 2016. Mr. Chan also serves as a director of
several subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 20 year experience
in financial management, financial audit, group reorganisation, and
merger & acquisition. He joined SkyOcean Group Holdings Co.,
Ltd. (RIFIEREB AR A7) in July 2013 and is currently the
financial controller of the finance center. Prior to that, Mr. Chan mainly
worked in Ernst & Young and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from 1994 to
2013. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor's Degree in Accountancy from the
City University of Hong Kong and is a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and VWales.

LI CHAK HUNG

Mr. Li, aged 52, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in October 2004. He graduated from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and holds a Bachelor's Degree
of Business Administration and is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a Fellow of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He has over
25 years experience in accounting, auditing, taxation and financial
management. Mr. Li is currently an independent non-executive director
of Sandmartin International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 482) and
Dan Form Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 271), whereas all
companies are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

MENG XIAOSU

Dr. Meng, aged 68, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in March 2014. Dr. Meng holds a Ph.D.
degree in economics from Peking University and was employed as a
visiting professor at various colleges and universities, including Peking
University, Renmin University of China and China University of Political
Science and Law. Dr. Meng received a special subsidy in recognition
of his academic achievement in business administration aspect as “An
Outstanding Expert” by the State Council of China in 2005.

Dr. Meng is currently a consultant of China National Real Estate
Development Group Corporation (“CRED") (H B 5= i & FA 3 &=
E/A7]), a company established in the PRC, the chairman of Huili
Investment Fund Management Company Limited ([E HiREE L E
AR AF]), an investment fund management firm established in
the PRC, and the chairman of the supervisory board of Shanghai Life
Insurance Co., Ltd. ( E/8 ASRERMH AR AF]), an insurance
company established in the PRC. Dr. Meng worked in CRED from
1992 to 2006, where he has served as general manager, chairman,
and etc..
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

YANG BUTING

Mr. Yang, aged 71, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in June 2014. He graduated from Changchun
College of Geology (=& HE 2kt ) (how known as College of Earth
Science of Jilin University ( MK 2 EREIEZE8ET) ) in 1969, and
has been engaged in the film industry since 1972. He is currently
a member of the China Film Association and the National Board of
Film Censorship (RREFBFEEZLZEE) . He is a visiting professor
of Beijing Film Academy, University of International Business and
Economics, and the Communication University of China. Mr. Yang

== By /\

was a manager of Hebei Film Company CAdt&ER A F]), a vice
general manager of China Film Company (FF & 222 a]) , a director
of China Research Institute of Film Science and Technology, the deputy
head of the Bureau of Film under the State Administration of Radio,
Film and Television of the PRC, and chairman of China Film Group
Corporation. He has been awarded the State Science and Technology
Awards and Huabiao Awards and is entitled to government allowance
by the State Council of the PRC. He has extensive experience in film
investment, production, promotion and distribution, establishment of
cinema network and application of digital film technology. With over
30 years of experience in the film industry, Mr. Yang has led a number
of influential film projects, such as the development of the national
e-ticket administration system and IMAX movie camera, application
and research of digital film technology, and the establishment of a
national digital film production base (namely, the State Production Base
of China Film Group (Huairou)), making substantial contribution to film
development in China.

ZHAO DAXIN

Mr. Zhao, aged 62, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in December 2014. He graduated from the
Chinese Faculty of Northwest University in 1977 After graduation, he
served as the secretary of Youth League committee and the deputy
Party secretary in the Direct Subordinate Organization of Shaanxi
Provincial Government. In 1989, he became the deputy chief of Yanta
District, Xi'an City, Shaanxi Province. Mr. Zhao then served as the
general manager and chief editor of China Record Corporation from
May 2001 to February 2008, and the Party secretary and vice chairman
of China Record Corporation from February 2008 to October 2014.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERSRITRAE-

COMPANY SECRETARY
SZE WING KIN, PIERRE

Mr. Sze, aged 40, was appointed as the Corporate Finance and
Investor Relations Director and Company Secretary of the Company
since September 2015 and January 2016 respectively. He also serves
as company secretary of several subsidiaries of the Company. He
graduated from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
with Bachelor of Business Administration (Hons) in Professional
Accounting in 1998. Prior to that, Mr. Sze has been the Chief Financial
Officer, Board Secretary and Company Secretary of a leading pure
play integrated gold company in terms of gold resources in the
PRC focusing on exploration, mining, processing and smelting of
gold from September 2011 to August 2015. Mr. Sze served as Chief
Financial Officer, Qualified Accountant and Company Secretary
of Lijun International Pharmaceutical (Holding) Co., Ltd. (currently
known as SSY Group Limited, Stock Code: 2005) from June 2008
to August 2011. Mr. Sze worked for several international and local
audit firms including KPMG, PricewaterhouseCoopers and Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu from September 1998 to June 2008. Mr. Sze has
extensive experience in corporate finance, investor relations, company
secretarial, financial management, auditing, accounting, taxation,
internal control, treasury and business advisory in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Mr. Sze is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS REPORT

The Company attached great importance to communications
with investors, financial institutions, the media and
other stakeholders in order to establish a more efficient
communication channel between the Company and the capital
market. The investor relations department has maintained
effective mutual communication and close relationships
with investors, financial institutions and media through
various channels such as the publication of annual report
and interim report, press release, corporate newsletter and
announcement, as well as the website of the Company.
We believe that effective investor relations will help reduce
financial costs and improve the liquidity of the shares of
the Company, leading to a more solid shareholder base. The
Company therefore undertakes to maintain high transparency
and to release the financial and operation conditions and
the latest news to the market promptly and accurately in
compliance with the principle of “accurate, timely, and
transparent” information disclosure. The Company strives to
make the market have a deep understanding of the Company
and maintain high corporate transparency in order to create
maximum value for shareholders and other stakeholders.

SHARE PERFORMANCE
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INVESTOR RELATIONS REPORT
REEFERSE

SHARE PERFORMANCE IN 2016 (2 JANUARY 2016 TO 30
DECEMBER 2016)

As at 30 December 2016, the Company had a total of
262,211,739 Shares and the market price per Share was
HK$11.78. Based on the closing price as at 30 December
2016, the market capitalisation of the Company amounted to
HK$3,089 million.

The investor relations department will continue to enhance
the quality of communication with investors and maintain
corporate transparency. To ensure easy access to the
Company’'s updated information, all of our published
information including announcements, interim and annual
reports and press releases, are posted on the Company's
website www.skyocean.com in a timely manner. Interested
parties can also make enquiries by contacting the investor
relations department (email: investor. inquiry@skyocean.com).
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ENUIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOUVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited (the “Group”

r “We") presents the first Environmental, Social and
Governance ("ESG”) Report (the "ESG Report”) which
covers environmental and social performance of the
Group and its major subsidiaries to demonstrate our
continuous commitment to sustainability. Additional
information in relation to the Group's corporate
governance and financial performance can be found in
other sections of this Annual Report. The ESG Report
highlights our sustainability activities spanning over a
period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016.

The present scope of the ESG reporting covers
the principal operating activities of the Group's
headquarters and subsidiaries in Hong Kong and in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), which
include property development and leasing, operation
of innovation and start-ups incubation platform,
and investment in financial instruments. We pledge
to extend our corporate culture with the slogan of
“limitless as the sky, embracing like the ocean,
and sincere as our love for others” to our social
responsibility. As being a responsible corporate, we
fully integrate sustainable concepts with our business
operation. We not only act as an innovation and start-
ups incubator but also a creator of human and social
values.

This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide"” (the “"ESG Reporting Guide”) under Appendix
27 of the Main Listing Rules Chapter 13.91 of The
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited. With
reference to the definition stated in the ESG Reporting
Guide, the presentation of our ESG Report will divide
those aspects and key performance indicators (“KPI"),
which are considered to be relevant and material to
the Group's businesses and operations, into four
subject areas: Environmental, Employment and Labour
Practices, Operating Practices and Community. A
complete list of index in compliance with the ESG
Reporting Guide is also available at the end of this
Report for reference.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERRSE

ABOUT THIS REPORT- continued

In order to define what are relevant and material to
our business with respect to sustainability, the key
is to understand what issues our stakeholders are
most concerned with. We define our stakeholders
as people who affect our business or who are
affected by our business. Our stakeholders include
shareholders, employees, clients, suppliers,
customers, environment and community. In our daily
operation, we actively exchange information with
our stakeholders through our transparent platform
while we are devoted to continuous improvement
of our communication system. We are committed
to maintaining a long-term partnership with our
stakeholders and are actively engaged in addressing
their concerns with timely follow-up actions. If you,
as one of our stakeholders, have any questions about
the content of the ESG Report or comment on the
Group's sustainability issues, please contact us via
investor.inquiry@skyocean.com.

ENVIRONMENTAL
21 CORPORATE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

We pledge to reduce our environmental
impact throughout our operation. We are
accountable to protect the earth and to build
a sustainable future for our generations and
their generations. The Group is committed to
upholding high environmental standards to fulfil
relevant requirements under applicable laws or
ordinances during the operation of the business.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

2. ENVIRONMENTAL- continued

2.2

23

EMISSIONS

The Group actively maintains a steady focus
on reducing our energy consumption to
manage our impact on the air quality. The
Group is committed to follow the “Indoor
Temperature Energy Saving Charter” and the
“No Incandescent Light Bulbs (“ILB") Energy
Saving Charter” introduced by the Environmental
Bureau of Hong Kong. Specific measures have
already been taken, which include maintaining
an indoor temperature at an optimal level for
comfort, installing LED lighting system in the
offices, encouraging the employees to switch off
the computers and monitors when not utilised,
setting office machines such as copiers and TV
monitors to switch off automatically after office
hours, encouraging the employees to make the
best use of modern telecommunication system
to avoid unnecessary travel arrangement, and
putting up signage emphasizing the importance
of energy saving at offices are in place.

NON-HAZARDOUS WASTES

Besides implementation of energy saving
initiatives throughout offices, the Group also
promotes other environmental friendly measures
to reduce disposal of non-hazardous waste (such
as used paper) throughout the entire operation.
We encourage our employees to reduce paper
usage by using double-sided copying and by
a more frequent use of electronic information
systems for material sharing or internal
administrative documents (such as implemented
e-leave application system) as part of our
environmental protection campaigns.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERRSE

2. ENVIRONMENTAL- continued 2. RIE—&
24 ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE 24 RIEBRE

In accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide REBEBMERIMAERA
set out by The Stock Exchange of Hong A ([BERRPR)) TS IR IR -
Kong Limited (the “SEHK"), the data of the e kErmEREs A&
“Emissions” and “Use of Resources” of the B 20165 S5 BAAA [HER
Group during the reporting period of 2016 are Wl Rk [EIRER] 8B *
tabulated below. ke
Energy use and emissions Unit 2016
15 3 B8R % BE 7R B 2016F
Electricity kWh 366,150
E TR/
Unleaded petrol L 21,592
£ DA Ft
Diesel L 10,661
B 7t
Greenhouse gas emissions CO2e (tonnes) 292.6
BEREHNE “aftiES ()
NOx g 16,297
=Kl e %
SOx g 489
=R 7 ®
PM g 1,200
FIERF "
Resources use Unit 2016
i 9iikIEC] B fi 2016
Paper Piece (kg) 322,534 (1612.7)
4% i (F5)
Water m? 2,377
K SR
The Group will continue our commitment ERAEENTEAR K&
in environmental protection and to strive to BEEERITIRIREAELS
build a green and healthy environment for the N AR EELE & &L
community we all live in, as a responsible ERERIRE

corporate citizen.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

3.  EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

31

3.2

COMPLIANCE WITH LABOUR LAWS

Our employees are mainly located in Hong Kong
and the PRC. The Group safeguards the rights
of our employees by strictly complying with the
requirements of the Labour Law of Hong Kong
and the Labour Law of the PRC. In the PRC, we
have participated in welfare schemes concerning
pension insurance, unemployment insurance,
maternity insurance, occupational injury
insurance and medical insurance in accordance
with the local regulations including the
Regulations on the Administration of Housing
Provident Funds and the Social Insurance Law
of the PRC. In Hong Kong, we provide medical
insurance, disability and invalidity coverage,
maternity leave, incentive and bonus etc.
to all our full-time employees. We have also
participated in the Mandatory Provident Fund
(MPF) Scheme, prescribed by the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter
485 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

CORPORATE POLICY OF EMPLOYMENT AND
LABOUR

The Group spends a great effort to provide
a desirable workplace, continuous training
programs and prospective career opportunities
to our employees in order to attract and retain
highly qualified employees. The Group believes
that a strong and loyal team is invaluable to
maintain a robust business performance and
growth.

The Group aims to uphold a fair and equitable
human resource policy, in which quality and
merit of the candidates are the most important
elements to be assessed during the recruitment
and promotion processes. The Group offers
equal employment opportunities to different
genders, age groups and nationalities such that
a sound of diversify of human resources can be
achieved.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERERARSE
3. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR

PRACTICES- continued

3.3

3.4

CORPORATE POLICY OF HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group has been attaching great importance
to provide a safe working environment and
protect our employees from occupational
hazards. For individual workstations, adjustable
chairs and monitor screens for eye protection
are provided. Additional occupation safety
guidelines including proper working postures
and posters of proper lifting method were
accessible on the intranet and were put up at
appropriate locations in offices respectively to
raise the safety awareness among employees.
We have also developed health and safety
policies including prohibition of smoking
in workplace, abuse of alcohol and drugs,
identification and prevention of risks and hazards
in the working area, and emergency actions for
accidents or personal injuries. We require our
employees to strictly adhere to and comply with
such policies, which are set out in our employee
handbook.

CORPORATE POLICY OF TRAINING AND
RECRUITMENT

The Group anticipates that every position has
its unique professional and technical needs
and therefore, we ensure that every new
joiner receives proper orientation training and
mentoring in order to help them swiftly adapt
to the new working environment. Continuous
training programs are offered by the Group
in different ways including internal training
courses, comprehensive training for specific
skill development, and professional training for
relevant employees. Through education and
training, the Group can nurture the employees
to elevate their personal qualities, reinforce their
skill-sets and keep up with the most advanced
professional knowledge that their position may
require.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

3. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES- continued

3.4

CORPORATE POLICY OF TRAINING AND
RECRUITMENT- continued

Sense of belonging and morale of the
employees drives the healthy growth of the
Group. The Group constantly encourages open
and direct communication between employees
and management. The Group issues internal
staff magazines in bi-monthly basis in which the
employees get involved in sharing their ideas
and receive latest company news. Various of
gatherings such as, Group anniversaries, sport
competitions, team building activities, Christmas
and Chinese New Year dinners are organised to
enhance the harmonious sprit throughout the
Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERRSE

3. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES- continued

3. ERRFEFIESR-E&

3.5  SOCIAL PERFORMANCE 35 HEXRR
In accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide set RIEE B FTFTE IR R -
out by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the data e RERREES AEE
of the “Social Performance” of the Group during R2016F HEHAAR [+t EXR
the reporting period of 2016 are tabulated as R EIRS RN T
well as presented in graphs below.
Employee Training Unit 2016
8 T353 By 20165
Average hours of training received hours 0.79
per employees N
BREETFHHNX AR
Average hours of training per employee
by gender
RUERE S BEEE FTHNXIIFE
Female hours 0.79
7 NE
Male hours 0.79
S N
Average hours of training per employee by
employment category
REBRESBEEE THNXIIFE
Senior level hours 0.58
mH/ET /|NBF
Middle level hours 1.36
FRET AN
Entry level hours 0.60
EBAT N
Average hours of training per employee by
region category
IR E D G4 EE TN E Y
Hong Kong hours 1.25
BE s
PRC hours 0.76
H s
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BE HERERRE

3. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR 3. BEREREIER &
PRACTICES- continued
35 SOCIAL PERFORMANCE- continued 3.5 HEXRRE-E
2016
Total Workforce as of 31 Dec 2016 259

MN2016512 A31HK E T2

Turnover rate by gender (%)

BRI B D BB R K X

Female 19.7
i
Male 19.7
Bt

Turnover rate by age group (%)

RERANEDWEBRKRLE

Under 30 years old 23.6
305 A
30 — 50 years old 15.8
30-507%
Over 50 years old 0.0
507% LA £

Turnover rate by region (%)

ZibEE S aEB MK X

Hong Kong 0.8
N

PRC 38.6
aa

Total Workforce by Employment Category Total Workforce by Gender
ETI#BRERERES B THREIZRMRE D

20%
Senior Level

58% gt 56%
Entry Level AT Male
TimET £l

22%
Middle Level
RRET
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BE HERERRSE

3. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES- continued
35 SOCIAL PERFORMANCE- continued

Total Workforce by Age Group

ETASIRFRERNE S
1% l 56%
over 50 years old Under 30 years old
BOBRMA £ 30RRLAT 93%

43%
30-50 years old
30-507%

PRC
FEIRH

3. EERBIER-&
35 HEXRR-&

Total Workforce by Region Category
ETHAHRMER S

7%
Hong Kong
—_— w5

OPERATING PRACTICES

As a responsible corporate citizen, one of our missions
is to integrate sustainability into our core business.
During our selection process for suppliers and
contractors, we not only consider economical and
commercial factors in the tendering processes but also
make a serious assessment of their compliance with all
the applicable laws and regulations; safeguard workers'
health and safety; and mitigate environmental impacts.
There are in total 103 suppliers and contractors during
the reporting period which are all located in the PRC.
To maintain a good corporate control and governance,
the Group has formulated a series of management
systems and procedures to be aligned with the
Corporate Governance required by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. In addition, the Group encourages
all business partners to develop energy-saving and
consumption-reducing policies in order to work
together in our pursuit of sustainable development.

4.1  INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

The Group safeguards the confidentiality of all
customers and entrepreneurs and warrants that
the customer's information is properly protected
during our business operation. We require our
employees to strictly follow full procedures of
handling company confidential information set
out in our confidentiality management policy
handbook.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

OPERATING PRACTICES- continued
4.2  ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group is committed to upholding a high
standard of business ethics and to prohibition of
bribery and corruption. The Group has developed
a series of company policies on anti-fraud, anti-
bribery, anti-extortion and anti-money laundering
with reference to the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Cap 201 of the laws of Hong Kong).
With principles of “Commitment, Assurance
of High Quality, Fair Deals and Faithfulness”,
all employees perform their duties with
utmost level of good faith, determination and
professionalism, and ensure that the reputation
of the Group will not be tarnished because of
misconduct and corruption behavior.

COMMUNITY

We take pride in contributing to the community. As
a part of the community that we cherish, it is our
responsibility to contribute to the well-being of a
community beyond financial support. We encourage
and organise our employees to take part in charity
activities and hope to apply the concept of social
responsibility and practice in our routine work.

We support the local communities through variable
channels including exchanges and visits, free or in-
kind scholarships, and employee volunteering. This
year, we have collaborated with Beijing Institute of
Clothing Technology and Communication University of
China respectively to provide opportunities for students
to explore incubations and to exchange innovative
ideas with remarkable entrepreneurs. The cooperation
with Communication University of China in 2016
was highlighted by the “Entrepreneurial Endurance
Program” to encourage the university's work on
educational development in the field of innovation.
The program will put emphasis on the establishment
and development of virtual laboratory, construction of
innovation and entrepreneurship curriculum system
for postgraduates, aids on specific postgraduate
innovation and entrepreneurship projects and launch
of education forum and characteristic innovation and
entrepreneurship contests in media sector.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERRSE

6. SEHKESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX 6. HEXA(RE - HERE
BHmEES) ARRGI
Aspects, General Subject Areas in
Disclosures and KPls ESG Report
BE —REER Description B -HE8RER Remarks
HRERER it BRENTEER B

Aspect A1: Emissions

EEAT B

General Disclosure Information on: Environmental
— R E {a) the policies; and RE

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste

BERBERARBEREHN - kRS
BERBEREYNELSM:
(a) HE: R
b) BFHBETAEEAYENAELZ LA
HE R

KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective Environmental
BB A BUERAL emissions data R

B ER KRR RS

KPI'A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where  Environmental
B ENUEEAL2 appropriate, intensity R
BERBAENER (WER)RE

KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where - The Group has not identified
FREIEIEALS appropriate, intensity any hazardous wastes that
MEEEERENEER (NER)EE were produced by our core
business
AEBRAERROEBES
ERAEEEY
KPI'A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, - No significant non-hazardous
MREMIEEMA where appropriate, intensity wastes were produced in
MEABZEEYRER (NER)EBE our core business
BOEBLAEEEMER
EEEEY
KPI'A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions ~ Environmental
BB MUEEALD and results achieved R

HURE S RE OB R EHR

KPI'A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non - Environmental
FIREMIEIZALE hazardous wastes are handled, reduction RR
initiatives and results achieved
BIRBEEREERENNA L AEELS
MEERFTEHRE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SEHK ESG GUIDE CONTENT
INDEX- continued

Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPls

BE —REER
BREMER

Description

H

B HERERES

B (RE HERE
AWERES) ABRG

=t

— M=

Subject Areas in
ESG Report
RE -HERER Remarks

BENEIRER @B

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EEA2 : ERER

General Disclosure
—MHR

KPI A2.1
PR ENIEIRA2

KPI A2.2
BREMIERA22
KPI A2.3
BRENIERA23

KPI A2.4
BRENIERA24

KPI'A2.5
BRENERA2S

Policies on efficient use of resources including
energy, water and other raw materials

BRERER (REER KREMEME)H
8

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type in total and intensity

REREINERR/ARRERERERER

Water consumption in total and intensity
BREKERTE

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives
and results achieved

0 IR 1B P A aR At B RS R

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved

HSREGERKOR A AR RER - R A
USSR G ES

Total packaging material used for finished
products, and if applicable, with reference to
per unit produced

SR mAREMENEER (NER)§EE
Bluhe

Environmental
B

Environmental
B8

Environmental
B8

Environmental
B35

The Group believes that our
water consumption is
mainly used for domestic
use purpose and no issues
are addressed at this
moment

AEERE FKETERR
WE AR BEAIMARER
EREE

- Use of packaging material is
not applicable to our core
business

BAEMBNERTERARAE
BRLEH
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ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERRSE

6. SEHKESG GUIDE CONTENT 6. HEXA(RE HLERE
INDEX- continued BHEES) ABERLI
— &
Aspects, General Subject Areas in
Disclosures and KPIs ESG Report
BE —BEER Description RE -HERER Remarks
BRENER H 4t BRENTREE B

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BEA3 BRELKAER

General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant Environmental
—MEE impact on the environment and natural RE
resources
REETAHRERRAEREREATEN
K
KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of Environmental
B ENUEIEAS activities on the environment and natural R

resources and actions taken to manage them
BUEBEHHRERARERNEATER
FREBEBYENTY

Aspect B1:
Employment

BB EMRE

General Disclosure Information on: Employment and
—RHE {a) the policies; and Labour Practices
(b) compliance with relevant laws and ERERHIER

regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti — discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare

ERZMLRE RELEN THEHH RE
TFERE Fl REEURAMTER

%E%IJE’\J :
) BE: R
| BEFHBETARERZENERLERKAN
&R
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, Employment and
BREMIEEBLI age group and geographical region Labour Practices
RS ERER FRENLRESNEE EBEREIER
By
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group Employment and
B EEEB2 and geographical region Labour Practices

RUER FRANIEREDHERRALE  EREREIER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SEHK ESG GUIDE CONTENT
INDEX- continued

Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPls

BE —REER
BREMER

Description

H

6.

B HERERES

B (RE HERE
AWERES) ABRG

=t

— M=

Subject Areas in
ESG Report
RE -HERER Remarks

BENEIRER @B

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

EMmB2 : ERELE

General Disclosure

—RBEE

KPI B2.1
R EMIEIRB2.1

KPI B2.2
BREMIEEB2.2

KPIB2.3
BRENIEREB23

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards

ﬁ@%ﬁﬁ%lﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ

=/

(@) B&E: Rk

b) BFHETABEAZEORBEZZRAN
(& Rt

Number and rate of work-related fatalities

BIEREMETHABRLE

Lost days due to work injury

AIBBRATERY

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored

HRFTRAEBEERELT 2 G
NRBERTRER

Employment and
Labour Practices

BRREBTER

- No work-related fatalities
were occurred during the
reporting period

RIS BRI EE A E TR
BT M

- No lost days due to work
injury were recorded
during the reporting period

REaEHATERTEMEX
T{EREM T

Employment and
Labour Practices

ERRBIER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERRSE

6. SEHK ESG GUIDE CONTENT
INDEX- continued

Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

EEH —-REER Description
BRENEE fHit

BRI (RE HERE
BmEES) ABRG

==

— =

Subject Areas in
ESG Report

RE -#HEXEAR Remarks

RENIRER H

Aspect B3: Development and Training

BEB3 : && R

General Disclosure

—REE Policies on improving employees’ knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities

AREARBETLIFRENMER RN
R - HmIEFE S

KPI B3.1
B E B 1R B3

The percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category

BRUERRERERASNZIEREDI

KPI B3.2
B A IR 1RB3.2

The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category

RUFIREEERES BEEETKEIIN
PR

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
EMEB4 - L TEH

General Disclosure Information on:

Employment and
Labour Practices

EREREIER

Employment and
Labour Practices

EBEREIER

Employment and
Labour Practices

EREREIER

Employment and
Labour Practices

BEREIER

—RRE (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labour
BEMILETHEHSTIMH:
(a) B%E: Rk
b) EFHETABEAZENEREERREN
AR
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment

BSEMIERBA

KPI B4.2
B R EMIEIRBA.2

Employment and
practices to avoid child and forced labour Labour Practices

R AEEAMEENBSEIRRHLT EEREIER
Description of steps taken to eliminate such - No such incidents were
practices when discovered reported during the

RO ERRERBRNEREBERMERMN reporting period
g RBEHATEZRER
£
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SEHK ESG GUIDE CONTENT
INDEX- continued

Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPls

BE —REER
BREMER

Description

H

B HERERES

B (RE HERE
AWERES) ABRG

=t

— M=

Subject Areas in
ESG Report
RE -HERER Remarks

BENEIRER @B

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

EERS : e EE

General Disclosure
—MHR

KPI B5.1
BB B IR 1RB5.1

KPI B5.2
BB IE 5 1RB5.2

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of the supply chain
ERHREENFEREEARBE

Number of suppliers by geographical region

R D OHEERRA

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored

HREBERREENEN mERTEEED
?gf#%%%ﬁlﬁ UREBEANBRTRESRS
/i

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

EEB6  EmAfE

General Disclosure

—RRE

KPI B6.1
BB MIEEBR6.1

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress

BHEREERIRBNERELZS  BE 25
FABEENRERAEN:

(@) BE: R

b) BFHBETABEAYEOMRBEZRRA
(& #t

Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons

EEXCEREMBHTRR 2 BRFEMMA
EREHED T

Operating
Practices
HEED

Operating
Practices
HEED

Operating
Practices
EEEN

- Not identified as material

aspect

TREZRERNHRE

- Not identified as material

aspect

TREZRERHE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERRSE

6. SEHKESG GUIDE CONTENT 6. HEXA(RE - HERE
INDEX- continued BHEES) ABERDI
|
Aspects, General Subject Areas in
Disclosures and KPIs ESG Report
BE —BEER Description RE -HERER Remarks
BRENER Hi it BRENTREE B
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related - Not identified as material
BB EEB6.2 complaints received and how they are aspect
dealt with THERREAZR
BEEBRER RRBORFHEURELE
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing - Not identified as material
BB UE1EB6.3 and protecting intellectual property rights aspect
RS ERRENSEEEENED TREEREAZR
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and - Not identified as material
BB E IR RB6.4 recall procedures aspect
HE BT AR RE R TREEREAZR
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and - Not identified as material
BI85 R 1EB6.5 privacy policies, how they are implemented aspect
and monitored MEERBRERNZR
A B & A RHRE RALBHOR - A RIAEAHIT
REETE

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7 : R&)S

General Disclosure Information on: Operating
—MEE (a) the policies; and Practices
(b) compliance with relevant laws and ZEEN

regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering

BRAMLBE BR HHFERAREN:

(a) HE: K
b) EFHETABEAZENEREEREN
HER
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding - No concluded legal cases
B NUREBT corrupt practices brought against the issuer regarding corrupt practices
or its employees during the reporting period were brought against the
and the outcomes of the cases issuer or its employees
RERBAHETASEEEREITEELEN during the reporting period
BORARMOEE RFAER REEHA TEHHETAR
HEERHMIEELENES
HAREMN
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and Operating
B ETURERT2 whistle - blowing procedures, how they are Practices
implemented and monitored ZiE 5
i EEm R RREF UREERTR
ERH%
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SEHK ESG GUIDE CONTENT
INDEX- continued

Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

BE —-REER Description
BRENER it

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BR HEREREE

6. MXF (RR HERE
AWEES) ABRS

=t

— M=

Subject Areas in
ESG Report
RE -HERER Remarks

BENEIRER @B

Aspect B8: Community Investment

EmBS : itEmEE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to Community
—REE understand the needs of the communities ~ #[&

where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the

communities’ interests

ARAHE2ERTREEMEHEREMER
EXBEDeZRHEMENBE

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution Community
PR A UIEEBS. EIEREE it
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus areas Community
PR ERIEREBS.2 EEIHEMBAER HE

Annual Report 2016 £

43



 CORPORATE
-~ GDVERNANCE
REPORT

PXERBHRS




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance within a sensible framework with
an emphasis on the principles of transparency, accountability
and independence. The board of directors of the Company
(“Board"”) believes that good corporate governance is
essential to the success of the Company and to the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT

In the light of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”),
the Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices
of the Company with the adoption of the various enhanced
procedures which are detailed in this report. The Company has
applied the principles of, and complied with, the applicable
code provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2016, except for certain deviations as specified
with considered reasons for such deviations as explained
below. The Board will review the current practices at least
annually, and make appropriate changes if considered
necessary.

EXEIRRS

EERERBE
AATEARDEER 2 BE NG BT
ZREER URBEERE MEELE
STHRRAARAEEE ((HFE)) AR
BRZ CEEAHAAT 2R RIBFHER
BEEASE-

TEREATAREXRELRRS

REBEH AR ZAMARARES LMARA
([EMRADME T OpAEz (EEER
SR R AREEREE) ([REERT
1) EFZGCEBHAARAZEEERR
B WD RRZBEBE 22T - FHEENA
BWERN BRI XHEZETERRRAZR
BEfT RSN BN E20165F12A31H ILF &
ARBEEAEEE AT RN —EE
SEAZ TR - EFERELTFR
RIOTZER - AEERBSHBERIELE
EEEE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRS

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises 9 directors (“Directors”) in
total, with 5 Executive Directors (“EDs"”) and 4 Independent
Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”). The composition of the
Board during the year and up to the date of this report is set
out as follows:
EDs: Zhou Zheng (Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)
Lam Yu Yee, Benjamin (Vice Chairman,
appointed on 18 January 2017)
Liu Li (resigned on 21 June 2016)
Yang Hongguang
Lin Guoxiong
(appointed on 13 July 2016)
Zhu Ling (appointed on 21 June 2016,
and resigned on 18 January 2017)
Chan Tak Kwong
INEDs: Li Chak Hung
Meng Xiaosu
Yang Buting
Zhao Daxin

The Directors have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other, except
those as set out in the “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” section on pages 18 to 22 of this report.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring Directors
to disclose the number and nature of offices held in
public companies or organisations and other significant
commitments as well as their identity and the time involved
to the issuer, Directors have agreed to disclose their
commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

BOARD PROCESS

During the year, the INEDs provided the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) with a wide range
of expertise and experience. Their active participation in
the Board and committee meetings brought independent
judgment on issues relating to the Group's strategy,
performance and management process, taking into
account the interests of all shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”).
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Throughout the year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has had 4 INEDs representing not less than one-
third of the Board. At least one of the INEDs have the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has received from each INED an annual
confirmation of his independence and considers that all of
the INEDs met the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and all the INEDs are independent in
accordance with terms of the guidelines.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as
well as the operation and financial performance of the Group,
and to review and approve the Group's annual and interim
results and other ad hoc matters which need to be dealt
with. During the year, Board meetings were held and the
individual attendance records of each Director at the meetings
of the Board, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and general meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2016 are set out below:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRSE

REFARBEAREBRARL  ARFE
BARBURTES HEFEAHRTD
RE=DZ— EL—BBIIFNTEFRE
ETHRRIEIIOEMREZBEREXER
SN B EEERNR -EFECE
BERBUIFNTESEREB I FE

RE - URBABABLIFRNITESTHNE
EARRIZEINMGRAAH 2 B 5| IR IR
BRAIESI 26K BB IFAITESH R
BIANTLe

P

17=

EEeTHRTER URASEBER
WS LA N 208 R B IR 3R - R B R b AR &
Era2ENREEULEMEEREES
EH-NEN EZEYURITEESERM
REENEZE20165F12A31 8 EFEEITH
BEEe YNEES BEREZEQ REELE
g gmREAS @R L F L aRH s
N

Number of meetings attended/held

HE/BTERE2NE
Remuneration Audit Nomination General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Name of Directors EEfA EZg FMZES ERZER REZEE REAE
EDs: HiTES:
Zhou Zheng [E 3 1717 - - 2/2 17
Liu Li (resigned on 2177 (720165
21 June 2016) 6A21HET) 49 171 - - 171
Yang Hongguang BRY 917 11 - - 171
Lin Guoxiong (appointed on  #EI%E (72201647 A 13H
13 July 2016) EZ{E) 1/5 - - - -
Zhu Ling (appointed on 21 & & (K2016F6A21H
June 2016 and resigned  EZ{T - W H2017F
on 18 January 2017) 1R18HEHT) 3/8 - - - -
Chan Tak Kwong Bk 16/17 - - - 11
INEDs: BUFHTES:
Li Chak Hung TER M7 2/2 4/4 2/2 "
Meng Xiaosu aEH 717 2/2 4/4 2/2 10
Yang Buting BH=E 17 2/2 4/4 2/2 11
Zhao Daxin HAR 717 2/2 4/4 2/2 11
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TEERRSE

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering mainly the Group's overall strategy, annual
operating budget, annual and interim results, approval of
Directors’ appointment or re-appointment (based on the
recommendations made by the Nomination Committee),
material contracts and transactions, corporate governance
as well as other significant policy and financial matters. The
Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the
executive management. The respective functions of the Board
and management of the Company have been formalised and
set out in writing and will be reviewed by the Board from time
to time to ensure that they are consistent with the existing
rules and regulations.

Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled in advance
to facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. At least 14
days’ notice of a Board meeting is normally given to all
Directors who are given an opportunity to include matters
for discussion in the agenda. The company secretary of
the Company (“Company Secretary”) assists the Chairman
in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all
applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The
agenda and the accompanying Board papers are normally
sent to all Directors at least 3 days before the intended date
of a regular Board meeting (and so far as practicable for such
other Board or Board committee meeting). Draft minutes of
each Board meeting are circulated to all Directors for their
comment before being tabled at the following Board meeting
for approval. All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary
and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

According to current Board practice, if a substantial
Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by
the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The Bye-laws
of the Company (“Bye-Laws”) also stipulate that save for
the exceptions as provided therein, a Director shall abstain
from voting on any board resolution and not be counted
in the quorum at meetings for approving any contract or
arrangement in which such Director or any of his associates
has a material interest.
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Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and
related materials and has access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary. The Board and each Director also
have separate and independent access to the Company's
senior management. Directors will be continuously updated
on the major development of the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. In
addition, a written procedure was established in June 2005
to enable the Directors, in discharge of their duties, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at a reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.

DIRECTORS' LIABILITY INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has purchased appropriate and sufficient liability
insurance to indemnify its Directors and senior officers in
respect of legal actions against the Directors and senior
officers.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses
as well as his/her responsibilities under statute and common
law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements
and the Company’s business and governance policies. The
Company also provides Directors with updates on latest
development and changes in the statute and common law, the
Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and the
Company’s business and governance policies from time to
time. The Directors are also provided with regular updates on
the Company's performance, position and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRSE

BUERHEREMESSEE U RIEH
BERb RARARMESKER MR -E
B REESIAER RIB B A AR
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Participation in Continuous Professional Development Activities

SHEBBESERERED
Attending
trainings/
briefings/
seminars/
conferences
relevant to
Directors’ duties
Reading HEHEEERSE
Regulatory BREAKEZIN
Updates LRS-
Name of Directors EERR MEZREH BERE WHE
EDs: HITES:
Zhou Zheng BBk v v
Lam Yu Yee, Benjamin PN
(appointed on 18 January 2017) (#2017%F1818H
BZET) v v
Liu Li 2
(resigned on 21 June 2016) (720166 H821H
BH(E) v v
Yang Hongguang BRK v v
Lin Guoxiong B
(appointed on 13 July 2016) (PA2016%7A13H
EZE) v v
Zhu Ling KE
(appointed on 21 June 2016 and (R2016%6 A21H
resigned on 18 January 2017) FERAT - W 20174
1R18H &) v v
Chan Tak Kwong PR 122 5 v v
INEDs: BAFHITES:
Li Chak Hung =y v v
Meng Xiaosu & v v
Yang Buting HBE= v v
Zhao Daxin i AT v v
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ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. There has been a
deviation from this code provision since the appointment of
Mr. Zhou Zheng as the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 27 January
2014. The Board considers this arrangement to be appropriate
for the Company in view of Mr. Zhou Zheng's extensive
experience in the property development industry in the PRC
and his in-depth knowledge of the Group’s innovation and
start-ups incubation and property development operation and
business. The Board believes that a balance of power and
authority is adequately ensured by the operation of the Board
which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals
including 4 INEDs. Nevertheless, the Board will identify an
appropriate person to take up the role of chief executive when
necessary.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In June 2005, the Board established and adopted a written
nomination procedure (“Nomination Procedure”) specifying
the process and criteria for the selection and recommendation
of candidates for directorship of the Company. The Chairman
of the Board shall, based on those criteria as set out in the
Nomination Procedure (such as appropriate experience,
personal skills and time commitment, etc.), identify and
recommend the proposed candidate to the Board for approval
of an appointment. The existing Nomination Procedure has
been included in the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee with effect from the establishment of the
Nomination Committee on 20 March 2012.

All INEDs of the Company were appointed for a specific term
of three years, but subject to the relevant provisions of the
Bye-Laws or any other applicable laws whereby the Directors
shall vacate or retire from their office but shall be eligible for
re-election.

According to the Bye-Laws, at each annual general meeting
of the Company (“AGM"), one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation. Further, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until
the next following general meeting of the Company whilst
for those appointed as an addition to the Board shall hold
office until the next following AGM and in both cases, those
Directors shall then be eligible for re-election at the relevant
meeting. Every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance
duties and has adopted the written terms of reference on its
corporate governance functions in April 2012.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate
governance functions include:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

reviewing the Company’'s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

In 2016 and up to the date of this report, the Board has
performed the corporate governance duties in accordance
with its terms of reference.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including
an Audit Committee, a Nomination Committee and a
Remuneration Committee, each of which has its specific
written terms of reference. Copies of minutes of all meetings
and resolutions of the committees, which are kept by the
Company Secretary, are circulated to all Board members
and the committees are required to report back to the Board
on their decision and recommendations where appropriate.
The procedures and arrangements for a Board meeting,
as mentioned in the section headed “The Board” of this
report, have been adopted for committee meetings so far as
practicable.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 20 March
2012 and is chaired by the Chairman of the Board and
comprises a majority of INEDs. During the year and as at the
date of publication of this report, the Nomination Committee
was made up of 5 members, namely:

Mr. Zhou Zheng (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
Mr. Li Chak Hung

Dr. Meng Xiaosu

Mr. Yang Buting

Mr. Zhao Daxin

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice according to the Company’s
policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
are:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

(ii) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;
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(iii) to assess the independence of INEDs; and

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and the Company.

The Nomination Committee will meet as and when necessary
in accordance with its terms of reference and may also deal
with matters by way of circulation. In 2016, two Nomination
Committee meetings were held. In 2016 and up to the date of
this report, the Nomination Committee performed the works
as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and recommended for Board approval the
proposed resolutions for re-election of the retiring
Directors at 2016 AGM;

(ii) reviewed and recommended for Board approval the
proposed resolutions for appointment of new Directors;
and

(iii) reviewed and recommended for Board approval
the renewed terms of appointment of INEDs with
reference to the structure, size and composition of the
Board and the independence of each INED.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a “Board Diversity Policy” in relation
to the nomination and appointment of new Directors, which
provides that the selection of Board candidates shall be based
on a range of diversity perspectives with reference to the
Company’s business model and specific needs, including
but not limited to gender, age, race, language, cultural
background, educational background, industry experience and
professional experience.

The above measurements were also reviewed and adopted
when the Nomination Committee reviewed the composition
of the Board. After assessing the suitability of the Directors’
skills and experience to the Company’'s business, the
Nomination Committee confirmed that the existing Board was
appropriately structured and no change was required.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has been established since
September 1997.

During the year and as at the date of publication of this report,
the Remuneration Committee comprised 4 INEDs and an ED,
namely:

Mr. Li Chak Hung (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Liu Li (resigned on 21 June 2016)

Mr. Yang Hongguang (appointed on 21 June 2016)

Dr. Meng Xiaosu

Mr. Yang Buting

Mr. Zhao Daxin

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice according to the Company's
policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are:

(i) to make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration policy and packages of the Directors
and, where appropriate, to consult the Chairman of
the Board and/or the Chief Executive Officer about the
Remuneration Committee’s proposals relating to the
remuneration of other EDs;

(ii) to review and recommend EDs’ remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals
and objectives;

(iii) to review and recommend the compensation payable to
EDs relating to any loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

(iv) to review and recommend compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct; and

(v) to ensure that no Director is involved in deciding his
own remuneration.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company are in compliance with the code provision
B.1.2 of the CG Code, but with a deviation from the code
provision that the Remuneration Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of the EDs only and not senior management (as opposed to
EDs and senior management under the code provision). The
reason for the above deviations are summarised as below:

(i) the Board believes that the Remuneration Committee is
not properly in a position to evaluate the performance
of senior management and that this evaluation process
is more effectively carried out by the EDs;

(ii) a majority of Remuneration Committee members are
INEDs who may not be industry skilled and come from
differing professions and backgrounds and they are
not involved in the daily operation of the Company.
They may have little direct knowledge of industry
practice and standard compensation packages. The
Remuneration Committee is thus not in a position to
properly determine the remuneration of the EDs;

(i) the EDs must be in a position to supervise and control
senior management and thus must be able to control
their compensation; and

(iv) there is no reason for EDs to pay senior management
more than industry standards and thus Shareholders
will benefit by reducing costs in the fixing of such
compensation packages.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year
in accordance with its terms of reference. Two Remuneration
Committee meetings were held in 2016 and the attendance of
each member is set out in the section headed “The Board” of
this report.
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In addition to the Remuneration Committee meeting, the
Remuneration Committee also dealt with matters by way of
circulation during 2016. In 2016 and up to the date of this
report, the Remuneration Committee performed the works as
summarised below:

(i) reviewed the existing policy and structure for the
remuneration of the Directors;

(ii) reviewed the performance of the EDs; and

(iii) reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval
the service fees of the Directors (including newly
appointed Directors during the year).

Each Director will be entitled to a Director’'s fee which is to
be proposed for the Shareholders’ approval at the AGM each
year. Further remuneration payable to Directors (including any
service fees of the INEDs) for their additional responsibilities
and services will depend on their respective contractual
terms under their employment contracts or service contracts
as approved by the Board on the recommendation of
the Remuneration Committee. Details of the Directors’
remuneration are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has been established since September
1997 To retain independence and objectivity, the Audit
Committee is chaired by an INED with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

During the year and as at the date of publication of this report,
the Audit Committee was made up of 4 INEDs, namely:

Mr. Li Chak Hung (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Dr. Meng Xiaosu

Mr. Yang Buting

Mr. Zhao Daxin

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice according to the Company’s policy if
considered necessary.
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The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

(i)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

to consider and make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to consider and discuss with the external auditor the
nature and scope of each year's audit;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing
the Company's relations with the external auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity;

to review the interim and annual consolidated financial
statements before submission to the Board;

to discuss any problems and reservation arising from
the interim review and final audit, and any matters the
external auditor may wish to discuss;

to review the external auditor's management letters
and management’s response;

to review the Group's financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems;

to review the internal audit plan, ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and ensure
whether the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Group; and

to consider major investigations findings on risk
management and internal control matters and
management'’s response.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are revised
from time to time to comply with the code provision C.3.3 of
the CG Code, but with deviations from the code provision of
the audit committee’s responsibility to:

(i)

(ii)

implement policy on the engagement of the external
auditors to supply non-audit services; and

ensure the management has performed its duty to
have effective risk management and internal control
systems.
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The Board considers that the Audit Committee shall
recommend (as opposed to implement) the policy on the
engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit
services for the following reasons:

(i) it is proper and appropriate for the Board and its
committees to develop policy and make appropriate
recommendations;

(ii) the proper and appropriate mechanism for
implementation of such policy and recommendations is
through the Executive Director and management; and

(i) INEDs are not in an effective position to implement
policy and follow up the same on a day-to-day basis.

Further, the Board considers that the Audit Committee only
possesses the effective ability to scrutinise (as opposed to
ensure) whether management has performed its duty to
have an effective internal control system. Where an internal
audit function exists, the Audit Committee is not equipped to
ensure that the same is in place as this would involve day-to-
day supervision and the employment of permanent experts.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year in
accordance with its terms of reference. Four Audit Committee
meetings were held in 2016 and the attendance of each
member is set out in the section headed “The Board"” of this
report.

In addition to the Audit Committee meetings, the Audit
Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation
during 2016. In 2016 and up to the date of this report, the
Audit Committee performed the works as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees
proposed by the external auditor;
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(ii) reviewed the reports from the external auditor in
relation to the final audit for the year ended 31
December 2015 (“2015 Final Audit”), the interim
results review for the six months ended 30 June 2016
("2016 Interim Review") and the final audit for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (“2016 Final Audit”) of the
Group;

(iii) reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval
the financial reports for the year ended 31 December
2015, for the six months ended 30 June 2016 and for
the year ended 31 December 2016;

(iv) reviewed the effectiveness of internal control system
and risk management, including reviewed the internal
control review reports from the independent internal
control reviewer,

(v) reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval
the report on substantiation of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Group's accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget; and

(vi) reviewed and recommended for the Board's annual
review the Related Party Transaction Policies and
Procedures, the Connected Transaction Policy and the
Whistle Blower Policy.

COMPANY SECRETARY

For the year ended 31 December 2016, in compliance with
Rule 3.28 of Listing Rules, the Company's existing Company
Secretary (the “Company Secretary”) is a full-time employee
of the Company and familiar with the ordinary affairs of the
Company. The Company Secretary is responsible for giving
advice to the Board on corporate governance matters in order
to assist the Group to cope with the changing regulatory
environment and to suit different commercial needs. Details
of the Company Secretary are set out in the section headed
“Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company

Secretary had complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by
taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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MODEL CODES FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
All Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry
by the Company, that they have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31 December 2016.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code as the
Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees to
regulate dealings in the securities of the Company by certain
employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries who are
considered to be likely in possession of inside information in
relation to the Company or its securities. No incident of non-
compliance of the Model Code by the Relevant Employees
was noted by the Company.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to present
a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of
the Group's performance, position and prospects in the
consolidated financial statements of the annual and interim
reports in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. Pursuant to Code Provision
C.1.1 of the CG Code, the management provided such
explanation and information to the Board to enable the Board
to make an informal assessment of the financial and other
information put before the Board for approval. The Directors
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2016, the Directors have selected
appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently,
and have made judgements and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable.

The Group has announced its interim results and annual
results in a timely manner within the limits of two months
and three months respectively after the end of the relevant
financial periods, as laid down in the Listing Rules.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to maintain appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems
in order to safeguard the interest of the Group and the
Shareholders, review and monitor the effectiveness of the
internal control and risk management systems on a regular
basis to ensure that the systems in place are adequate.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems
comprise, among others, the relevant financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management procedures,
a well-established organisational structure with clearly
defined lines of responsibility and authority. Each department
is accountable for its daily operations and is required to
implement the business strategies and policies adopted by
the Board from time to time.

The Company has the procedures and internal controls for
the handling and dissemination of inside information. In
practice, employees of the Group who become aware of
any events and/or matters which he/she consider potentially
inside information, will report to the designated personnel
of the Company who, if considered appropriate, will pass
such information to the Board for the purpose of considering
and deciding whether or not such information constitutes
inside information and disclosure of which shall be made
immediately.

The internal audit department of the Company supported the
Board and the Audit Committee in reviewing the effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems and
performed its functions during the year following an annual
audit plan and submitting their reports of their findings to the
Board and the Audit Committee at the meetings. The Audit
Committee provides independent review on effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and gives their recommendation to the Board. The
Board is responsible for reviewing the internal audit report
and approving policies and procedures designed by the
management.
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The Board conducted a review and assessment of the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems and procedures during the financial year
ended 31 December 2016 by way of discussions with the
management of the Group, members of the Audit Committee
and the external independent auditor.

The Board believes that the existing risk management and
internal control systems are adequate and effective. The Board
also reviewed the resources, qualification and experience
of staff of the Group's accounting and financial reporting
function and their training schemes and budget and was
satisfied with their adequacy.

The Board also assessed the effectiveness of the Group's
internal audit function and external audit process, and
satisfied itself, through the work of its Audit Committee, that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and is
effective at providing assurance to the Board on the relevant
risks faced by the Company, and that the external audit
process is effective.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Group in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities to
ensure that the financial statements of the Group are
published in a timely manner.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to
carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval. The
Company provides all members of the Board with monthly
updates on Company's performance, positions and prospects.

The reporting responsibilities of our Company’s external
auditor on the financial statements of the Group are set out in
the “Independent Auditor's Report” in this report.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Group's
external auditors, and non-audit services, is set out as
follows:

SN B 2 B &

WER B3/ R AR B B
BB Ba R T -

HK$'000
FBIT

Services rendered for the Group M) 2N £ [ 12 1Y BR 75
Audit services % ER 75 2,068
Non-audit services IEZER T 1,073
Total: at: 3,141

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication
with the Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is
disseminated to the Shareholders in a timely manner through
a number of formal channels, which include interim and
annual reports, announcements and circulars. Such published
documents together with the latest corporate information and
news are also made available on the website of the Company
at www.skyocean.com and the website of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) at www.hkexnews.
hk.

The Company's AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to
communicate directly with the Shareholders. The Chairman
actively participates at the AGM and personally chairs the
meeting to answer any question from the Shareholders.
The chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee or in their absence,
another member of the respective committees or failing
that their respective duly appointed delegate, are also
available to answer questions at the AGM. The chairman
of any independent board committee formed as necessary
or pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if no such chairman is
appointed, at least a member of the independent board
committee) will also be available to answer questions at any
general meeting of the Shareholders to approve a connected
transaction or any other transaction that is subject to
independent Shareholders’ approval.
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The 2016 AGM was held on 2 June 2016. The attendance
records of the Directors at the general meeting are set out in
the section headed “The Board” of this report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings
for each substantial issue, including the re-election of retiring
Directors.

The notice to Shareholders is to be sent, in the case of AGM,
at least 20 clear business days before the AGM and to be
sent at least 10 clear business days in the case of all other
general meetings. An explanation of the detailed procedures
of conducting a poll is provided to the Shareholders at the
commencement of the meeting. The Chairman answers
questions from Shareholders regarding voting by way of a
poll. The poll results are published in the manner prescribed
under the requirements of the Listing Rules.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company can request the convening of a special
general meeting according to Bye-law 58 of the Bye-Laws and
Section 74(1) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (“Act”)
by written requisition, with the stated business proposed to
be transacted, which must be validly served at the head office
and principal place of business of the Company registered
in Hong Kong (“Head Office”). Besides, Shareholders may
make a proposal at a Shareholders’ meeting by submitting it
in written form to the Board at the Head Office in the form
of a proposed resolution, which shall be clearly and concisely
set out the proposal for discussion and be relevant to the
Company's business scope.

The Board established a shareholders’ communication policy.
A Shareholder may serve an enquiry to the Board at our
Head Office for the attention of the Board in written form,
which shall state the nature of the enquiry and the reason
for making the enquiry. In addition, Shareholders can contact
Tricor Tengis Limited, the share registrar of the Company, for
any questions about their shareholdings.

Furthermore, to foster two-way communication amongst
the Company, its Shareholders and potential investors,
and to update them abreast of the latest industry updates,
corporate communications and the Group’'s announcements
and business development in a timely manner, the Company
has appointed two investor relation professionals as a formal
channel to respond to enquiries from Shareholders and the
public.
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CORPORATE COMMUNICATION AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The major task and objective of the Group's investor relations
is to clearly introduce the Group, including the business
positioning, existing operations and future development of
the Group, to the media, Shareholders, investors, analysts
and investment banks through different communication
channels. In future, the Group shall further enhance
communication with the media, Shareholders, investors,
analysts and investment banks on various aspects such as
development strategies, operation and management, financial
prospects and business operation through meetings, senior
management'’s participation in investor forums, conferences
and roadshows. The Group is confident in establishing
and maintaining a good relationship with the international
capital institutions through the continued enhancement of
information transparency.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There had been no change in the Company's constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter
of applying and complying with the CG Code of the Stock
Exchange but also about promoting and developing an ethical
and healthy corporate culture. We will continue to review and,
where appropriate, improve our current practices on the basis
of our experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any
views and suggestions from our Shareholders to promote and
improve our transparency are also welcome.

On behalf of the Board

Zhou Zheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2017
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The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) presents
its annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries at 31 December 2016 are
set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group's principal
activities as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance, including a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely
future development in the Group's business, can be found in
the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 7
to 17 of this annual report. No important event affecting the
Group has occurred since the end of the financial year under
review.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pages 85 to 86 and in the
accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend (2015: Nil) or a special dividend (2015: Nil) for the
year ended 31 December 2016. Details are set out in note 11
to the consolidated financial statements.

CLOSURE OF REGISTERS OF MEMBERS

FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND VOTE
AT THE FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE
COMPANY (2017 AGM")

The 2017 AGM is scheduled to be held on 2 June 2017 For
determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2017
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 29 May 2017 to 2 June 2017 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be
registered. In order for a Shareholder to be eligible to attend
and vote at the 2017 AGM, all transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited of Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
26 May 2017
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities (including
both continuing and discontinued operations) of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited consolidated financial statements and reclassified/
restated as appropriate, is set out below. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

BBERBE

TXFr#EAREE B a2 EEZA G5
BRUIEFESHNE EH2I 2 AEE
RBEREABFEZFEREERARLZ
B2 (BRFELRDRIEEEER) AR
W BB HI B |mER 2 — 80 -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A3MALEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
20165 20154 20144 20134 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TEL TET TEL TET
RESULTS ES: |
REVENUE WA 66,403 136,708 99,016 142,507 153,940
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE BRET S B Al
INCOME TAX Al (F8) 185,129 874,884 (154,630) 30,333 96,910
INCOME TAX EXPENSE FEBRAX (129,862) (256,015) (45) (1,529) (920)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FORTHEYEAR KA R#H AR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS EREAN/ (HR)
OF THE COMPANY 45,456 551,825 (143,597) 28,804 95,990
31 December
12A31H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
2016 20154 20144 20134 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET TET FTET TET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREHE
Total assets BEE 10,201,210 7,975,747 6,298,517 2,856,290 1,578,687
Total liabilities meE 7,388,972 5,183,565 4,858,359 1,271,690 25,585
Total equity s 2,812,238 2,792,182 1,440,158 1,584,600 1,553,102
Total liabilities and total equity BEERERBH 10,201,210 7,975,747 6,298,517 2,856,290 1,578,687
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of
the Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

Details of movements in the properties under development
for sale of the Group during the year are set out in note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, WARRANTS AND SHARE
OPTIONS

Details of movement in the share capital and warrants of
the Company during the year are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

There were no outstanding share options throughout the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related transactions undertaken in the ordinary
course of business by the Group during the year are set out
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. Saved as
disclosed therein, none of these related party transactions
constitutes a connected transaction or a continuing connected
transaction of the Group as defined in and required to
be disclosed under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Group confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-laws of the Company or the laws of Bermuda which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing Shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 89 to 91
respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company's reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 (as amended from time to time),
amounted to approximately HK$1,771,914,000 (2015:
HK$1,758,572,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company (“Directors”) during the year
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Zhou Zheng
Lam Yu Yee, Benjamin (appointed on 18 January 2017)
Liu Li (resigned on 21 June 2016)
Yang Hongguang
Lin Guoxiong (appointed on 13 July 2016)
Zhu Ling (appointed on 21 June 2016
and resigned on 18 January 2017)
Chan Tak Kwong

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Li Chak Hung

Meng Xiaosu

Yang Buting

Zhao Daxin

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 86(2), Mr Lam Yu
Yee, Benjamin and Mr. Lin Guoxiong shall hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

In accordance with the Company’'s Bye-laws 87(1) and (2),
Mr. Yang Hongguang, Mr. Yang Buting and Mr. Zhao Daxin
shall retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

DIRECTORS" SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM")
has an unexpired service contract with the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, every Director or other
officers of the Company acting in relation to any of the affairs
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which he may incur or sustain in or about the execution of his
duties in his office. The Company has arranged appropriate
insurance cover in respect of legal action against its Directors
and officers.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year under
review.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs") were
appointed for a specific term of three years but subject to the
relevant provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company or any
other applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or
retire from their office.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, Mr. Zhou Zheng, had the following
interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
and its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO:

Number of shares
and underlying
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Notes:

1. This includes interests in (i) 182,903,181 shares of the Company,
and (ii) convertible bonds (upon exercise of the conversion rights

attached to which, 278,488,823 shares will be alloted and issued by
the Company) of the Company held by SkyOcean Investment Holdings
Limited (“SkyOcean Investment”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Knowledge Silicon Valley Limited. Knowledge Silicon Valley Limited
was owned as to 80% by Sheng Bang Holdings Limited (“Sheng
Bang"), which in turn was wholly-owned by Mr. Zhou Zheng. By virtue
of the SFO, each of Mr. Zhou Zheng, Sheng Bang and Knowledge
Silicon Valley Limited was deemed to be interested in the shares and
underlying shares owned by SkyOcean Investment.

2. All interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2016, none of
the then Directors and chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (”Listing Rules”).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business
that competes or competed or is or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the Group's business at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2016 and as at the
date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

During the year and as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors of the Company had any personal interests in the
options to subscribe for shares in the Company’'s former
ultimate holding company, AGL, granted under the share
option scheme of AGL nor in the warrants of the Company's
former direct holding company, APL, to subscribe for the
shares of APL.

Save for the 14,155,527 units of warrants of the Company
held by SkyOcean Investment, which have all been exercised
before their expiry date of 4 March 2016, at no time during
the year was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2016, the following Shareholders had
interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO:

Number of shares
and underlying

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

BERODIEZ2LZH

RAREERNREZE2016F12 8318  #HEAR
DREBR AR B AIRKIZER AR EE
RIEE A S EERER R L 2 BRES
AR R BRI EIZ R A R A E 2 2%
BER - BEEAEAEZ URBEHE S
E sk B A thE 2 B o

B KRB B AN B]14,155,52717) 52 B i
F (D R2016F3848 2 @ B BRRT&ETT
LN/ R ol /N R R e G )=
AR F R B R BIRAE E A ER R
AL FEBERLESA QB SREAT
A AEEE 2 BRD S EHFMER -

FERRREMALTRRGO R
MERD 2 EER AR

2016512 A31H » IRIBFEH M E 15015
BOIEMEMFE 2 S LM EBEAR
RIS R ARRER (DM 2 AR B AN T ¢

Approximate % of
the relevant issued

Name of shareholders Nature of interests shares held share capital Notes
REROR EEHERTRAZ
RRE B EEME HEROHE R i 5
Knowledge Silicon Valley Limited Interest of controlled corporation 461,392,004 175.96% 1
HAEABRAR REHEE 2w
Sheng Bang Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 461,392,004 175.96% 1
("Sheng Bang")
BRERER AR REHEEz Ba
(TB#]1)
Zhou Zheng Interest of controlled corporation 461,392,004 175.96% 1
A REHEEz BR

Annual Report 2016 £

13



74

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ExERsE

Notes:

1. This includes interests in (i) 182,903,181 shares of the Company,
and (ii) convertible bonds (upon exercise of the conversion rights

attached to which, 278,488,823 shares will be alloted and issued
by the Company) of the Company held by SkyOcean Investment,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Knowledge Silicon Valley Limited.
Knowledge Silicon Valley Limited was owned as to 80% by Sheng
Bang, which in turn was wholly-owned by Mr. Zhou Zheng. By virtue
of the SFO, each of Mr. Zhou Zheng, Sheng Bang and Knowledge
Silicon Valley Limited was deemed to be interested in the shares and
underlying shares owned by SkyOcean Investment.

2. All interests stated above represent long positions.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE
LISTING RULES

The Group entered into subscription agreements containing
covenants relating to specific performance of the controlling
shareholders of the Company which were subject to
announcement disclosure under Rule 13.18 of the Listing
Rules and requirements of disclosure in this annual report
under Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules, the details of which are
set out below:

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Convertible
Bonds | and the Bonds | and Il, which details are set out
in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements, at all
times throughout the terms of the Convertible Bonds | and
the Bonds | and Il, (a) the controlling shareholders, namely
SkyOcean Investment and Mr. Zhou Zheng, shall maintain an
aggregate beneficial ownership (directly or indirectly) of not
less than 51% in the issued share capital of the Company on
a Fully-Diluted Basis; (b) SkyOcean Investment shall not (i)
exercise any of its rights to convert all or any portion of the
Charged Existing CB into Shares; and (i) amend any terms or
conditions of the Existing CB Sale and Purchase Agreement,
the Existing CB Terms and Conditions, the Uncharged Existing
CB Terms and Conditions and the Charged Existing CB Terms
and Conditions; and (c) Mr. Zhou Zheng shall remain as a
Director and the Chairman of the Company. A breach of such
covenants constitutes an Event of Default.
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As at the date of this annual report, (a) SkyOcean Investment
and Mr. Zhou Zheng beneficially owns approximately 69.49%
of the issued share capital of the Company; (b) SkyOcean
Investment has not (i) exercised any of its rights to convert
all or any portion of the Charged Existing CB into Shares;
and (i) amended any terms or conditions of the Existing CB
Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Existing CB Terms and
Conditions, the Uncharged Existing CB Terms and Conditions
and the Charged Existing CB Terms and Conditions; and (c)
Mr. Zhou Zheng remains as a Director and the Chairman of
the Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group has endeavored to comply with laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection and adopted
effective environmental measures to ensure that the
conducting of the Group's business meets the applicable
construction standards and ethics in respect of environmental
protection.

The Group adheres to environmental sustainability from
office throughout the property portfolio. As a responsible
developer, the Group strives to ensure minimal environmental
impacts by carefully managing its energy consumption,
water usage, property design and waste production. In
addition, we engaged construction contractors with sound
environmental protection and safety track records and have
closely monitored the project at every stage to ensure the
construction process is in compliance with environmental
protection and safety laws and regulations, and would require
construction contractors to immediately resolve any defect or
noncompliance, where necessary. For further details, please
refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence
to applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those
have significant impact on the Group. The Audit Committee
is delegated by the Board to monitor the Group's policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and such policies are regularly reviewed. Any
changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations are
brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operation units from time to time.

As far as the Company is aware, the Group has complied
in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2016.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP’S
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
WORKPLACE QUALITY

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does not
discriminate on the basis of personal characteristics. With an
aim to enhancing the quality of the Board's performance by
diversity, the board diversity policy was adopted. Details of
such board diversity policy are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report — Board Diversity Policy”.
Further, the Group has employee handbooks outlining terms
and conditions of employment, expectations for employees’
conduct and behaviour, employees’ rights and benefits. The
Group establishes and implements policies that promote a
harmony and respectful workplace.

The Group provides on the-job training and development
opportunities to enhance its employees’ career progression.
Through different trainings, staff's professional knowledge
in corporate operations, occupational and management skills
are enhanced. The Group also organised charitable and staff-
friendly activities for employees, such as annual dinner, to
promote staff relationship.

The Group provides a safe, effective and congenial
working environment. Adequate arrangements, trainings
and guidelines are implemented to ensure the working
environment is healthy and safe. The Group provided health
and safety communications for employees to present the
relevant information and raise awareness of occupational
health and safety issues.

The Group values the health and well-being of its staff.

In order to provide employees with health coverage, its
employees are entitled to medical insurance benefits.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP'S OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group maintains good relationships with existing and
potential customers as understanding of the market trends
would enable the Group to monitor and review the credit
quality of the customers and timely adjust its operating
strategies, which are crucial to the development and success
of the Group. The Group places effort to build up and
maintain good relationships with various commercial banks
and financial institutions as the businesses of the Group
are capital intensive nature and require on-going funding to
maintain continuous growth.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no
material and significant dispute between the Group and its
financial institutions and/or customers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Details of the Directors’ and senior management emoluments
and of the five highest paid individuals in the Group are
set out in notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments payable to Directors will depend on their
respective contractual terms under their employment
contracts or service contracts as approved by the Board
on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee,
having regard to the Company's operating results, individual's
performance and comparable market statistics.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the
Group's five largest customers accounted for 42.81% of
the Group's total revenue for the year and the revenue
attributable to the Group's largest customer included therein
amounted to 9.82%. The aggregate purchases attributable
to the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 33.17%
of the Group's total purchases for the year. The purchases
attributable to the Group's largest supplier amounted to
17.54% of the Group's total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more than
5% of the Company's issued share capital, had a beneficial
interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or
suppliers.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares

on the Stock Exchange during the year ended 31 December
2016.

DONATIONS

The Group made no charitable donations during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 44 to 66.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is
confirmed that a sufficient public float of more than 25% of
the issued capital of the Company has been maintained as at
the date of this report and at all times during the year ended
31 December 2016.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting period are set out in
note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Company has appointed Messrs, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) as auditors of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual

general meeting to re-appoint Deloitte as the auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhou Zheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SKYOCEAN INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
ARAFBEBRERARLTF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
SkyOcean International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 85 to 204, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
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in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BREITER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RITHEFS PN MEEFARESEE

Valuation of investment properties

REMRZMEE

We identified the valuation of investment
properties as a key audit matter because the
valuation process is based on an estimation
of future results, a set of assumptions and
a determination of key inputs, which are
judgmental. Any changes to these inputs may
have a significant impact on the fair value.
Management determined the fair value of the
Group's investment properties at 31 December
2016 with the assistance of an independent
external valuer.
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Details of the investment properties and the
related key estimation uncertainty are set out in
notes 18 and 4, respectively, to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Our procedures in relation to management’s
valuation of investment properties included:
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Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the external valuer engaged by
the management;
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Obtaining a copy of valuation report prepared
by the external valuer and discussing with
the external valuer together with our internal
valuation specialists to understand the basis of
determination of valuation;
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Challenging the external valuer the
methodologies and judgments used in
valuing the investment properties with the
assistance of our internal valuation specialists
and obtaining the market evidence that the
external valuer used to support the key inputs;
and
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Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures
of the fair value measurement of
investment properties including the fair
value measurement hierarchy, the valuation
technique and significant unobservable inputs
in the consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BAGBAEHE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYGBARE

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the content of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
— continued

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BAGBAEHE

BB TS E S O B I AR R
EHNEE-&

s HERRAKELESHERNRKE
M A - RIBPTEREZER
BEEAFERSHIBEAAHENE
AIHEEN - e A e gss B5E
MREKERNELETRRE - IR
RTRB/FEERTREE N BB L
BEZBMBETIRBEREIZA
HH B HmRRFOARERE -BREBH
MRENR  BHERTATTHE R « K77
M AEREENZ AR E B EAEUS
HIBEIZREIR ° AT - R FHK BN A

REH BEEETRBELE-

o  FHAAUMBEHmARMNERIIHmSA
EENAT  BRRE URAHTT
BERERTFRRR ZFEIR -

o Bt ERERNERAEXKEBHNNB
EMERZRIEENBRER A
BHAHUBHRERER -KATAR
SEFEZNTR BB MRIT ANTR
BERERAERHEE

AITEDRIEE R (BB B8
RBEZERERECERBR AFH
B ERATTERZBIZT 3560 R A% Hl A
EAIERERPE

Annual Report 2016 &

83



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYGBARE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
— continued

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Yam Siu Man.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2017
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CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EHEsREMGE NS &

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & 2016512831 H IFFE

2016 2015
20165 20154
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 FRT FET
(Re-presented)
(FE7)
Continuing operations REREEK
Revenue A 5 12,849 58,975
Cost of inventories sold BEFERE (4,238) (37557)
Other income Hiplg A 8 297 3,298
Gain on fair value change of REMENBER
investment properties € 18 511,483 1,019,615
Staff costs BIRA 10 (33,578) (22,002)
Depreciation e (3,383) (1,736)
Finance costs BB ER 7 (154,823) (41,391)
Exchange loss, net B i 5185 58 (45,922) (494
Investment income HEWA 179 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FMBAR Mk - 1,941
Other expenses Hipfx (104,228) (108,254)
Profit before tax BR BRI A 178,636 872,395
Income tax expense PSR 9 (129,862) (256,015)
Profit for the year from REFERSEER
continuing operations F AR 10 48,774 616,380
Discontinued operations BRIEREEK
Profit for the year from RECRIHEEEB L
discontinued operations FNm T 12 6,493 2,489
Profit for the year F R 55,267 618,869
Other comprehensive (expense)/ Hinire (B%), W
income:
Item that will not be reclassified HETEEHPEZ
subsequently to profit or loss: BRzEE:
Exchange differences on translation BEREVNNEBEEL
to presentation currency bE H =5 (157,651) (132,245)
Items that may be reclassified HEQSEHIEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BEZER:
Exchange differences on BEGINEBTBERE
translation of foreign operations EEZERER 21,279 15,505
Reclassification adjustment-transfer EFDEAR-NEE
translation reserve to profit or MBARRNERLERES
loss upon disposal of subsidiaries Bz 5,781 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EHfREEREMGERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z=2016F12 A31H IF FE

2016 2015
20165 20155
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE FTAER FHET
(Re-presented)
(L&)
Profit for the year attributable to RAREBAEEFEA
owners of the Company gl
- from continuing operations —REBEEEEK 38,963 549,336
— from discontinued operations —REBRIEEER 6,493 2,489
45,456 551,825
Profit for the year attributable to FERHIMEREEER
non-controlling interests iyl
- from continuing operations —RERBERLER 9,811 67,044
9,811 67,044
Total comprehensive (expense)/ EREE (BX) ki
income for the year e (75,324) 502,129
Attributable to: FER:
Owners of the Company KRARHEBA (82,238) 437928
Non-controlling interests JEPEHI S 6,914 64,201
(75,324) 502,129
Earnings per share BREF 15
From continuing and REFELERDKL
discontinued operations mEEK
- Basic —HK HK$0.174378 Tt  HK$2.3448% ¢
- Diluted — 48 HK$0.1741% T HK$2.2079/8 7T
From continuing operations REFESEER
- Basic —&K HK$0.149478 T HK$2.3343% T
- Diluted — 85 HK$0.149278 Tt  HK$2.1980/%8 7T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
© i 8 3% K R &

At 31 December 2016 72016512 A31H

2016 2015
20165 20154
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FBT FAETT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BB KEE 16 18,244 12,999
Investment properties K"EME 18 5,167,218 4,014,180
Other long term assets EMmEHEE 21 14,189 1,194
5,199,651 4,028,373
Current assets REBEE
Properties under development for ZEH{EEYE
sale 17 2,093,097 1,961,867
Completed properties held for BRTRHEME
sale and other inventories LEMFE 403,325 663,592
Trade receivables H 5 WA 19 4,631 4,002
Other receivables, deposits and HEM I EIs ek
prepayments TR SRIE 20 992,411 938,381
Pledged bank deposits [RERiERPER=N 3,589 -
Other current assets HtREhEE 21 462,238 137,269
Bank balances and cash RITHESB LR 22 1,042,268 242,263
5,001,559 3,947374
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables and B REMBANRER
accruals TER I 23 917,685 449,420
Amounts due to related companies JESEEEE A BIFIA 34(e)i) 199,129 900,579
Tax payable FESTIE 1,841 10
Deferred income FEIEW 25 - 1,236
Bank and other borrowings — RITREAMEE—
due within one year —FAEIE] 24 1,218,040 2,102,819
2,336,695 3,454,064
Net current assets REBEEFE 2,664,864 493,310
Total assets less current liabilities A EERAEBAE 7,864,515 4,521,683
Non-current liabilities kREBERE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBA G 26 351,193 244,403
Bank and other borrowings — RITREMEE—
due after one year —F 1B EIE 24 2,768,771 -
Convertible bonds and bonds AR ESNRES 25 1,932,313 1,485,098
5,052,277 1,729,501
NET ASSETS EEFRE 2,812,238 2,792,182
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BHBBRR R

At 31 December 2016 720165512 A31H

2016 2015
2016 20164
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FHET
Equity R

Share capital [N 27 26,222 24,646
Reserves G 2,723,531 2,698,474

Equity attributable to owners of NATHER AR
the Company 2,749,753 2,723,120
Non-controlling interests I 128 1) 1 2 62,485 69,062
TOTAL EQUITY T = 4278 2,812,238 2,792,182

The consolidated financial statements on pages 85 to 204 58522048 2 AHEHEHREN 201743829
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of H&EEESIERFRETIE TR TIES

Directors on 29 March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: RERFRE:
ZHOU ZHENG CHAN TAK KWONG
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
AR BRIE K
Ea EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SHExEME
For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20165F12 831 H IFFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

LNEE LN L $5
Equity
Convertible attributable
Statutory bonds  Exchange to non-
Share Share surplus Other equity translation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
FEHH
B EEEH 2t TRRES HNERD ®E BRER B
A &fE i e EERR 1] gl @t B ag
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TEx TEx T T TiER TiEn TiER TER
(note a)
(Btita)

At 1 January 2016 201651 A18 24,646 259,584 67974  (643,958) 12327718  (116,173) 1,803,329 2,723,120 69,062 2,792,182
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - - 45,456 45,456 9,811 55,267
Reclassification adjustment- ENABREE-

transfer translation reserve to RILERB AR

profit or loss upon disposal of BERLERE

subsidiariesinote 37) 28 (M##37) - - - - - 5,781 - 5,781 - 5,781
Exchange differences on BMEEEZER

translation E3 = = = = - (133,475) - (133,475) (2,897)  (136,372)

Total comprehensive (expensel/ — EREGA (BX)/
income for the year figntat - - - - - (127694) 45456  (82,238) 6914 (75324)

Deemed contribution on disposal of H&—FEHBARZ
a subsidiary (note 37) RIERR (H37) - - - 4,141 - - - 4141 - 410

Transfer to reserve ARERE - - 28,276 - - - (28,276) - - -

Non-controlling interests arising ki — &l B2 7
on the establishment of EE 2 F I
a subsidiary (note c) & (M) - - - - - - - - 17218 17218

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) EM B2 7

(Fi5¥36) - - - (4,010) - - - (4,010) - (4,010)

Acquisition of non-controlling [ E3udlie- i
interests (note b) (Kizth) - - 3,856 9,495 - (1,049) 18,407 30,709 (30,709) -

Exercise of warrants (note 27) T RREE

(KizE27) 1,576 76,455 - - - - - 78,031 - 78,031

At 31 December 2016 R2016£12A318 26,222 336,039 100,106  (634,332) 1,327,718  (244,916) 1,838,916 2,749,753 62,485 2,812,238
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EHERSBR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z=2016F12 A31H IF FE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

ARRHEBAELER

Equity

Convertible attributable

Statutory bonds  Exchange to non-
Share Share surplus Other equity translation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity

FERIE
Ry EE&H b THRES  SNERD RE ERER #a

e B i BE  EEER il ekl it ki a8
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT THT TR THT TAT

At 1 January 2015 #2015%1 418 22,299 99,232 - - - (2,276) 1,319,478 1,438,733 1,425 1,440,158
Profit for the year EEA - - . . . o BHISH 551825 67044 618,869
Exchange differences on BREEEZENR

translation 8 - - - - - (13897 - (13,897) (2,843)  (116,740)

Total comprehensive income FREEREEE

for the year - - - - - (113897) 551,825 437928 64,201 502,129

Recognition of equity component A B E %

of convertible bonds Eands - - - - 1327718 - - 1,327718 - 1327718
Deemed distribution to the owner A2 A H AJEH
of the Company (note d) RESE (FrsEd) - - - (682,298) - - - (682,298) - (682,298)

Disposal of partial interestand ~ (HEHHEER
capital contribution from non- FERRREE

controlling shareholder (note d) ~ (ffi3d) - - - 38,340 - - - 38,340 3,436 41,776
Transfer to reserve BEERE - - 67974 - - - (67974) - - -
Exercise of warrants TERRES 518 25,234 - - - - - 25,752 - 25,752
Issue of new shares BOER 1,829 138,071 - - - - - 139,900 - 139,900
Transaction costs attributable to ~ BTHEZ X 5E R

issue of shares - (2,953) - - - - - (2,953) - (2,953)
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12 8318 24,646 259,584 67974  (643,958) 1,327718 (116,173) 1,803,329 2,723,120 69,062 2,792,182
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Notes:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EHERERR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20165F12 831 H IFFE

In accordance with the Articles of Association of all subsidiaries
of SkyOcean International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) that
established in the People's Republic of China (the “PRC"),
subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation
to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of
the registered capital. Transfer to this reserve must be made before

those

distributing dividends to equity holders. The statutory surplus reserve
can be used to make up for previous year's losses, expand the existing
operation or convert into additional capital of the subsidiaries.

During the current year, additional capital injection of RMB150,000,000
was made by the Group to a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, the equity interests of which held by the Group is increased
from 90% to 96.02% accordingly. The carrying amounts of the Group's
interest and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interest in the subsidiary.

During the current year, the Company and a non-controlling shareholder
established a subsidiary, the capital contribution of HK$174,375,000
and HK$17,218,000 were made by the Company and the non-controlling
shareholder. The equity interests held by the Company and the non-
controlling shareholder are 90% and 10% respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, a non-controlling
shareholder contributed RMB35,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$41,776,000) into Beijing SkyOcean COMB+ Technology Co., Ltd
("Beijing SkyOcean COMB+",
Company). The carrying amounts of the interest held by a subsidiary
of the Company and the non-controlling interest in Beijing SkyOcean

a wholly-owned subsidiary of the

COMB+ were adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in Beijing SkyOcean COMB+. The difference amounting to
HK$38,340,000 between the amount by which the 8% non-controlling
interest was adjusted and the fair value of the consideration received
was recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company since the change in the Group’s ownership interest in
Beijing SkyOcean COMB+ did not result in the Group losing control
over Beijing SkyOcean COMB+ and should be accounted for as equity
transaction.

On 24 December 2015, the Company issued a five-year term RMB
zero coupon convertible bonds to the immediate holding company
of the Company for settlement of certain amount payable to a
related company. The fair value of the convertible bonds at the date
of issuance in excess of the amount due to the related company
extinguished of RMB540,441,000 (equivalent to HK$682,298,000)
was accounted for as a deemed distribution to the immediate holding
company of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2015.

GEE

RIBRFEBRZERERQR ([ARR]) R
EARANE ([FE])KIZAEHBLIR
MARER ZEMBARAERBBZE
FM0%ZEEERBRFER EEREED T
& ARE50% - EREFEHAREAERFTAA
DK BRI R ERBFEER AR B
BEFREZER BRRAEHREENE
REREINEA

RAEE AEERARRZ —FEFE2EH
BRI EE ARM150,000,0000T ' ANEE
P 5 AR #E MR FE £ 90 % 32 £ 96.02% ° A& E 2
s RIEESIM LR REELS AT AR
HERMBRRIEE S EE -

RAFE  AREE - ZIFERBRK T
—FHMERE ARE RFERBERTE
174,376,000/% 7T }217,218,000/8 JT » A A &)
R 3 1 S S SR P 45 S 90 B 390 % 12 10%

REE2016F12A31B L FE - —RIEER
REMIE R RFEEREAER AR ([ERX
HBE])  ARRREWNBRAR) EEARE
35,000,0007T (FHE R #141,776,0007% 7T )
BARNE B AR ENER KRNIt
RARFEEOEEGMEEZEEHEEER
BUARMEERIERRFBEENARERSE
o ARAEERILRRFRENEERE
S TEERAEEREHERKRFEL
EHl B EELSRIEEHIE R AR S
FHE D WK BN R R EE 238,340,00078
TAEREEREZERLEBRAARES
AN WEARARERS -

R2015F 128248 - AR RIERA R R H#E
TRABIBETHAFHRATEARBEAIRRKE
FUBREMN—MEBARZE THRE-
REE2015F12A31H IEFE - A Bk E
FRETABZARNBEREN BB AR
KB E 2 AR%540,441,0007T (A E ®
682,298,000/ 7T ) ABR AR D Al M EEER
NEIRIR B 5B
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CONSOLUIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SHBRENRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z=2016F12 A31H I FE

2016 2015
2016F 20154
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FiE T
Operating activities REEE
Profit before tax FR 54 A& A
- continuing operations —RECEREE 178,636 872,395
— discontinued operations —ERIEEEEE 12 6,493 2,489
Adjustments for: Rk
Bank interest income RITHFEUA 8 (297) (3,244)
Gain on fair value change of REMENBEES
investment properties e (511,483) (1,019,615)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary HE—MHIBARZ
e (4,016) (1,941)
Finance costs B &M 7 154,823 41,391
Depreciation on property, Y E MR EITE
plant and equipment 16 3,745 2,382
Reversal of allowance for B 5 W RIR 2 RIR
doubtful trade receivables e - (84)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - WEREE
plant and equipment 21 10 75
Net exchange loss/(gain) &5 Es1E, (Ma) F5 33,548 (2,566)
Operating cash flows before RETEBESHERI 2
movements in working capital REHERE (138,541) (108,718)
Increase in properties under R YL
development (640,591) (137,200)
Increase in prepayment for TP R 2 TR IR
land use rights 0 (106,414) -
Increase in deposit received Y SHE B U 1 N
from sale of properties 511,681 -
Increase in trade receivables B Z FEWRIBIE N (629) (3,180)
Increase in other receivables, HAfEWRIE i e Rk
deposits and prepayments TR FRIBIE N (36,025) (12,381)
Decrease in trade and other B 5 REMENFRIENAKRTE
payables and accruals REIER D (2,013) (167,995)
Decrease in deferred revenue I FE A 2 Rk - (314)
Cash used in operations KEFAZRE (412,532) (429,788)
Income tax paid EFTSH (160) (867)
Net cash used in operating RETHFMARSFE
activities (412,692) (430,655)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
EHRERBE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20165F12 831 H IFFE

2016 2015
20164F 2015%F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FATT
Investing activities REEE
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEE—HENE AR 36 172 3,667
Disposal of subsidiaries & — I B A R 37 5,848 (633)
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE BWEREE
equipment 16 (10,161) (9,740)
Payment for acquisition of S AT IR E Y 2 508
investment properties 18 (479,985) (516,964)
Prepayment to a construction MEBEREMEMZEE
contractor for constructing ZSONEEEL T
investment properties 21 (6,215) -
Bank interest received EYERTTH B 297 3,244
Redemption of/(investment in) Eo, (ER)RSHES
liquidity funds 137,269 (137,269)
Redemption of held-to-maturity EOEFEERERHEE
investments - 150,667
Proceeds from disposal of HEDE - E R&E
property, plant and equipment Fri5 5008 - 1
Placement of pledged deposit to a FABERKFFHRES F
financial institution et 20 (116,896) (438,209)
Placement of pledged bank GFAREMRITER
deposits (3,589) -
Withdrawal of pledged bank RERE IR RITIFER
deposits - 411,866
Others HAh 1,194 -
Net cash used in investing RETBMARESFHE
activities (472,066) (5633,370)
Financing activities REEE
Exercise of warrants TR RIRIEE 78,031 25,752
Proceeds from issue of shares £ ﬁ%ﬁﬂxﬁfﬁe e - 139,900
Expenses on issue of shares BATHRR 2 32 %Eﬁﬁ - (2,953)
Interest paid BAFIE (251,315) (147540)
Repayment of a loan from a related EEm AT Bk
company - (186,737)
Proceeds from issue of convertible Z$17A[I2%ES N EH
bonds and bonds Z PTigsRIa 25 470,000 306,022
Payment of transaction cost on SR ITA AR E S
issue of convertible MiEH 2 R PHKA
bonds and bonds 25 (50,700) (5,793)
New bank and other borrowings BRI R EMEER
raised 5,036,875 438,209
Repayment of bank and other EERITRHMEE
borrowings (2,922,268) (390,102)
(Repayment of) advances from (BB s ARBR
related companies (700,392) 927353
Capital contribution from non- KA FFSIE R 2
controlling interest N1 17,218 41,776
Net cash from financing METEME2REFEE
activities 1,677,449 1,145,887
Net increase in cash and cash ReRBSESEYILINFEE
equivalents 792,691 181,862
Cash and cash equivalents at the REFAZRERBELEEY
beginning of the year 242,263 55,290
Effect of foreign exchange rate @ EXRSEIHE
changes 7314 5,111
Cash and cash equivalents at the RERHEREE
end of the year, represented by ZEYABTESBKE
bank balances and cash RE 1,042,268 242,263
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
© b B 3% ¥ 2 B G

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

1.

GENERAL

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda. The address of its principal place of business
is 11/Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company's shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”).

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries (together
with the Company, hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “Group”) were involved in the provision of
elderly care services, medical equipment distribution,
investment in financial instruments and property
development. During the year ended 31 December
2016, the Group disposed of certain subsidiaries that
were engaged in the business of provision of elderly
care services and medical equipment distribution
in Hong Kong. The result of these operations have
been presented as discontinued operations in these
consolidated financial statements (see note 12 for
details).

The immediate and ultimate holding company of the
Company is SkyOcean Investment Holdings Limited,
which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
("BVI") and beneficially owned as to 80% by Mr. Zhou
Zheng, a director and ultimate controlling shareholder
of the Company.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
("RMB"), and for the purpose of more convenience to
the readers of these consolidated financial statements,
the consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$").

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X /¥ Bl ZAZ B R A 7]

—RER

ARAR—ERBERETMR A
BRAF sHMP#EE R Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda ° 2~ 7] £ B4 23
Bh 2 HUAE A A B VE (5 2 1B 305 3T
EEBOINE c RR A 2R ES
BERSMERAR (1B L

o

=t

AKARBREER AT HE AT
GERARG [ AEE]) 2 E
DEBARMEZRY  DHEBER
B RECHTEARMERRE -RE
ZE2016F12A3MB LFE - AEEH
EETREBREREEZRGES
Lo tHB B EEFM B AR 5%
LEB 2 EBECRAEHYBEHRERE
P BB R I E TS (FI5 R MM
£12) ©

UN/NCI AR I8 S e OIS )i S
Bz ([REBRRES]) M
PRIz RAFREERAR AT Hi
RARZER MR R BRI
BEaEB80%

ARBZMEEEBARE (AR
1) BREHBAHMBHRER ZESR
R% - EEHIBHRERAET (I8
T 25



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB RM

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") that are relevant for
the preparation of the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the first time in the current year:
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Investment Entities. Applying
the Consolidation Exception

The application of the above new amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material effect
on the Group's financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") — continued
The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments’
HKFRS 16 Leases?
Amendments to Classification and Measurement
HKFRS 2 of Share-based Payment
Transactions’
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4

Insurance Contracts’

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture?®

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative?

HKAS 7

Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
HKAS 12 for Unrealised Losses?*

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate.

Except as described below, the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) anticipate that the
application of the above new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results nor
the financial position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB RM

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") — continued

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and
impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are:

o all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are
held within a business model whose objective
is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets, and
that have contractual terms that give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive
income. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair
value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12 A31H ILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") — continued

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are: — continued

° in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss
model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss
model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
In other words, it is no longer necessary for
a credit event to have occurred before credit
losses are recognised.

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2016, the
Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9 in
the future may have an impact on amounts reported
in respect of the Group's financial assets. Specifically,
application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have an
impact on the classification and measurement of the
Group's financial assets. The Directors are also of the
view that the expected credit loss model may result
in early provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred for the Group's financial assets measured
at amortised cost. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimation of the effect of HKFRS
9 until a detailed review has been completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") — continued

HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the
entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS
15 in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as
well as licensing application guidance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") — continued

HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS - continued

The Directors anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may have an impact on
the timing and amounts of revenue recognition in
respect of the Group's contracts with customers on
sales of properties. Specifically, HKFRS 15 requires
the allocation of total consideration to respective
performance obligations based on relative fair values.
Furthermore, revenue on sales of properties will be
recognised when customers obtain control over the
properties under HKFRS 15 as compared to upon
transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership
under HKAS 18. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS
15 until the Group performs a detailed review. The
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may also result
in more disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 7 DISCLOSURE
INITIATIVE

The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes. Specially, the
amendments require the following changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities to be disclosed: (i)
change from financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising
from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other
business; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange
rates; (iv) changes in fair values; (v) other changes.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with
earlier application permitted. The application of the
amendments will result in additional disclosures on the
Group's financing activities, specifically reconciliation
between the opening and closing balances in the
consolidated statement of financial position for
liabilities arising from financing activities will be
provided on application.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB RM

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and available-for-sale investment
which are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods or
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except
for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI EE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level
1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not they control an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION - continued

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

CHANGES IN THE GROUP’S OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN
EXISTING SUBSIDIARIES

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group's relevant components of equity including
reserves and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted after
re-allocation of the relevant equity components and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

CHANGES IN THE GROUP’S OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN
EXISTING SUBSIDIARIES — continued

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs).The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting of cost on investment.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY CLASSIFIED AS AN
ASSET ACQUISITION

Where an acquisition of a group of assets and liabilities
that does not constitute a business, the Group
identifies and recognises the individual identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating
purchase price first to the financial assets and financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated to other
individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis
of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB RM

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Revenue from sales of properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the respective
properties have been completed and delivered to the
buyers. Deposits and prepayments received from
purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for
revenue recognition are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Rental income from operating lease is recognised in
the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the relevant lease.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method, at the following rate per
annum:

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 15% to 33':%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and 15% to 33":%
office equipment

Medical equipment 20%

Computer equipment and ~ 20% to 33':%
software

Motor vehicles 20% to 33'3%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB RM

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.

LEASEHOLD LAND AND BUILDING

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification
of each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to
the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the lease is classified
as an operating leases. Specially, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as "prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences on
monetary items receivable from a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to
occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in
the foreign operation), which are recognised initially
in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of
the Group's interests.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
group entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange fluctuation reserve. Exchange differences
arising from translation of a foreign operation to the
functional currency of the Company (i.e. RMB) are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
the foreign operation is disposed of whilst exchange
differences relating to translation from RMB to the
presentation currency of the Group are transferred
directly to retained profits. On disposal of a group
entity that is not a foreign operation, the exchange
differences accumulated in equity relating to the
translation of assets and liabilities of that group entity
into presentation currency of the Group are transferred
directly to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB RM

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes, including state-managed retirement benefits
schemes in the PRC and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme, are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

SHORT-TEM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave) after deducting any amount already
paid.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from the profit before
tax as reported in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
TAXATION - continued

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB RM

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
TAXATION - continued

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
to equity, in which case the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

Properties under development for sale which are
intended to be held for sale in the ordinary course
of business are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value and are shown as current assets.
Cost includes the cost of land, construction cost and
other development expenditure and other attributable
expenses. Net realisable value is determined by
management based on prevailing market conditions.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE AND OTHER
INVENTORIES

Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the
related land costs, development expenditure incurred
and, where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised.
Net realisable value is determined based on prevailing
market conditions.

Other inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & %2016F12 A31H ILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
properties under construction for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the
carrying amount of the investment properties under
construction.

The Group transfers a property from inventories
to investment property when there is a change of
intention to hold the property to earn rentals or/and
for capital appreciation rather than for sale in the
ordinary course of business, which is evidenced by the
commencement of an operating lease to another party.
Any difference between the fair value of the property at
the date of transfer and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit
or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12 A31H ILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans
and receivables and available-for-sale investments. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, other receivables, deposits, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment of financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & %2016F12 A31H ILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets — continued
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets that are either designated
as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans
and receivable, (b) held-to-maturity instruments or (c)
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair
value, with unrealised gains or losses recognised as
other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment
is derecognised or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to
profit or loss. Interests earned whilst holding the
available-for-sale investments are reported as interest
income and are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as investment income.
Dividend on available-for-sale investments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to
receive the dividend is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12 A31H ILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the counterparty;
or
o breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group's past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period, as well as observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade and other receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

When an available-for-sale financial investments is
considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through
profit or loss if any increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
- continued

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and
of allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amounts due to related companies, bank and other
borrowings and convertible bonds and bonds) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Convertible bonds

The component parts of the convertible bonds issued
by the Company are classified separately as financial
liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & %2016F12 A31H ILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
- continued

Convertible bonds - continued

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated by measuring the fair value of
similar liability that does not have an associated equity
component.

The conversion option classified as equity is
determined by deducting the amount of the liability
component from the fair value of the compound
instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included
in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured. In addition, the conversion
option classified as equity will remain in equity until
the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred from
convertible bonds equity reserve to share premium.
Where the conversion option remains unexercised at
the maturity date of the convertible bonds, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to retained
profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction cost that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to
the equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction cost relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability portion
and amortised over the period of the convertible bonds
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12 A31H ILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
- continued

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately
unless the derivative is designated and effective as a
hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of
the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics
are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the host contracts are not measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Generally, multiple embedded
derivatives in a single instrument are treated as a
single compound embedded derivative unless those
derivatives relate to different risk exposures and are
readily separable and independent of each other.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’'s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Derecognition - continued

An exchange between the Group and lender of debt
instruments with substantial different terms shall be
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability. The terms are substantially different if the
discounted present value of the cash flow under
the new term and discounted using the original
effective interest rate is at least 10% different from
the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flow of the original financial liability. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability
extinguished and the consideration paid, including non-
cash assets/equity instruments transferred or liability
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss except for debt
restructuring which involved entities under common
control when the substance of the transaction includes
deemed contribution to, or distribution by the Group.

When the contractual terms of a hybrid or compound
instrument are modified such that the revised terms
would result in a substantial modification from the
original terms, after taking into account all relevant
facts and circumstances including qualitative factors,
such modification is accounted for as derecognition
of the original hybrid or compound instrument and the
recognition of new instrument. The difference between
the carrying amount of financial liability derecognised
and the fair value of consideration paid or payable,
including any liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER
THAN GOODWILL

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is higher of fair value less cost of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & %2016F12 A31H ILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the Directors are
required to make estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

CRITICAL JUDGMENT IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The following are the critical judgments, apart from
those involving estimations, that management
has made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed
the Group's investment properties and concluded
that the Group's investment properties are held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time through rental
income. Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred
taxation on investment properties, the Directors have
determined that the presumption that investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered through sale is rebutted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12 A31H ILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
— continued

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

Investment properties

Investment properties were stated at fair values
based on the valuation performed by independent
professional valuers. In determining the fair values,
the valuers have based on a method of valuation
which involves certain assumptions and estimates of
market condition. In relying on the valuation report,
the Directors work closely with qualified external
valuer and have exercised their judgment and are
satisfied that the assumptions used in the valuation are
reflective of the current market conditions. Changes to
these assumptions would result in changes in the fair
values of the Group's investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or
loss reported in profit or loss.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31
December 2016 was approximately HK$5,167218,000
(31 December 2015: HK$4,014,180,000). More details
are set out in note 18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
— continued

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
— continued

Estimated net realisable value on properties under
development for sale

In determining whether allowances should be made for
the Group's properties under development for sale as
disclosed in note 17 the Group takes into consideration
the current market environment and the net realisable
value which is determined as the estimated market
value (i.e. the estimated selling price less estimated
selling expenses) less estimated costs to completion of
the properties. An allowance is made if the estimated
net realisable value is less than the carrying amount.
If the actual net realisable value on properties under
development is less than expected as a result of
change in market condition and/or significant variation
in the budgeted development cost, material provision
of allowances for properties under development for
sale may result.

Write-down of completed properties held for sale

Management performs a regular review on the carrying
amount of completed properties held for sale. Based
on management'’s review, write-down of completed
properties held for sale will be made when the
estimated net realisable value has declined below the
carrying amount.

In determining the net realisable value of completed
properties held for sale, management refers
to prevailing market data such as recent sales
transactions as basis for valuation. If the actual net
realisable value on completed properties held for
sale is less than expected as a result of change in
market condition, material provision of allowances for
completed properties held for sale may result.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 4. AESTHE R G T®E
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY EMHEEZETERE-—E&
— continued
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY BT REEERZZETERER
— continued — &
Income taxes ks
No deferred tax asset has been recognised on R EETRRIAR I G FIRE @ i &
the tax losses as disclosed in note 26 due to PEBTEEE (R M6 # 5 ) R
the unpredictability of future profit streams. The FIEFTSTH B E - BIEATS T B ERE
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends BERFBEANBE RS EZHR
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable R F R R ER -
temporary differences will be available in the future.
REVENUE 5. A
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year from REBFAREBIFELCEEBRAZ
continuing operations is as follows: DHTIAT
2016 2015
201645 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Re-presented)
(g&=7)
Continuing operations BEKEER
Sales of properties MEIEE 4,680 55,677
Property leasing MEMBE 4,131 3,298
Others H iy 4,038 -
12,849 58,975
SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. THEEH

Information reported to the Group's executive
directors, being the chief operating decision maker
("CODM"), for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focused on the
types of goods or services delivered or provided.

The Group's reportable and operating segments under
HKFRS 8 are (i) property development and leasing and
(ii) investment in financial instruments.

MAEBHRITES (X ELERE
E([ZERERKE]) ) 2WMAE
HERD I MHENBRBRZER

SRR NSz Em KRR

i}gl}
RIBE B WG LERIES A&

BZrAIEMEEN R (%
EREERRECHIA-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & %2016F12 A31H ILFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

As the elderly care services and medical equipment
distribution operations were discontinued upon
disposal of certain subsidiaries in the current year, the
segment information reported below does not include
financial information in respect of the discontinued
operations, which are disclosed in more details in
note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, the comparatives of segment information
have been re-presented. The Directors are of the view
that the Group intend to continue to engage in the
investment in financial instruments in the future upon
available resources allocated.

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue
and results by the two segments for the period under
review.

THEEN-&

HREERE MBERRED HES
EFALESTHBARKE R
B2 I E2m D RERL A
BREKUIEEXRK  PHER K
REHPBHRRMT2ZREESF
BeE P RER ZEBRBIEC K
BI -BERR AREREERIE
ERHAI D EREESEERT A
HIRE -

SEWAR % &
REREER - A EERES B
REEASTRIIT -

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ20165F12A31HILFE
Property Investment
development in financial
and leasing instruments Consolidated
MERRKEE RESEIA Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER
Continuing operations BECEER
Revenue from external REINBER ZWA
customer 12,849 - 12,849
Reportable segment revenue 7] & 2 A 12,849 - 12,849
Reportable segment results A& DIAE S 312,442 (6,833) 305,609
Unallocated income (note) Ko EUA (FizE) 179
Unallocated expenses (note) &7 B L (Ki&E) (127,152)
Profit before tax B 358 Al g ) 178,636

Note:  Other income and gain (including investment income) and
expenses (including certain staff remuneration, certain

depreciation, exchange losses, certain other operating

expenses and certain finance costs on convertible bonds and

bonds) are not directly related to each segmental activity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12 A31H ILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6.
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS - continued
For the year ended 31 December 2015

PTHEWAREE-E&E
HZE2015F12831B LEE

(Re-presented) (RES)
Property Investment
development in financial
and leasing instruments Consolidated
MEZREEE REEMIA et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FATT FAET FAT
Continuing operations FERSEEK
Revenue from external REIMBER WA
customer 58,975 - 58,975
Reportable segment revenue 7] i & 2 58U A 58,975 - 58,975
Reportable segment results AR & D IEEE 893,999 (4,473) 889,526
Unallocated income (note) KOBURA (HiFE) 1,962
Unallocated expenses (note) &7 E X (Kis) (19,093)
Profit before tax B 35 A g A 872,395
Note:  Other income and gain (including certain bank interest income feE: HEaA R (BEE TIRITH

and gain on disposal of a subsidiary) and expenses (including
certain staff remuneration, certain depreciation, exchange
losses and certain other operating expenses) are not directly
related to each segmental activity.

BURA R & — KB AR 2 YkE)
X (BEETEISHM 5T
E EABRERAETHEMEERS)
WHEREESHEBER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao B RM

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. DEER-E&
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES PHEERAE
As at 31 December 2016 A20165E12H31H
Property Investment
development in financial
and leasing instruments Consolidated
MERRRES RESHMTIA #et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Continuing operations BECEER
Reportable segment assets Al REDIEEE 10,052,865 7,733 10,060,598
Unallocated assets (note) AOBREE (M) 140,612
Total assets BEE 10,201,210
Reportable segment liabilities AI & D IEEE 5,097,414 577 5,097,991
Unallocated liabilities (note) KDl B{& (M) 2,290,981
Total liabilities BaEd 7,388,972
Note:  Other corporate assets (including certain property, plant and MeE: HEMRARAE (BEETYE BE

equipment, bank balances and cash, certain prepayments,
deposits and other receivables) and liabilities (including certain
other payables and accruals, convertible bonds and bonds, tax
payable and deferred tax liabilities) are unallocated.

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X /¥ Bl ZA AR A 7]
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6.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. PHER &
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - continued TEEENRAEB-&
As at 31 December 2015 (Re-presented) M2015F128318 (BEH)
Elderly Medical Property  Investment
care  equipment development in financial
service  distribution  and leasing instruments Consolidated
BE MEER RE
EEZRE R g ¢@IA B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET THT THET TET
Reportable segment assets  AJREDHEE
- Continuing operations ~RBEGEET - - 7799,752 4673 7804,425
- Discontinued operations ~ — B4 |HEE £ 21,479 132 - - 21,611
Unallocated assets (note) AABRAE (M) 149,711
Total assets BEE 7,975,747
Reportable segment liabilities A& EEE
- Continuing operations ~RBEGEET - - 3,436,094 443 3,436,537
- Discontinued operations ~ — B [FIEE £ 13,862 24 - - 13,886
Unallocated liabilities (note) A2 E&1E (FiF) 1,733,142
Total liabilities BEE 5,183,565
Note:  Other corporate assets (including certain property, plant and e HMAREE (BREETHE BE

equipment, bank balances and cash, certain prepayments,

deposits and other receivables) and liabilities (including certain

other payables and accruals, convertible bonds and bonds, tax

payable and deferred tax liabilities) are unallocated.

R RITEHRERE  BTEN
PR e REAMBYEGOR) REE
(BREETEMCENFRARERR
B -AmkERERES  BERER
EEBHEAE) I ARDE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. THEER-&
OTHER INFORMATION HER
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ20165F12A31HILFE

Property  Investment
development in financial
and leasing  instruments  Unallocated Consolidated

NEZRRK REZR

HE I& A2 E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Continuing operations FELEXR
Depreciation weE 2,718 519 146 3,383
Interest income FIS WA (297) - - (297)
Finance costs MBER 84,988 - 69,835 154,823
Capital expenditures BARY 489,813 333 - 490,146
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ2015F12A31HILFE
(Re-presented) (&%)
Property Investment
development in financial

and leasing instruments Unallocated ~ Consolidated

NEERR RELE

itk TA iy Fob
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET FAET AT
Continuing operations FELEXR

Depreciation neE 1,072 518 146 1,736

Loss on disposal of property, H&EME WE&ZEZ
plant and equipment, net BRFE 2 - - 2
Capital expenditures BARX 526,481 4 - 526,485
Interest income FIS WA (3,209) (6) (21) (3,236)
Finance costs HBER 41,391 - - 41,391
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. EEH-&
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION b 35 &
The Group principally engages in the business AEFEFERFRREMERER
of development and sales of properties, lease of HE MEHERRREERE 2
properties and provision of operational services in the o AREETTNBEARERESHT
PRC. The Group also engages in the investment in BE-
financial instruments in Hong Kong.
Information about the Group’s revenue from external BREAKR BB EERE 7 REBINS
customers from continuing operations is presented ZEIMAZ BRITIBRIE iRt E
based on the location at which the goods or services IR B 25| - BRAAREREIE
are delivered or provided. Information about the RBEEZENVRIBEEEMIERME
Group's non-current assets is presented based on the 250
geographical location of the assets.
The following table presents revenue and non-current T % 2F5EE 20164 K& 2015412 A31
assets, information from continuing operations for the HIFHEE AR E BRI IE RG2S > 5k
Group’s geographical areas for the years ended 31 EiEEma e b A RIERENEE
December 2016 and 2015. Blo
United
Year ended/as at 31 December 2016 PRC States  Hong Kong Total
BZE2016512A31ALEE/ il E3E Bi# @zt
#W2016%12831H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TET TET
Continuing operations BEREER
Segment revenue: ABHA
Sales to external customers HETHNEER 12,849 - - 12,849
Non-current assets: FERDEE: 4,955,385 242,863 1,403 5,199,651
Year ended/as at 31 December 2015 United
(Re-presented) PRC States  Hong Kong Total
BZ2015512A31ALEE/ th EH BB @t
R2015512 8318 (RE5) HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TET TAT
Continuing operations BELEXY
Segment revenue: DERA
Sales to external customers HETIHIDEP 58,975 - - 58,975
Non-current assets: EMBEE: 4,025,301 - 2,060 4,027,361
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS FEEFEHR

There is no major individual customers contributing
over 10% of the total revenue from continuing
operations of the Group for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

#H 220164 2201512 A31H 1F 45
B BMERBAEEFELEEKE
BRI A10% A EFREBEARF -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

1. FINANCE COSTS 1. B ER
2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T T
Continuing operations FEREER
Interest expenses on: FEBR:
- Bank and other borrowings and  — R 1T R E M £ E LA K&
loan from a related company REBB AR ZER 232,490 193,017
— Convertible bonds and bonds — AR EFLEF
(note 25) (H¥3E25) 155,141 5,512
Less: amounts capitalised W BEPEFEDERKE
in properties under MEERbLz &
development for sale and
investment properties (232,808) (157,138)
154,823 41,391

The capitalisation rates on general borrowings during
2016 is 9.45% per annum (2015: 2.98% per annum).

R20165F —RIEE 2 ER LR EFF
9.45% (20154 : F452.98% ) °

8. OTHER INCOME 8. Haug A

2016 2015
20164 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FET
(Re-presented)
(4&£E5))

Continuing operations BEREEK
Bank interest income RITHFE WA 297 3,236
Others HAb - 62
297 3,298
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. s
2016 2015
20164 2015%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T3 7T
Continuing operations FEREXEL
PRC Enterprises Income Tax: B EISH
Current EH 1,897 10
Deferred (note 26) AT (F5E26) 127,871 254,904
129,768 254,914
Land appreciation tax: T IR AT 94 1,101
129,862 256,015

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years. PRC
subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprises Income Tax
at 25% for both years.

The provision of land appreciation tax (“LAT") is
estimated according to the requirements set forth in
the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has
been provided at ranges of progressive rates of the
appreciation value, with certain allowable exemptions
and deductions.

RMEEFE  BENGSHGRME
FERTUE T2 16.5%:T 5 o R A F
JZ o B A R A R25% 2 B R &t
BRBEMEMEH-

T sBER ([ LB (ER ) B TS
RIZERRER SRR SRR AE
MIE T - TSR ER R IRIBER
HERERBEREG ABEE TR
KFBIRA °

Annual Report 2016 £

133



134

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE — continued 9.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before tax from continuing operations per the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

FreBipx—&

R EBIA HEA fHR R bR
A MR FIR AR R R
R BLATH R R T -

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FiETT
(Re-presented)
(&EY)
Profit before tax from continuing R EFEL L EE 2 BRI A
operations i 1) 178,636 872,395
Tax at PRC Enterprises Income Tax #ZH B 2GR L25%
rate of 256% (2015: 25%) FHE 2 B (20164
25% ) 44,659 218,099
Tax effect of expenses not TR 2 MG 2
deductible for tax purposes 41,735 25,492
Tax effect of income not taxable  HBERHUWAZ HETE
for tax purposes (6,206) (16,562)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERMBEBEB BT E
recognised 49,581 28,042
LAT T B E R 94 1,101
Tax effect of LAT THIEER M E (23) (275)
Others Hh 22 118
Tax charge for the year from REBELEEH TN
continuing operations FiIE 2 129,862 256,015
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10.

11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH B RRMEE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING 10, REGEREXEBZFA

OPERTIONS & F
2016 2015
2016%F 2015%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
(Re-presented)
(& E5)
Continuing operations BERKEER
Profit for the year from continuing REHEKLEEHZFNR
operations has been arrived at AR NI B IR R
after charging: EBC
Auditor's remuneration % B AT B 3,324 3,041
Loss on disposal of property, HEWME - -HEMEEZ
plant and equipment 518 - 2
Operating lease payments in T3 &FIE 2 & EME RN
respect of
Rented premises BEHEEME 8,773 6,803
Equipment B - 97
8,773 6,900
Net foreign exchange loss PE B85 58 45,922 494
Overdue penalty charges on land BRI+ HHE 2 @HASIHN
leases - 13,137
Staff costs, including directors’ BINAK BREEZWE
emoluments
Salaries and other benefits costs  # & K EMEF K K 29,828 21,031
Retirement benefit costs R ARAE B AR 3,750 971
33,5678 22,002
DIVIDENDS 1. RE
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year of M20164F (20154F « £% ) W B ok i
2016 (2015: nil), nor has any dividend been proposed FIRHEMAR B - B RS BR AR IR
since the end of the reporting period. EEZBIRMEMAR S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
© b B 3% ¥ 2 B G

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

12.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 11 July 2016, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent individual
(the "Purchaser”), pursuant to which the Group
conditionally agreed to sell and the Purchaser
conditionally agreed to purchase the entire issued
share capital of Cautious Base Limited (“Cautious
Base”, a subsidiary of the Company then) and its
subsidiaries (collectively known as “Cautious Base
Group”), which carried out all of the Group's elderly
care services and medical equipment distribution
operations. The disposal was completed on 26 August
2016, on which date the control of Cautious Base
Group was passed to the Purchaser.

The profit from the discontinued operations for the
current and preceding year is set out below. The
comparative figures in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
have been re-presented to re-classify performance
of the elderly care services and medical equipment
distribution operations as discontinued operations.

12.

BRIEKREEK

201657 AN B - ARE B B — 2
YA (TEFDIZEE H#
Bl AEBEKGRELERE
77 8 1§14 7] & B8 B Cautious Base
Limited ( [ Cautious Base | - AR
AIZHEBAR) REWEAR (5B
[ Cautious Base Group ] ) 2 & %52 %
TRA - EARNEEZFTA#EER
BREEREIHER -ZLES
THE 72201698 A26 H 5eAX + Cautious
Base Group Z X HlIHEN S BEEE S

AER E—FRERA KR IEEEERR
ZEMER T X - &R R E AR
BRERZHEBEIBEEEES UE
HOBIEREREEERK 2 EZR
BRBEREDHEB KA -

2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T T 7T
Profit from the discontinued FRARBERIELEER 2
operations for the year gl 2,477 2,489
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries  H & /B A &) 15 % 7
(note 37) (M$3E37) 4,016 -
Profit for the year from RECKRIEEEEE
discontinued operations F )5 7 6,493 2,489

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X /¥ Bl ZAZ B R A 7]



12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB RM

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - continued

The results of the discontinued operations for the
current and preceding year were as follows:

ERIEEEXK &
ARER F—FEY BARIHEEER Y
RERMN T

2016 2015
20164 2015%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T3 7T
Revenue WA 53,554 77733
Other income HAth e A 3,634 5,004
Staff costs B TR (29,600) (42,529)
Depreciation e (362) (646)
Other expenses HEfb (24,749) (37073)
Profit for the year F N F 2,477 2,489
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries  H &M B R & F1/5 4% 7
(note 37) (M$5E37) 4,016 -
Profit for the year from REERIEREER 2
discontinued operations F N Al 6,493 2,489
Cash flows from discontinued REEKRIEEEER 2
operations: e
Net cash inflows from RELEEE 2
operating activities ReMAFRE 2,371 2,886
Net cash outflows from KREKEES 2
investing activities Re ML FRE (297) (212)
2,074 2,674
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - continued 12. BERIEREXEK—E
Profit for the year from discontinued operations have KB B AR EETE 2 F s AN
been arrived at after charging (crediting): Br (BT A) THISIEEER:

2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T 7T
Auditor’s remuneration % 2560 B <& 78 116
Loss on disposal of property, LEME - BE &
plant and equipment HiE BB 10 73
Operating lease payments in THSHEEEHENTK
respect of
Rented premises MEHE 15,898 22,515
Equipment Bai 34 50
15,932 22,565

Reversal of allowance for doubtful & 5 & W FR I8 R BR B @ # O

trade receivables - (84)

Staff costs B TRA
Salaries and other benefits costs ¥4 & E {th 18 FI| ik 2 28,594 41,013
Retirement benefit costs RARAE R K A 1,006 1,516
29,600 42,529
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13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB RM

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the

EERBEITBRAEMS

ERET e VNS S T

Directors and the chief executive of the Company were BABZMEWT -
as follows:
2016
20165
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits contributions Total
FeR RIKEF
ik Herg#l BE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TET
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Zhou Zheng* AR E &> 120 - - 120
Mr. Zhu Ling (Note 1)* RBRE (Fie) * 63 - - 63
Mr. Liu Li (Note 1)* BNk & (M) * 57 - - 57
Mr. Chan Tak Kwong* BB S 120 - - 120
Mr. Yang Hongguang BREXEE 120 - - 120
Mr. Lin Guoxiong (Note 2)*  #REIH &4 (HizF2) * 56 - - 56
Independent Non-Executive BY F#HTES
Directors
Mr. Li Chak Hung FEMEE 145 - - 145
Dr. Meng Xiaosu REHELT 120 = = 120
Mr. Yang Buting BoELE 120 - - 120
Mr. Zhao Daxin WA % & 120 - - 120
1,041 - - 1,041
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao B RM

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12 A31H ILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

13. EEREESTHRAEMES

EMOLUMENTS - continued — &
2015
20155
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits  contributions Total
Hek RIER
ik Hib g RElk:E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Executive Directors BTE=E
Mr. Zhou Zheng* BB S 120 - - 120
Ms. Zhou Jin (Note 3)* A& &L (HFE3) * 3 - - 3
Mr. Liu Li* Elbt 120 - - 120
Mr. Chan Tak Kwong* s e 120 - - 120
Mr. Yang Hongguang BRY T (M4) *
(Note 4)* 117 - - 17
Independent Non-Executive BYE#TEE
Directors
Mr. Li Chak Hung TEERE 145 - - 145
Dr. Meng Xiaosu LEHELT 120 - - 120
Mr. Yang Buting BEERE 120 - - 120
Mr. Zhao Daxin A L& 120 - - 120
985 - - 985
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

13. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS - continued

*

Notes:

Certain executive directors of the Company received
emoluments from a related company of the Group for the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, part of which are in
relation to their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company. No apportionment has been
made as the Directors consider that it is not feasible to
apportion the amount between their services to the Company
and their services to the related company. The related
company is wholly owned by the immediate family members
of Mr. Zhou Zheng.

Mr. Zhu Ling was appointed and Mr. Liu Li was resigned as an
executive director on 21 June 2016.

Mr. Lin Guoxiong was appointed as an executive director on 13

July 2016.

Ms. Zhou Jin resigned as an executive director on 9 January
2015.

Mr. Yang Hongguang was appointed as an executive director
on 9 January 2015.

The emoluments shown above were mainly for the
Directors’ and chief executives’ services as Directors
of the Company.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the Directors
waived any emoluments for both years.

13. E%&%%ﬁﬁké%ﬁ

— &

*

(2)

(3)

(4)

REE2016%F 201512 A318 1t
FE ARARETHUTESHASE
— R A A R BN & - & RS B
SHBERTRAQRBH MG
ZHRIEERB- UESBEENES R
AAEERARBHEMNSES AE
EAEARFRUEBRBELHESRES
B A RIRE RS 2 &I T ]
T-BBBEARARREEZE
RRBEEWAZRA

R2016F6A210  KBAEEERT
ABRITESERI N AERTHRT
=%

R % R20165F7 A13H E &
ERMITES

A4 Z 20151 BOH BHI 1T
=%

B RN S ER2015F1 AOREEE
RPTEER-

EXFRZMEETEREE MRS
TBRAEBERARFEEES 2

PN
e

RMREFEAN TRITRABRE
EMERERIUERBE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

14.

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Of the 5 individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group during the year, none of them (2015: none)
were Directors and the chief executive of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in

14.

& & Fr i

FR -AEBNEEHFEALTHL
& (2016  |)EEFKARERE
THAE (HBE& BN EXHiE
13) » £ 567 (20154 : 561 ) & &

note 13 above. The emoluments of the 5 highest paid FATZMESHOT
individuals for the year (2015: 5 individuals) were as
follows:
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T T T
Salaries and other benefits e MHMET 3,585 3,944
Discretionary bonuses 15 AT 113 462
Retirement benefits scheme RIKTEFET B R
contributions 105 90
3,803 4,496
2016 2015
20164 20154
Bands: s E -
Nil - HK$1,000,000 ZHE T £1,000,0007% 7T 4 3
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 . &
1,500,000/ 7T 1 2
5 5

Bonuses are calculated based on the Group's or
respective member’'s performance for such financial
year.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the Directors or 5 highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.
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15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH B RRMEE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 15, SREXKEHRF

2016 2015
20164 2015%F
‘000 ‘000
¥R T B
Number of shares [ &vig 4=
Weighted average number of AUFtESRERRERNZ
shares for the purpose of InE ¥R
basic earnings per share 260,750 235,336
Effect of dilutive potential Frg R BR#EE Bk
ordinary shares in respect of wE
Warrants R 356 9,074
Convertible bonds AR ES - 6,507
Weighted average number of AUGFEEREERT
ordinary shares for the purpose DA 1 E AR &L
of diluted earnings per share 261,106 250,917
FROM CONTINUING AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS REFELERORIEREE
%
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share AARHREANEEERERN SR
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the IR TS BIRETE
following data:
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FABIT
Earnings 27
Profit for the year AU ESRELRZRNZ
for the purpose of F N
Basic earnings per share (profit (RRRER A
for the year attributable to FE A F R F))
owners of the Company) 45,456 551,825
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary B #EE@g 2 22
shares:
Interest on the convertible bonds A& (&% 2 | B
(note 25) (M$5E25) - 2,169
Profit for the year for the purpose Rt ESREEZF 2
of diluted earnings per share F N 45,456 553,994
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI EE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

15. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE - 15.
continued
FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
from continuing operations attributable to owners of
the Company is based on the following data:

BREXRBERN -&

REFEREXRK
RRFHA NGB FELEER
ZGREARFHERFIE T IIBE

AT -

2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$000 HK$'000
FBT FET
(Re-presented)
(&E5))
Earnings b=
Profit for the year attributable to 22 Al B A &R F K% T
owners of the Company 45,456 551,825
Less: profit for the year from WRERRIEEEER 2
discontinued operations FRmE A (HaE12)
(note 12) (6,493) (2,489)
Profit for the year for the purpose FUAGTE R B EFEKLE £
of basic earnings per share 2 EREREF 2
from continuing operations F R F 38,963 549,336
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BE# E L @M 2 F &
shares:
Interest on the convertible bonds A& (&% 2 Fl &
(note 25) (FF5E25) - 2,169
Profit for the year for the purpose FUAGTE R B EFER LXK
of diluted earnings per share ZEREERT 2
from continuing operations F Rk F 38,963 551,505

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for calculating the basic and diluted earnings per
share.

FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Basic and diluted earnings per share from discontinued
operations is HK$0.02490 (2015: HK$0.011) and
HK$0.02487 (2015: HK$0.010) per share respectively,
are based on the profit for the year from discontinued
operations of approximately HK$6,493,000 (2015:
approximately HK$2,489,000) and the denominators
detailed above for calculating basic and diluted
earnings per share.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for
the current year does not assume the conversion of
the Company’'s Convertible Bonds | and Convertible
Bonds Il since their assumed exercise would result
in an increase in earnings per share from continuing
operations.
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PR B EXEHR ARGt EERE
R BEENE R o

RECKRIERBEER
REERILCEER 2 BRERR
5% 2 7 9 51l £0.0249078 7T (2015
1 0.01178 7T ) }0.024877% 7t (2015
F:001087) HERKBEKIE
48 FET% 2 F s ) £96,493,0008
7 (20154F : 492,489,000/ 7T ) A &
X AR E SR EAR RS
BNz mEHE-

AHEAEE 2 BREEER NI ERER
WK N A 2 PR AR E 5 R AT R AR
B RASERRITESEEH
KEFBELEEXRB 2 BRAMEM-



16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. ME - BERRZRE

Furniture, Computer
fixtures equipment
Leasehold  and office Medical and Motor
improvements equipment equipment  software vehicles Total
HE HR-EER S
NEEE BLERE BERE RE# "E o
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TR TET TR TET TET TET
COST KA
At 1 January 2015 720151 /18 27671 7767 776 1,910 3,351 41,475
Additions NE 20 5,020 - 4,302 398 9,740
Acquisition of a subsidiary ~ WE—FRIN B A - - - 14 - 14
Disposals HE - (236) (6) (6) - (248)
Disposal of a subsidiary LE-BRBAH - (1) - (86) (257) (354)
Exchange realignment AR - (105) - (174) 63) (342)
At 31 December 2015 72015412 A31H 27,691 12,435 770 5,960 3,429 50,285
Additions NE 7,002 2,285 - 325 549 10,161
Acquisition of a subsidiary ~ WE—RHER ] - 17 - 83 676 776
Disposals HE - (133) (4) (9) - (146)
Disposal of subsidiaries HE—-HKERA (27599) (5,698) (766) (1,899) - (35962)
Exchange realignment RS (306) (480) - (271) (91) (1,148)
At 31 December 2016 12015F 124318 6,788 8,426 - 4,189 4,563 23,966
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 January 2015 2015461818 27125 4,938 751 1,704 637 35,155
Depreciation e 253 917 10 409 793 2,382
Eliminated on disposals B 5 - (160) (6) (6) - (172)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RIERR - - - (4) (5) 9
Exchange realignment ERAE - (28) - (1) (31) (70)
At 31 December 2015 72015F 124318 273178 5,667 755 2,092 1,394 37,286
Depreciation N 1,001 1,244 6 629 865 3,745
Eliminated on disposals LERHHE - (123) (4) (9) - (136)
Disposal of subsidiaries LE-BNBAH (27429) (4,908) (757) (1,872) - (34,966)
Exchange realignment EHAE (36) (77) - (42) (52) (207)
At 31 December 2016 720165124318 914 1,803 - 798 2,207 5,722
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At 31 December 2016 12016F 124318 5,874 6,623 - 3,391 2,356 18,244
At 31 December 2015 72015412 4316 313 6,768 15 3,868 2,035 12,999
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

17. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR 17. BEDFEYHE
SALE
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FABIT
Properties under development BRPFEEME
for sale 2,093,097 1,961,867
At the end of the year FR 2,093,097 1,961,867
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group pledged 20164 &2015F 12 A31H » A%
certain of its properties under development for sale, B HETFTERPAESYFEER -
details of which are set out in note 30. BB H M FE30 ©
The Group's properties under development for sale AEB7ERFSEMEMRNF
are situated in the PRC. Included in the amount - H &% 1E605,5687000/%8 T
are properties under development for sale of (20154 : 516,364,000/ JT ) 2 %
HK$605,587,000 (2015: HK$516,364,000) which are not BRHRSEME - AHEBEDETS
expected to be completed and available for sale within R|EHRET T ZEARETR
twelve months from the end of the reporting period. A HEEE -
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB RM

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REWE
HK$'000
T 7T
Fair value AREE
At 1 January 2015 720151 H1H -
Additions NE 3,167,027
Gain on fair value change of investment REMERAREBEES 2 W&
properties 1,019,615
Exchange realignment ME WS B (172,462)
At 31 December 2015 2015512 A31H 4,014,180
Transfer from completed properties HEADR THFEWE (M)
held for sale (note) 334,447
Additions NE 625,936
Gain on fair value change of investment WEMERARBEEZS 2 =
properties 511,483
Exchange realignment ME 5 3 B (318,828)
At 31 December 2016 7201612 831H 5,167,218

Note:  Amount represented the transfer from completed properties B 5 -

e B ARKLERER & LN

held for sale to investment properties during the current year
upon commencement of the operating lease agreements.

The Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals are measured using fair
value model and is classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group pledged certain
of its investment properties to certain bank and other
financial institutions to secure borrowings obtained
from the aforesaid bank and other financial institutions
(2015: to a trust fund company to secure borrowing
obtained from the aforesaid trust fund company),
details of which are set out in note 30.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties
as at 31 December 2016 were arrived at on the basis
of valuation carried out by Crowe Horwath (HK)
Consulting & Valuation Limited and CBRE Group Inc.
(2015: Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited), independent qualified professional valuers not
connected with the Group.

The Group engaged the third party qualified valuers
to perform the valuation. The Directors work closely
with the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model.

EAFERERIGENERRS
BEME-

AEERBELEHOFFERRES
Mgz WxEERIERARBERN
APECUDBEMIIRRREDE-

MR2016F 128318 - AEEME TR
TREMS Mg ERAES TIREY
¥ DMEAR Ll iR1T R E A5 i
EEREE Z &R (20154 : [a)—fH
EEE S AFTIEE MEAR Lt
AESARERERE ZER) 5
EAFTEES0

REBREYEN2016F12A318 2
ARBEIBERE®E (B8)E
AR AR AR R IBRIETER
(2015%F : E— KPR EHFHERE
EEMARAR)EITZHEENE
ZEF LN AR B ERE B
VA BREET G

AEBEREE=TT A BRI HAMET
HE - EREAERIMEFEEEY)
BHEAR S A 2 R E R R AREL 2
BARE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

18.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — continued

The fair values of completed investment properties
as at 31 December 2016 were determined based on
the income capitalisation method whereby the rental
income of contractual tenancies are capitalised for the
unexpired term of tenancies. The reversionary market
rent after the expiry of tenancies is also taken into
account.

Fair value of the investment properties under
development as at 31 December 2016 were derived
using the multiple valuation techniques, including
residual method and direct comparison method.
Residual method is essentially a means of valuing
the project by reference to its development potential
by deducting development costs together with
developer’s profit and risk from the estimated
capital value of the proposed development
assuming completed in accordance with the existing
development plans as at the date of valuation,
which duly reflected the risks associated with the
development. Direct comparison method is by
reference to market comparable with adjustments
to reflect the additions and locations of the subject
properties.

In measuring the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current
use.

The following table gives information about how
the fair values of these investment properties are
determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and
inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into
which the fair value measurements are categorised
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH B RRMEE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — continued 18. REYX-—&

AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 R20165E12 8318

Investment properties Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of unobservable

held by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) nput(s) to fair value
FEESECRENE AAEEESR HERGRIZEGAUE EATTBREAAYE FTUBRRABBRAAEECEE
The 4th Generation Level 3 Income capitalisation Term yield, taking into account of A slight increase in the term yield used
SkyOcean City - Completed method (term and yield generated from comparable would result in a significant decrease
(Carrying amount: reversionary approach)  properties and adjustment to reflect in the fair value measurement of the
HK$605,918,000, including properties the certainty of term income secured investment properties, and vice versa.
transferred upon commencement of and to be received, of 7%.

operating lease agreements)

REPAR-BRT (REE: £=E WABRIE THRE HRTHHENEEEZR  WAREEHUENA JeSBREnE
605,918,000 T BEEEALEH (EBRERE) BRARBBIERGROBKDRZ  AABEGEAETHR R2AHA
EHHEEREZNE) ERMAM L 2 HE - B7%
The key inputs are: Reversionary yield, taking into account A slight increase in the reversionary
(1) Term yield; annual unit market rental income and  yield used would result in a significant
(2) Reversionary yield; unit market value of the comparable decrease in the fair value measurement
(3) Market unit rent of properties, of 75%. of the investment properties and vice
individual unit; and versa.

(4) Level adjustment

IREARER: BB STRAHLENECFREN WARAERKENT BeERRENE
(1) BEYE: MHBEEMAREMLTE A75% ° DABEHERBTHR RZHA

(2) BB
(3) [ERIEAL 2 BB

ek
(4) BEEE
Market unit rent, using direct market A slight increase in the market unit rent
comparable and taking into account used would result in a significant
of time, location and other individual increase in the fair value measurement
factors such as size and quantum of of the investment properties and vice

properties, of RMB127/sq.m./month. versa.

TEBENES FRERTSUMRLEE WAFEMSEMASHA ASERRE
AR RER SN0 ENER MEALBEAEAELA RZHR-
PlmmEANREE BEAFTFAK
ARE1277T

Level adjustment on individual floors of ~ An increase in the level adjustment on
the property range from 40% to 60% individual floors used would result in a
on specific level. decrease in the fair value measurement

of the investment properties by a lower
percentage, and vice versa.

ERIMEEE RESE NTHTEEE WRRAHENEERLZEEAREN

240%%E60% © BeBRENZALBESEAREL
BAWKE R2HA-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao B R RM

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued 18. REVX-&

AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 — continued A20165F128318 — &

Investment properties Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of unobservable

held by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) nput(s) to fair value
AEEEECRENE AAEEER REHKRIEGANE EATUREBAUE FTIBERAMBEAAEECBE
The COMB+ (Beijing Level 3 Residual method Estimation of development costs not Increase in the development costs
Fangshan) - yet incurred or contracted based on would result in a decrease in the fair
Under construction The key input of existing development plans. value measurement of the investment
(Carrying amount: residual method is properties by the same percentage
HK$4,318,566,000) (1) Total development increase, and vice versa.

(3 pieces of land under
construction)

BRBE (LREL) FZE
-fR

(BRTE(E : 4,318,566,0007 L)

(ZleEELH)

The Irvine Project Level 3
(U.S.A. Property)
(Carrying amount:
HK$242,734,000)

MEEE (XEEE)
(BRTE(E 242,734,000 )

R
|11
TE]

cost to completion
(2) Expected developer Estimation of developer profit margin. A significant increase in the expected profit
profit margin would result in a significant increase in
fair value measured of the investment
properties and vice versa.

HnEEE BERARBHEGENAEEARTN BRNAEMN NGEHRENELNER
MERRA SAEEEREMEENTE R2FA.
HpBEEEEAANE
R REBHEEET. BHABARENEEETRENEAAE
(1) EREENEER B EREEM R A
KR
(2) BEREBHEE
Multiple valuation Unit site rate, taking into account the A slight increase in the unit site rate used
techniques: time, location, and individual factors, would result in a significant increase
Direct comparison such as frontage and size, between in the fair value measurement of the
method and income the comparable and the property, of investment properties and vice versa.
method range from US$1,433.65/sq.m. to

US$1,722.23/sq.m.
The key inputs of direct
comparison method is:
Unit site rate

SEHER: BB ot RESRT B RERE WAERS B RMA AEERRE
EREEARKAR = fImA BB RMENEER  NEAABEHNEARLA RZA%.
KN N TEEHK433655LEE
ERUBZTERASE TAHK7228FRc
BB Bt E
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH B RRMEE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued 18. REYX-—&

AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 20155128318
Investment properties Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) input(s) to fair value
FEERSECRENE AAEEESR RERGRIEGAUE EATTBREAAHE FUERRABBRAAEECEE
The 4th Generation Level 3 Income capitalisation Term yield, taking into account of A slight increase in the term yield used
SkyOcean City - method (term and yield generated from comparable would result in a significant decrease
Completed reversionary approach)  properties and adjustment to reflect in the fair value measurement of the
(Carrying amount: the certainty of term income secured investment properties, and vice versa.
HK$280,503,000) and to be received, of 7%.
REFAR-BRI (REE: £=FE WAB KA G SARTELENEEE NG WAEATHRANA Je8BRENE
280,503,000/ T ) (FERESE) RARBRICREROBUBZES AABBHEAETSR R2HR-
WATIER 2 % AT%
The key inputs are: Reversionary yield, taking into account A slight increase in the reversionary
(1) Term yield; annual unit market rental income and ~ yield used would result in a significant
(2) Reversionary yield; unit market value of the comparable decrease in the fair value measurement
(3) Market unit rent of properties, of 7.5%. of the investment properties and vice
individual unit; and versa.

(4) Level adjustment

IRGABEAR: ESlE ARAREENE FREN WRRARERENT BeSRRENE
(1) 2 Sl : THBEMAREMTE A75% ° RABEHEXETR RZHR

(2) B
B BAER 2 HHE

g R
(4) BEEE
Market unit rent, using direct market A slight increase in the market unit rent
comparable and taking into account used would result in a significant
of time, location and other individual increase in the fair value measurement

factors such as size and quantum of of the investment properties and vice
properties, of RMB127/sq.m./month. Versa.

mEENAS FRERTSTHLEE MAERATRENRSNA NeSRRE
AR RER HENEMENER MEAABEAEARLA RzA%-
fimmER REE ABASTHK
AR#E1277T

Level adjustment on individual floors of ~ An increase in the level adjustment on
the property range from 35% to 50% individual floors used would result in a
on specific level. decrease in the fair value measurement

of the investment properties by a lower
percentage, and vice versa.

ERMEEE RESE NTHEEE WARAHENEERLZEEAREM

235%%E50% ° BleSERENEALBESBAREL
BALGE RZTR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao B R RM

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — continued

AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 — continued

Investment properties
held by the Group
AREEEZRENE

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)

Fair value
hierarchy

18. REWX-&
20155128318 — &

Significant unobservable input(s)

AABEER MERNRIZBARE EATTBESHARE

Relationship of unobservable
input(s) to fair value

FTIEER\HERAAREZBE

The COMB+ (Beijing Fangshan) -

Under construction
(Carrying amount:
HK$3,733,677000)

(1 piece of land under
construction and 2 pieces
of land yet to be developed)

BREL (XREW) -ER(FA
16:3,733,677000 ) (—1E7EEH

THRMERRAE L)

Level 3 Multiple valuation
techniques:

Direct comparison
method, residual
method and income

method

The key inputs of direct

comparison method is:

Unit site rate

E SERERN:
ERLRE HREER
ERBNE

ERNHBETRGARE

RBHEMLE

The key input of residual

method is:
(1) Total development
cost to completion

(2) Expected developer

profit margin

) TREEHEER
KA
() BEREEMNEE

RUREEE 20 B

Unit site rate, taking into account the
time, location, and individual factors,
such as frontage and size, between
the comparable and the property, of
range from RMB10,060/sq.m. to
RMB13,510/sg.m.

BB E A RER - HRERNE
Z fimA B ERL Y EN R R
ANE NTFEFHKRARE0,0607T
Z5THRARBI3510T

Estimation of development costs not
yet incurred or contracted based on
existing development plans.

A slight increase in the unit site rate used

would result in a significant increase
in the fair value measurement of the
investment properties and vice versa.

WA RSB BL L FHA HREHRE

NERABEHERBL R2HA

Increase in the development costs

would result in a decrease in the fair
value measurement of the investment
properties by the same percentage
increase, and vice versa.

BERABRABEERAELRETH FRRALN H@EHRENELAEE

MERKA -
Estimation of developer profit margin.

G ST

The key inputs of income  Capitalisation rate, taking into accounts

method are:

(1) Capitalisation rate;
and

(2) Market monthly
rent

BAZEEGARER:
M EAE: R
(2 mEAR
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of the capitalisation of rental income
potential, nature of the property,
prevailing market condition, of range
from 5% to 5.5% for retail, and range
from 3% to 3.5% for office.

BRER S RASKABAHERL
MENE  BRTHEE  HHENT5%
Z55%RBTENFI%EI5% °

Market monthly rent, using direct
market comparable and taking
into account of time, location and
individual factors such as road
frontage, size of property and
facilities, of range from RMB119.4/
sg.m./month to RMB217/sg.m./month
on GFA for retail, and of RMB73.3/
sg.m./month on GFA for office.

FERSAEMBERNTR R2AR.

A significant increase in the expected profit

would result in a significant increase in
fair value measured of the investment
properties and vice versa.

BANARBENEEERRANELLE

B BRBEN R4

A slight increase in the capitalisation

rate used would result in a significant
decrease in the fair value measurement
of the investment properties, and vice
Versa.

A ERCEGT S RRENE

DABEHERETR R2HA

A slight increase in the market monthly

rent used would result in a significant
increase in the fair value measurement
of the investment properties and vice
versa.

THAR RAERTSUMALEERR WARATSARNA HegRRENE

i RERE e RERR flhE
REmaEGRANE BRNTEA
BEHRARENIATEGASTYS
KARB2TT (RREREHE) RE
TRASASFHKARKIIIL (1
BE@RE) -

RABEHERBLT R2HH%
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19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB RM

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued 18. REWE-E&
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND VALUATION RAEBEFERGEER
PROCESSES
In estimating the fair value of the Group's investment EhFAEEREME L AAEE
properties, the Group uses market-observable data W AEEEERRAHER 25
to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are BREE -WIEE—ENHAH
not available, the Group engages third party qualified B AEBSREFE - FEEKTE
valuers to perform the valuation of the Group's MARNER 2 IREYFEETHE RN
investment properties. The Group will first consider and SEHEAERIERAZE _ERAR
adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived from % RE@EE AZBBAEERMES
observable quoted prices in the active market. When NI EBRREES - MEEE_EN
Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group will adopt AR AEBERISRABRESE=
valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs. The [& ) A BUE 2 (S ERIT - (HERNE
valuation techniques have been calibrated so that at TEEHE IE LAE R WA TSR A (i (E R i
initial recognition, the result of the valuation techniques FriSEREZ S EER - HEEAND
is reconciled to the transaction price. Where there BENREERED: AeRESERE
is a material change in the fair value of the assets, BEEBZREA-
the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the
Directors.
TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. EZEWINIE
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET &
Trade receivables Z 5 W FIA 4,631 4,077
Less: allowance for doubtful debts J& : RER B {5 - (75)
4,631 4,002

The following is an analysis of trade receivables by age,
presented based on invoice date, and net of allowance
for doubtful debts at the end of the reporting period:

HEZHMGE RREHRESRE
WRIE 2 Bk 2 A (B F0BR R AR
w25

2016 2015

20165 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHE T FATT

Current to 90 days BIHAZ90H 4,631 3,995
91 to 180 days 912180H - 7
4,631 4,002

No debtors which are past due but not impaired at the
end of this reporting period (2015: HK$413,000).

RASREHAR I E D BB R REZ
JEUBR TR (20154F : 413,000/8 7T ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & %2016F12 A31H ILFE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES - continued 19.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group's trade
receivables are individually reviewed to determine if
impaired. The amount of impairment loss of individually
impaired receivables, if any, are recognised based on
the credit history of its customers, such as financial
difficulties or default in payments. Consequently,
specific impairment provision is recognised.

EZEWRE-&
REBREHR AEESRERIEH
BRRMFIE  UEBEHE RS LR
18 = {5 1 BB E 2 FE WK IR 2 R B
BEEE (M) EREFPZEEE
FC 8% (1A 8 R PR 36 s e KGR 3R T IA
HERR - BE1R H HE AR E R (B R -

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts: RIRBBEBIT -
2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T T 7T
Balance at beginning of the year  F#]Z &% 75 278
Amount written off &5 (75) (119)
Impairment losses reversed 2% BR (E & 18 - (84)
Balance at end of the year FRZ AR - 75

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X /¥ Bl ZAZ AR A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12 A31H ILFE

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 200 HMEWRE REkTHE
PREPAYMENTS 1+ 7\
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Pledged deposits (note) EHERF R (M5 963,656 909,525
Other receivables H W 508 13,503 5,953
Deposits paid BftiEe 3,005 10,795
Prepayments TR 5RIE 12,247 12,108
992,411 938,381
Note: As at 31 December 2016, deposits amounting to ffFE: M20164F12A31H AR

RMB862,000,000 (equivalent to HK$963,656,000)
(31 December 2015: RMB762,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$909,525,000)) were pledged to an independent third
party to secure the loans amounting to HK$959,482,000 (31
December 2015: HK$906,091,000) granted to the Group by
a financial institution in the PRC (the “Lender”, a related
party of the above independent third party), details of which
are set out in note 24(b)(ii). Pursuant to agreements entered
into between the Group and the aforesaid independent third
party, and agreements entered into between the Group and
the Lender, upon maturity of the aforesaid loans, the Lender
agreed that the Group does not need to make any repayment
of the loans to the Lender. On the other hand, the Group also
agreed that the aforesaid independent third party does not
need to repay any of the above pledged deposits to the Group.
Based on the legal opinions issued by the Company's PRC and
Hong Kong legal counsels, the aforesaid agreements effecting
the net-off arrangement are legally enforceable.

862,000,000t (48 & #°963,656,000
#BIt) (20165 12A318: AR
762,000,0007T (18 & #909,525,000
BIL) )2 EREEEFEILE =T
EB—RHPESREE ([BERAL-
LB E=F 2BEALT)ETA
% 8 959,482,000/ 7t & 7% (2015
%12 A31H 906,091,000 7T ) 2 &
1 FHIEE KT 24 0) (i) - RIEA S
B B B = AT 2 B R A
SEHEERAGT U2 HE ELIE
HREHE  ERARBERNEEERRA
HEBEBER -S—FHE A58
MNEE B 5= HEFEE Ll
CHRBTERTFAEER - RIEAAFHR
BERESLIEEMAMREHRZAZE
B Bz R B A A A ERAT
WA e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & %2016F12 A31H ILFE

21.

OTHER CURRENT/LONG TERM ASSETS 2. EMRE  REPEE
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT T T
Prepayments to a construction SRR TR
contractor (note i) RIE (BEED) 6,215 -
Others HAh 7974 1,194
Other long term assets EMmEHREE 14,189 1,194
Assets classified as available-for D ¥EZE Al ft &
sale (note ii) & E (P EEin) - 137,269
Prepayments to construction MR B R TEN
contractors (note i) KIE (BEED) 333,574 -
Prepayments for certain land use FAREMEXE
rights for property development — 2 & T titff A2
purpose (note iii) TEA A (M%) 102,737 -
Prepayment for taxes A A 24,020 -
Others Em 1,907 -
Other current assets H b mE) & E 462,238 137,269

Notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2016, other long term assets consisted

of prepayments paid to a contractor in relation to the

construction of certain investment properties. Prepayments
in relation to the construction of properties for sales paid to
certain contractors were recorded as other current assets.

(i) Assets classified as available-for-sale represent the Group's

investment in liquidity funds issued by certain commercial

bank in the PRC. The liquidity funds were fully redeemed in

January 2016.

(iii) During the current year, the Group entered into land

acquisition contracts with Bureau of Land and Resources

of Wujiang District, Suzhou City and Bureau of Land and

Resources of Jiashan County, Jiaxing City to acquire the
land use rights of pieces of land in the PRC with the lease
term of 40 years for the purpose of development for sale,
at cash considerations of RMB135,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$157,802,000) and RMB65,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$75,979,000), respectively. During the current year, the
Group has made payment of RMB67500,000 (equivalent
to HK$78,901,000) and USD3,550,000 (equivalent to

HK$27,513,000), respectively.

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X /¥ Bl ZAZ AR A A

i

(ii)

(iii)

R2016F12A31A HEHEE
BERBEETREMESIAFE
BEZENRB - RRETEME
YR FETFEBE AN KEYE
Hth R &EE-

SEEHEEEEEAERRS
EEFERTRIZEBES I
BoEBESEN2016F1A2EE
@o

RAFE ANEFBHEFMNTRIE
Et+tERREkEEmEEHE+
BERBIZEMAELN DREE
& B AR#135,000,0007T (4
157,802,000 70) B A R #
65,000,0007T (48 & 775,979,000
FETT) A R B U % 18 kb 2 fE
- HEHAIE ANBESEE
B -RAFE AEEEHRIELTE
43 A E#67,500,0007T (HE
#78,901,000/% 7t ) % 3,550,000%
7T (1% 71275613,0008 7T) °



22.

23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12 A31H ILFE

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 22.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and short-term deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less.

The range of effective interest rates of bank balances
at 31 December 2016 were 0.01% to 0.35% (2015:
0.001% to 0.50%) per annum.

RITEBRREAER
PITEB LR S DEAEERFRS
RRE|SA A=A A AR S

e
N

M20165F12A31H " FITHEH B
B £ I = A1 F£0.01 % %0.35% (2015
F I NF0.001%E0.50% ) °

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 23 EFNHMENSRERTE
ACCRUALS ® 7 IH
2016 2015
20164F 2015%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Trade payables =Y ANk e 326,350 386,017
Other payables, accruals and H b EAT R  FBIR A K
deposits received BiE S 81,492 59,077
Deposits from customers for REERGEVWERR
properties developed for sale ZIES 509,843 4,326
917,685 449,420

The ageing of trade payables based on invoice date is
0 to 90 days. The average credit period on purchase
of goods is 90 days. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all
payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

WERRAYGE EHRNRAZRE
B ROEH - REEMZ FHEE
HI790H - REEC HE M KRR E
EHER  BRAA RN RIEREEY
MAETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

24,

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24 S|BITRHEMEES
2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Bank borrowings RITEE
Secured and guaranteed (note a) ABEFEREER (Hita) 1,025,065 -
Other borrowings HEifEE
Secured and guaranteed (note b)  BEF R EER (HiEb) 2,961,746 2,102,819
3,986,811 2,102,819
Total borrowings are repayable BEBRE ERBERLOT
as follows:
- Repayable within one year ——FRNEE 1,218,040 2,102,819
— Repayable over 1 year and ——FREMFANEE
within 2 years 1,653,189 -
— Repayable over 2 years and —-MFEBREBRFANEE
within 5 years 1,115,582 -
3,986,811 2,102,819
Less: Amounts shown under WmEIAEET
current liabilities (- (1,218,040) (2,102,819)
Amounts shown under FRBEEERTINTZEH
non-current liabilities 2,768,771 —
Fixed rate borrowings EEEE 2,961,746 2,102,819
Floating rate borrowings FEEE 1,025,065 -
3,986,811 2,102,819
Bank and other borrowings IATHEEFTE
dominated in: WITREMEE:
- RMB —AR% 3,901,763 2,102,819
- US$ -7 85,048 -
3,986,811 2,102,819

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X /¥ Bl ZA AR A 7]



24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS — continued 24.

Notes:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

RITREMESR

B 5 -
The secured bank borrowings of the Group were secured by a. AEEZHRFRITEETIARE
certain assets of the Group and their carrying amounts are as ETEEFRBER HEZERE
follows: PN
2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
T & 7T FE T
Properties under development for ERPFEWE (MF17)
sales (note 17) 1,033,347 -
Investment properties (note 18) BEWE (ME18) 1,507,693 -
Pledged bank deposits BHEMBITFR 3,589 -
2,544,629 -
The bank borrowings were also jointly guaranteed by Mr. Zhou SRITEE A AN ES R &R
Zheng, a director and ultimate controlling shareholder of the RS EB A AR E TR £
Company, and certain related parties. R{EHER-
The details of secured and guaranteed other borrowings of the b. AEEY GEBRERFEMES
Group are as follows: TEEMT
2016 2015
2016F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
T8 7T FET
Loans from trust fund companies (note i) KBEEFLEL AT Z
B (M) 2,002,264 1,196,728
Loans from a financial institution (note ii) KRB —XEBEE 2 &R
(B =) 959,482 906,091
2,961,746 2,102,819
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao B ERRM

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & %2016F12 A31H ILFE

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS - continued

Notes: — continued

b. — continued

(i)

In June 2016, the Group entered into a trust loan
agreement with Shanghai Changjiang Fortune
Assets Management Co., Ltd. (“Changjiang
Trust”), pursuant to which Changjiang Trust
lent RMB1,400,000,000, which is equivalent to
HK$1,636,470,000 to the Group. The loan is secured
by certain investment properties of the Group with
fair value of approximately HK$1,664,434,000 and
jointly guaranteed by Mr. Zhou Zheng and certain
related parties. Corporate guarantee was provided
by SkyOcean Holdings Group Co., Ltd., a company
beneficially owned as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng.
The loan carries effective interest rate at 795% per
annum. The Group has early repaid RMB500,000,000,
which is equivalent to HK$584,454,000 to Changjiang
Trust during the current year. Upon the aforesaid
early repayment, RMB180,000,000 of the loan will be
repaid in 2017 and the remaining balance will be due
for repayment in 2018.

In December 2016, the Group entered into a trust loan
agreement with China Huarong Asset Management
Co., Ltd. (“Huarong Asset”), pursuant to which
Huarong Asset lent RMB500,000,000 which is
equivalent to HK$584,454,000 to the Group. The
loan is secured by certain investment properties
of the Group with fair value of approximately
HK$1,030,896,000 and jointly guaranteed by Mr. Zhou
Zheng and certain related parties. The loan carries
effective interest rate at 9.64% per annum. The loan
will be due for repayment in 2018.

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X /¥ Bl ZAZ AR A A

24,

RIOTREMBEE-&

ik — &

b. —#&

(i)

201667 « AN @ |
BRIVEEEEERR
AR ([RIIEFT]ETL
ERRERBZE BRI
ERRAEEREARE
1,400,000,0007T (48 & %
1,636,470,000% T) 2 &
T BERBAEERAE
{E#)51,664,434,0007% 7T
ZETHREWEEER
I e A B s A s TR
B EARELER RAE
RIYBRFERERGR
AEl(—HBEAREEE
=B8N Em ZAR)) 1R
ot ERKIMZ BERF
& BTI5% « NARFE -
AEECDRPEEARE
500,000,0007T (48 & »
584,454,000/ 7T) F &L
R LR PEER
%8 A AR #180,000,000
TLZERBR2017F &
B H SRS 52018
FHEE-

20164F 12 8 » A & [F £
FREREEEERNG
BERAR(TEREE])
IV ERERG# &
b EREEBLARE
500,000,0007T (48 & »
584,454,000 7T) F A& &
HoltERAAEEQRE
& #)41,030,896,000/% 7T
ZETHREWEERRE I
£B A B ot A IR T R

HREVEH IR - 1 B FRUEL
2 EBFFIEEI64% -
It &S R2018 5 B -



24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS — continued 24.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12 A31H ILFE

RIOTREMEE-&

Notes: — continued

b. — continued

(i)

—&

In June 2016, SkyOcean Real Estate (Tangshan)
Co., Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group
borrowed a loan of RMB396,000,000, which
is equivalent to HK$462,882,000, from Bohai
International Trust Co., Ltd. (“Bohai Trust"”).
The loan is secured by certain properties under
development for sale with an aggregate carrying
amount of approximately HK$449,134,000 and
investment properties with fair value of approximately
HK$605,919,000 and guaranteed by Beijing
SkyOcean Foundation Investments Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
SkyOcean”), a subsidiary of the Group, and Beijing
SkyOcean International Holdings Limited (“Beijing
SkyOcean Holdings”), a company beneficially
owned as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng. The loan
carries effective interest rate at 9.03% per annum.
RMB50,000,000 and RMB100,000,000 of the loan
will be repaid on 2 June 2017 and 2 June 2018,
respectively. The remaining balance of the loan will be
due for repayment on 2 June 2019.

During the current year, the loan from another
trust fund company of HK$1,168,907000 as at 31
December 2015 was early repaid in full by the Group.

e — 4

b. —#&

(i)

—&

M2016F6 A« K¥F i E
(BW)ARAR (K&
ZEEMEBRA)M
HDEBRBEELEBERAR
(I BEFRIBAAR
#396,000,0007T (1A%
462,882,000 L) 2 &
FeWLEFREBEEENA
449,134,000/ 0 2 & F 3
BPHEWERAAEER
#9/5605,919,00078 7T 2 1%
BYEEER  WHIERERK
FEXREERAR ([
RRF]) (AEEHBEA
Al) RAE R K FBEBRERE
RAR (ML RRFEER])
(—HARCEERER
80% M 2 A A fEH ¥
R o WWEFRURER 2 B IR F F
R AE9.03%  HEAAR
#50,000,0007T 2 A R
100,000,0007C .2 & 58 5
BI72017F6H2H %2018
F6A2AEE-HRZH
hEE R B R 2019F6 A2H
BiE-

RAFE  AEEBRAE
HEEMN2015%12H31H
4 %8 /%1,168,907,000% 7T
ZREEMETES AR

1
ZER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao B RM

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS - continued 24. $R{ITREMEE &
Notes: - continued MisE: —&
b. - continued b. — &
(i) As at 31 December 2016, certain loans were (ii) MW2016F12A31H H T+
borrowed from a financial institution in the BRI —RFEE R
PRC which are secured by the Group’'s pledged BEBAN HBAEEZ
deposits of HK$963,656,000 (31 December 2015: B ¥ 3 17 51963,656,000
HK$909,525,000), bearing interest at a rate of %70 (20159 12A318 ¢
1.11% to 1.22% (2015: 1.11% to 1.49%) per annum 909,525,000 7T ) {F &
and repayable within one year from 31 December HZNF1L1%E1.22%
2016. Details of the pledged deposits are set out (20155 : 1.11% % 1.49% )
in note 20. During the current year, an additional ZEMEFE WL AR
loan raised from the Lender (as defined in note 2016124318 &t —
20) was RMB100,000,000, which is equivalent to FRNEE-DEFPFTRZ
HK$116,896,000 (2015: HK$438,209,000). For certain B BB EE20 e A4
loans borrowed in prior years which existed at 31 ERERA (EEALME
December 2015 were renewed during the current year 20) BB HMERBA
upon the respective agreements entered into by the R #100,000,0007C (A&
Group and the Lender as defined in note 20. 116,896,000/ 7T (2015
4F : 438,209,000/ 7T) ) °
RBEFEEABR2015
FRANBFEZETE
FERAFEARERE
FA (FERMEE20) 7132
EEZHBEREE-
25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS 25, AMBREFRES
2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Liability components BED
- RMB29,520,000 8.5% — AR #29,520,0007T
convertible bonds (note i) BEMNESE%TEZ
AR E S (PEED) 31,985 35,021
- HK$270,000,000 8.5% —270,000,000/% JT -
bonds (note i) WEFESE%TEZ
&5 (&L 271,515 269,092
— HK$470,000,000 8% bonds —470,000,000/% 7T -
(note i) REMEI%TEZ
&5 (&L 426,400 -
- RMB1,500,000,000 — AR #1,500,000,0007T
zero coupon convertible T EAMKRES
bonds (note ii) (Bt &Eii) 1,202,413 1,180,985
1,932,313 1,485,098
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

25, TERREFKES-E

25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

(i)

On 12 November 2015, the Company issued a two-year
term RMB 8.5% secured convertible bonds due 2017 in
an aggregate principal amount of RMB29,520,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds 1”) to an independent third party. In
addition to which, on the same date, the Company also issued
a two-year term HK$ 8.5% secured guaranteed bonds due
2017 in an aggregate principal amount of HK$270,000,000
(the “"Bonds ") to the same holder of the Convertible Bonds
|. The total net proceeds from the issue of the Convertibles
Bonds | and the Bonds | are used for funding general working
capital, as well as mergers and acquisitions by the Group. The
Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds | are jointly guaranteed
by Mr. Zhou Zheng and certain related parties and corporate
guarantee provided by Beijing SkyOcean Holdings, a company
beneficially owned as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng. The
Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds | are also secured by share
charge over certain number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company held by SkyOcean Investment Holdings Limited, the
immediate holding company of the Company.

On 28 June 2016, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with the same holder of the Convertible Bonds |
and the Bonds I, for the purpose of issuing three-year term
HK$ 8% secured guaranteed bond due in 2019 in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$470,000,000 (the “Bonds II”). The
Bonds Il are jointly guaranteed by Mr. Zhou Zheng and certain
related parties. Corporate guarantee was provided by Beijing
SkyOcean Holdings. The Bonds Il are also secured by share
charge over certain number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company held by SkyOcean Investment Holdings Limited,
the immediate holding company of the Company. Pursuant to
the subscription agreement, SkyOcean Investment Holdings
Limited, being the holder of Convertible Bonds Il (as defined
in note 25 (ii)), charged over certain part of Convertible
Bonds Il amounting to RMB450,000,000 (the “Charged
Convertible Bonds I1”) in favour of the holder of Bonds II. The
Company issued the first tranche and the second tranche of
the Bonds Il amounting to HK$70,000,000 on 30 June 2016
and HK$400,000,000 on 5 July 2016, respectively, which
are subsequently measured at amortised cost by applying
effective interest rate of 8.3% per annum after taking into
consideration of initial transaction cost of HK$50,700,000
accordingly.

The Convertible Bonds |, the Bonds | and the Bonds I,
constitute direct, unsubordinated, unconditional and secured
obligations of the Company and shall at all times rank pari
passu in all respects and without any preference or priority
among themselves.

H2015F 11 A128 AR A # 1T
R2017F R BASBERAARE
29,520,0007C K /R F B B 17 A R
B SHE R FFRBE5%RT B 2 AT
REH ([ATRBREH DGEBILE
=He s RER - ARRIRNAE
—ARREF A ABITR2017F
FIEAZAN € 48%84270,000,00078 7L HY
MFREERERRBTIE BT
ME8 5%t BZES ([EHI]) -
BATAMRRE S I RES |2 BAEHR
BEFERERN —REEESRA
EEETZHBESE - RRES
IREHBARLEERETEES
HEAERKBIERRFER (—M
HEARTEEREBSO %S Z A
A1) RFEAFER - A RRES I RE
HITNE AR A EEERA RRFR
BEREBRERARFENETARQR
BBITEBREE 2ROMLIEER
e

M20164F6528H @ AN A & £ 7] #
BREHFIREHFIZHERFE AR
TR2019F B A S BB B ARK
470,000,0007tH) = FHIHEFHE
RBTTE  BFNE8%T B2 E
F(IMEHFND T~ RE -
E% 1B E B E R E TR LR
BReNalERBAIL RRFERE
Mo EBHIMBARREEERAR
KAREEBRERRAAFAENE T
ARNEEEITEBEREE ZKHH
SRR IRIBERE R RERE
TRAERDF (BITRBRESI (F
& RIMTEE25(00) ) 2358 A) EFI
BAEANARZHANBHRSEAARKE
450,000,0007T 2 Al AR EH &
FEo (BRI REERN]) -
AAAER20165F6 A30H 201657
ASABITE—HRE_HSEH A
#70,000,0005% 7T % 400,000,000
B2 EHI EEBVER B
50,700,000/ 7T 1% - 1B R B R F
FIFE8.3% B R AFHE ©

BB ES BHIREFIERA
AR BE  FRE - BEERER
A WAL 2 5 A B R
ERATEEARSHA R EE
AT RIRT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao B ERRM

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & %2016F12 A31H ILFE

25.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

(i)

- continued

On 28 June 2016, the Company reached an agreement with
the holder of the Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds | to
extend the maturity date of Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds
| from 12 November 2017 to 30 June 2019. The extension
mentioned above did not result in material impact on the
financial information of the Group for the current year.

The principal terms of the Convertible Bonds | are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Conversion right

Pursuant to the aforesaid agreement dated on 28 June
2016, the holder of the Convertible Bonds | has the
right to convert all or any part of the principal amount
of the Convertible Bonds | into ordinary shares of
the Company at any time from the beginning on, and
including, 12 November 2016 to the close of business
of the maturity date at 30 June 2019.

For the purpose of determining the number of
ordinary shares to be issued on conversion of the
Convertible Bonds [, the relevant principal amount
of the Convertible Bonds | to be converted shall
be translated into HK$ at the exchange rate of
HK$1.2195: RMB1. The price at which ordinary shares
of the Company will be issued upon conversion
(the "Conversion Price of Convertible Bonds |") will
initially be HK$12 per share, but will be subject to
adjustment for, among other things, consolidation,
reclassification or subdivision, capitalisation of profit
or reserves, distributions, rights issues of shares
or options over shares, dividend adjustments and
other dilutive events. In the opinion of the Directors,
the adjustments to Conversion Price of Convertible
Bonds | in those circumstances are all for anti-dilutive
purpose to protect the right of the holder of the
Convertible Bonds I.

Final redemption

Unless previously redeemed, converted, purchased
and cancelled as provided herein, the Company shall
pay to each holder of the Convertible Bonds on the
maturity date of the Convertible Bonds | an aggregate
price of (i) 100% of the outstanding principal amount
on the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds |,
(i) all accrued and unpaid interest in respect of the
Convertible Bonds | and unpaid default interest in
respect of the Convertible Bonds |, if any, and (iii) all
other related outstanding amounts payable by the
Company to the holder of the Convertible Bonds I.

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X /¥ Bl ZAZ AR A A

25.

THRESRES &

(i)

—

%201656 A28 H » A B £ AT %
EFIRBHFZ A NERDZ
MR ES REFIZE AR
2017911 B12H i€ & 2201956 7
30H ° £3CATIZ M M B AR
BEAFEZUBEANERERY
Zo

BB ERIZ TEHRRNAT

(a) AR R

R Ea B A201646
A28B z Wi AT ERE
FIZ B NG RE20165F
NMANRAR(BEZE)E
201946 A308 2 2/ B
B & 3 B T 45 2R HAFE BA B
IR ES A ED
2EH LA D BARA T
el

BETRARRESESE
BEETFETHLARY
BB TEROTRRES
12 fRR A& &8 5 121.2195
BILHARE 1T Z ERR
HRBT - NEREETE
THARRBIE @B 2B
(TAT R EH I 2 BRE])
B EETRI2B T
ARE (KR aE) RHE
B FT O FE SRR A O sk
HEEANE - DR - AR
A fn EAdE - IR B AR E A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12 A31H ILFE

25, TERREFKESF-E

25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS

— continued

(i) — continued
The principal terms of the Convertible Bonds | are as follows:
— continued
(c) Convertible Bond Holder's Redemption Rights for

Events of Default

Should any of the events of default set out in the
agreements of the Convertible Bonds | occurs, the
holder of the Convertible Bonds | may elect to require
the Company to redeem the outstanding Convertible
Bonds | in full in the amount equivalent to the sum of
(i) 100% of the outstanding principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds |, (ii) all accrued and unpaid interest
in respect of such Convertible Bonds | and unpaid
default interest in respect of such Convertible Bonds
|, if any, (iii) a premium as set out in the agreements
of the Convertible Bonds | and (iv) all other related
outstanding amounts payable by the Company to the
holder of such Convertible Bonds I.

The details of the redemption of the Bonds | and the Bonds Il
are as follows:

(a)

Final redemption

Unless previously redeemed, purchased and
cancelled, the Company shall pay to each holder
of the Bonds on the maturity date of the Bonds |
and Bonds Il an aggregate price of (i) 100% of the
outstanding principal amount on the maturity date of
the Bonds | and Bonds I, (i) all accrued and unpaid
interest in respect of the Bonds and unpaid default
interest of the Bonds | and Bonds I, if any, and (iii)
all other related outstanding amounts payable by the
Company to the holder of such Bonds | and Bonds II.

Bonds Holder's Redemption Rights for Events of
Default

Should any of the events of default set out in the
agreements of the Bonds | and Bonds Il occurs,
the holder of the Bonds | and Bonds Il may elect
to require the Company to redeem the Bonds | and
Bonds Il in full in an amount equivalent to the sum
of (i) 100% of the outstanding principal amount of
the Bonds | and Bonds I, (ii) all accrued and unpaid
interest accrued in respect of the Bonds | and Bonds
Il and unpaid default interest accrued in respect of the
Bonds | and Bonds I, if any, (iii) a premium as set out
in the agreements of the Bonds | and Bonds II, and
(iv) all other related outstanding amounts payable by
the Company to the holder of such Bonds | and Bonds
1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued
(i) — continued
The details of the redemption of the Bonds | and the Bonds Il
are as follows: — continued

(c) Mandatory Early Redemption for Convertible Bonds |,
the Bonds | and the Bonds Il

The amendment of mandatory early redemption of
Convertible Bonds | the Bonds | and the Bonds Il as
mentioned below are mainly in relation to the change
of calculation of Total Security Value (as defined
below). Pursuant to the subscription agreement on 28
June 2016, if in any trading day during the remaining
term of the Convertible Bonds I, the Bonds | and the
Bonds I, the total security value, which is calculated
as the sum of below items (a) and (b) (the “Total
Security Value"):

(a) total share value of the Company, which
equals to the closing price per share of the
Company on such trading day multiplied
by the total number of the shares of the
Company held in the securities account
maintained with the holder of the Convertible
Bonds I, the Bonds | and the Bonds Il by
SkyOcean Investment Holdings Limited, and;

(b) charged Convertible Bonds I

is less than 2 times of the aggregate
outstanding principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds |, the Bonds | and
the Bonds I, and SkyOcean Investment
Holdings Limited elects not to deposit such
further number of shares of the Company
in the aforesaid securities account, the
Company shall redeem such portion of
the outstanding principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds |, the Bonds | and the
Bonds Il (the “Mandatory Early Redemption
for Convertible Bonds |, the Bonds | and
the Bonds I1”) in order to maintain the Total
Security Value not lower than 2.5 times of
the aggregate outstanding principal amount
of the Convertible Bonds |, the Bonds | and
the Bonds II.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

25, TERREFKES-E

25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

(i)

— continued

The terms of the Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds | are

negotiated with the holder collectively and the issuance of

the Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds | are inter-conditional.

Accordingly, the total net proceeds received by the Company

from the issue of the Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds | have

been allocated between a liability component and an equity
component in its initial recognition as follows:

(a)

(c)

Liability component of the Convertible Bonds | and
the Bonds | are initially measured at fair value by DTZ
Cushman & Wakefield Limited using the discount
cash flow approach, amounted to approximately
RMB251,311,000 (equivalent to HK$305,919,000),
which represent the present value of the contractually
determined stream of future cash flows discounted
at the prevailing market interest rate at that time
applicable to instruments of comparable credit status
and providing substantially the same cash flows with
the Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds | and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost by applying
an effective interest rate of 9.6% per annum after
considering the effect of the transaction costs;

In the opinion of the Directors, the economic
characteristics and risks of the mandatory early
redemption option of the Convertible Bonds | and
Bonds | are closely related to the host debt contract
of the Convertible Bonds | and Bonds I. Therefore, the
Company does not account for the mandatory early
redemption separately; and

Equity component, which is equal to the difference
between the total fair value of the Convertible Bonds
| and the Bonds | at the date of issuance and the fair
value of the liability component of the Convertible
Bonds | and the Bonds | at the date of issuance,
amounted to approximately RMB84,000 (equivalent to
HK$103,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & %2016F12 A31H ILFE

25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

(i) - continued
The movements of the liability component of the Convertible
Bonds [, the Bonds | and the Bonds Il for the year are set out

25 TERBEFKEF-&

(i)

—&
BREkER - EFIREFIZEE
MANAFE 2 EBHHFIMT

below:
Liability
component
of the
Bonds | and Convertible
the Bonds Il Bonds | Total
AR 1E 31
BEHIRESI 8BRS st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
& T FE T FE T
Convertible Bonds | and Bonds | issued 2015611 A12H %172
on 12 November 2015 AR E A R E 270,086 35,833 305,919
Transaction costs incurred FTE£R SR (4,194) (558) (4,752)
Interest charged during the period BE2015%F 1M A128 &
from12 November 2015 to 201512 A31H
31 December 2015 HEAAF S 3,343 451 3,794
Exchange realignment IE 3, 35 & (143) (705) (848)
At 31 December 2015 H20165F 12 A31H 269,092 35,021 304,113
Bonds Il issued BEETESFI 470,000 - 470,000
Transaction costs incurred FRIEER SA (50,700) - (50,700)
Interest charged FEZH 51,043 3,374 54,417
Interest paid BEAFE (42,342) (2,933) (45,275)
Exchange realignment IE 3, 33 % 822 (3,477) (2,655)
At 31 December 2016 A2016FE12831H 697,915 31,985 729,900

No conversion or redemption of the Convertible Bonds |, the Bonds |
and the Bonds Il has occurred up to 31 December 2016.

(i) On 24 December 2015, the Company issued a five-year
term RMB zero coupon convertible bonds due 2020 in an
aggregate principal amount of RMB1,500,000,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds I1"”) to SkyOcean Investment Holdings
Limited, the immediate holding company of the Company
which is beneficially owned as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng. The
issuance of the Convertibles Bonds Il are for the settlement of
certain amount payable by the Group to SkyOcean Real Estate
(Qian'an) Co., Ltd., a company beneficially owned as to 80%
by Mr. Zhou Zheng.

The fair value of the Convertible Bonds Il at the date of
issuance was RMB2,040,441,000, consisting of liability
component and equity component of RMB988,425,000
(equivalent to HK$1,247,869,000) and RMB1,052,016,000
(equivalent to HK$1,328,152,000), respectively. The amount
of the fair value of the Convertible Bonds Il at the date of
issuance in excess of the amount due to SkyOcean Real
Estate (Qian‘an) Co., Ltd., extinguished of RMB540,441,000
(equivalent to HK$682,298,000) is accounted for as a deemed
distribution to the controlling shareholder of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2015 as the debt
restructuring above is a transaction with shareholder of the
Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F12 A31H ILFE

25, TERREFKESF-E

25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

(ii)

— continued

The Convertible Bonds I, constitute general, unconditional,
unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Company
and rank pari passu and rateably without preference
equally with all other present and future unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of the Company.

The principal terms of the Convertible Bonds Il are as follows:

(a)

(c)

Conversion right

The holder of the Convertible Bonds Il has the right
to convert all or any part of the principal amount of
the Convertible Bonds Il into ordinary shares of the
Company at any time from the beginning on, and
including 24 December 2015 to the close of business
of the maturity date at 24 December 2020.

For the purpose of determining the number of
ordinary shares to be issued on conversion of the
Convertible Bonds I, the relevant principal amount
of the Convertible Bonds Il to be converted shall
be translated into HK$ at the exchange rate of
HK$1.2625:RMB1. The price at which ordinary shares
of the Company will be issued upon conversion (the
“Conversion Price of Convertible Bonds I1") will
initially be HK$6.8 per share, but will be subject to
adjustment for, among other things, consolidation,
reclassification or subdivision, capitalisation of profit
or reserves, distributions, rights issues of shares
or options over shares, dividend adjustments and
other dilutive events. In the opinion of the Directors,
the adjustments to Conversion Price of Convertible
Bonds Il in those circumstances are all for anti-dilutive
purpose to protect the right of the holder of the
Convertible Bonds II.

Redemption

The Company may redeem at any time before or
upon the maturity date of Convertible Bonds Il at
100% of all or any part of the principal amount of
the Convertible Bonds Il in respect of which the
conversion rights have not been exercised by the
holders of the Convertible Bonds II.

Convertible Bonds Holder's Redemption Rights for
Events of Default

Should any of the events of default set out in the
agreements of the Convertible Bonds Il occurs, the
holder of the Convertible Bonds Il may elect to require
the Company to redeem the outstanding Convertible
Bonds Il in full in the amount equivalent to 100% of
the outstanding principal amount of the Convertible
Bonds Il
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao B RM

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

25.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

(i)

— continued

The total net proceeds received by the Company from the

issue of the Convertible Bonds Il have been split between

a liability component and an equity component in its initial
recognition as follows:

(a)

(b)

Liability component is initially measured at fair
value by DTZ Cushman & Wakefield Limited using
the discount cash flow approach, amounted to
approximately RMB988,425,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,247,869,000), which represents the present
value of the contractually determined stream of
future cash flows discounted at the prevailing market
interest rate at that time applicable to instruments of
comparable credit status and providing substantially
the same cash flows with the Convertible Bonds II.
It is subsequently measured at amortised cost by
applying an effective interest rate of 8.7% per annum
after considering the effect of the transaction costs;

In the opinion of the Directors, the economic
characteristics and risks of the early redemption
option of the Convertible Bonds Il are closely related
to the host debt contract of the Convertible Bonds
Il. Therefore, the Company does not account for the
early redemption option separately; and

Equity component, which is determined based on the
valuation performed by DTZ Cushman & Wakefield
Limited using the Binomial Option Model and such
amounts are carried as equity component until
extinguished on conversion or redemption, amounted
to approximately RMB1,052,016,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,328,152,000).
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26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS

— continued

(ii) — continued

The movements of the liability component of the Convertible
Bonds Il for the year are set out below:

25, TERREFKES-E

(i) — &

EBBIIMT

BB EFIZBESIRAFEZ

Liability
component
=Rt
HK$'000
FERT
Convertible Bonds Il issued 201512 424 H #1727
on 24 December 2015 IR ES 1,247,869
Transaction costs incurred R G FTEEKAKR (504)
Interest charged during the period E20165%F 128248 %
from 24 December 2015 to 2015412 A31H
31 December 2015 HEANFSFHX 1,718
Exchange realignment VE 5 35 (68,098)
At 31 December 2015 2015512 A31H 1,180,985
Interest charged F B H 100,724
Exchange realignment & H (79,296)
As at 31 December 2016 A20165F12831H 1,202,413

No conversion or redemption of the Convertible Bonds Il has

occurred up to 31 December 2016.

DEFERRED TAX

The deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group and

fE B AT ARE I o

26. EEFIIE

HZ2016F12A31H @ B E & sl

FAREERA ZECHERELE

movements thereon during the year are as follows: e
Fair value
change on
investment
properties
REWMEZ
AREEEE
HK$'000
F& T
At 1 January 2015 7R2015%F1H1H -
Charge to profit or loss T AB &= (254,904)
Exchange realignment ME W B 10,501
At 31 December 2015 2015512 A31H (244,403)
Charge to profit or loss (note 9) B (MFFE9) (127.871)
Exchange realignment bE 5 8 B 21,081
At 31 December 2016 201651283180 (351,193)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

26.

DEFERRED TAX - continued

Details of the Group’s unused PRC income tax losses

i SE B IR — &

REEAREAZ PEMFHERZF

are as follows: I=y/ (NS
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FABIT
Tax losses unrecognised for ARBELERIBEERR
deferred tax assets i I8 518 332,335 155,539

The following unrecognised PRC income tax losses has
fixed expiry date, which will be expired in the following
years:

AT ARMERZ PEMGHERAR
EREEE WHRIATFESIE:

2016 2015

2016 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHBT FAET

31 December 2017 201712 A31H 8,178 8,178
31 December 2018 201812 A31H 20,817 20,817
31 December 2019 2019512 A31H 40,858 40,858
31 December 2020 2020412 A31H 85,686 85,686
31 December 2021 2021412 A31H 176,796 -
332,335 155,539

At 31 December 2016, the Group had tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of HK$82,133,000 (2015:
HK$60,605,000), subject to the agreement by the Hong
Kong Inland Revenue Department, that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred
tax asset has not been recognised in respect of these
tax losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that
have been loss-making for some time and/or it is not
presently considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which such tax losses can be
utilised.

No deferred tax liabilities for undistributed earnings of
the PRC subsidiaries have been recognised as there is
no plan of the dividends distribution out of the PRC in
the foreseeable future by these PRC subsidiaries. As at
31 December 2016, the aggregate undistributed profit
of the PRC subsidiaries were HK$722,072,000 (2015:
HK$544,386,000). The corresponding unrecognised
deferred tax liabilities as at 31 December 2016 were
HK$36,104,000 (2015: HK$27,219,000).
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21.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

2]7. BRARDRER

2016 2015
20164 20154
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000
EEREE TERT LEREE FAEL
Authorised: AT
Ordinary shares of BREE.10B T
HK$0.10 each Lk 3,000,000,000 300,000 3,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIRAR:
Ordinary shares of BREE0I10ETZ
HK$0.10 each Lidk
At 1 January B1A1H 246,447,959 24,646 222,985,272 22,299
Exercise of warrants TERRER
(note b) (Pi&Eb) 15,763,780 1,576 5,175,187 518
Issue of new shares BATHR
(note a) (Pizta) - - 18,287500 1,829

At 31 December R12A31H 262,211,739 26,222 246,447959 24,646

Notes: B 5 -

(a) On 18 June 2015, a total of 18,287,500 new shares have been (a) M2015F6818H * AR RIIZE K
placed and issued by the Company at the price of HK$7.65 per 765 L B E REITEH
share. 18,287,500 /% ¥ %

(b) Before the Company placed and issued new shares on 18 (b) EARR A R2016F6 A 18H it 3 &

June 2015, the warrants entitle the holders to subscribe
for new ordinary share at an initial subscription price of
HK$5.00 per ordinary share in cash, subject to normal capital
adjustments. Upon the placement of new shares as per note
(a) above, the subscription price to new shares was adjusted
to HK$4.95 per ordinary share as a result of the completion of
the placing.

During the current year, 15,763,780 warrants outstanding
as at 31 December 2015 were all exercised at an adjusted
subscription price of HK$4.95 per ordinary share before
their expiry date of 4 March 2016 (2015: 2,686,968 warrants
were exercised at an initial subscription price of HK$5.00 per
ordinary share and 2,488,219 warrants were exercised at an
adjusted subscription price of HK$4.95 per ordinary share). The
listing of the warrants have been withdrawn from The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 4 March 2016.
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BB REESREBERS.008 T
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RIBEGR L HERL BB TEITE
(20154 : 2,686,96817 R A% 4 & 1%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

28. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND  28.

OBJECTIVES

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to owners of
the Group through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances. The Group's overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes bank and other borrowings, convertible
bonds and bonds, disclosed in notes 24 and 25, net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the Directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through new share issues and share buy-backs as well
as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing

EXEREERREAE

ARG EAARIREEATE
LS EE 2T - R EBE
L A A R B A AT
e BB AL ARE B
T o

NEEZEAREERFEBEN B
FEMEE ATBBREESRESR (R
MizEoaR252 #5) - EMHRIEE K&
BEEEWARANA RS AFE(GHE
m (BIEBBEITRARGEE)

EXTHBRMENGERE (FR%EMN
Hb—3R EFEEZEENKARER
BETHERR REESNHEBRZ
& NEERE BT RROE
BULRETHEENBERRAERS
ERETERERTE-

debt.
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29. £®TIA
(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (A) ST EZER
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FABIT
Financial assets EWMEE
Loans and receivables EFRENFIE
Trade receivables =7 & QE] 4,631 4,002
Other receivables and deposits E /b fE R TE K 17 & 980,164 926,273
Pledged bank deposits BEHEMIBITER 3,589 -
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIES 1,042,268 242,263
2,030,652 1,172,538
Available-for-sale financial A ETRHEE
assets - 137,269
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29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 29 SWMEE-&
(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (A) EMIBE2EB-E
— continued
2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Financial liabilities SRAaE
Financial liabilities 23 397 T/ e
at amortised cost THEE
Trade payables =Y ANE/ e 326,350 386,017
Other payables and accruals  H b fE <t TAIE&?ETE FRIE 81,492 59,077
Amounts due to related & BB Bt 2 B 2 5]
companies 199,129 900,579
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 3,986,811 2,102,819
Convertible bonds and bonds AI#RES M ES 1,932,313 1,485,098
6,526,095 4,933,590
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) BEEREE B EREEK

AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments
include trade receivables, other receivables
and deposits, available-for-sale financial assets,
amounts due to related companies, bank
balances and cash, pledged bank deposits,
trade payables, other payables and accruals,
bank and other borrowings and convertible
bonds and bonds. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with the Group's financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

AEENTESHMTABE
B ZRYGKRIE - it YR
Kige AHhES MAE -
FEAS AR A BIRROR ~ SRITAEER
EFg BERRTER &
S FEN IR - A IR &
AR  RITREMEER
ABkEFRES  HEDR
TRAZHBIHINEMER
W ASE TR T AR
ZRBReETmSAR (%
R ~ ﬂfﬂ o A (ER

@) EERRLRBER -
/JEHE_EEZ@—W?ZEZ RENT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao B RM

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

29.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES - continued

Market risk

(B)

(i)

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that
the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. With the majority of the
Group's businesses transacted in RMB
and HK$, the aforesaid currencies are
determined as the functional currencies
of the Company and some subsidiaries
respectively.

The Company and its subsidiaries have
foreign currency: bank deposits, amounts
due from subsidiaries, amounts due to
related parties/subsidiaries, prepayments
and other receivables, other payables
and bonds, which expose them to foreign
currency risk.

The net carrying amounts of the Group's

29.

TREE-&

(B)

MEEEERERFERBE

e

— 8

™ 5 &k

(i) EBEEERE
HNERRIES BT A
AEXR DS EE
R E Z B o R AR
SRR EBR
SANRE KT
7 E g R
WARAER/ARRIRE
FHEAR S
ﬁé}o

ARBREMB AR
BENUTIMNMEIRR -
RITIF 5K FE UL R
X A RIE -~ FE AN R R
AL /B A RR
TR FAA BRIR R H Al
& W 3R IR~ Bl A
KA MBS BWAE
HONERR -

AN S S SN LD

and inter-company foreign currency EHIRAINE ST E 2
denominated monetary assets (liabilities) TREE (BE)ZK
at the end of the reporting period are as HFEDT:
follows:
2016 2015
20164 201654
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
United Stated Dollars X
("US$") (I%xl) 103,458 (40,431)
RMB AR 211,736 228,531
HK$ BT (658,100) (332,455)

In addition, amounts due from certain
subsidiaries that are considered as part
of the Group's net investment in foreign
operations and are denominated in
HK$, at the end of the reporting period
amounted to HK$388,511,000 (2015:
HK$388,956,000).

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X /¥ Bl ZA AR A 7]

AN - R RS HR R
WRABEREERNE
INETGFIRE 7 — 8B
S LA TTEHE 2
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(20154 : 388,956,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

29 SWMEE-&

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES - continued

Market risk — continued

(B)

(i)

Currency risk — continued

The Group manages the foreign currency
risk by closely monitoring the movements
of the foreign currency rate.

Since HK$ are pegged to US$, there
is no significant exposure expected
on US$ transactions and balances for
certain subsidiaries of the Company with
functional currency of HK$ whilst the
currency peg remains in place.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to RMB
and HK$. The following table details
the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2015:
5%) increase and decrease in certain
functional currencies against the relevant
foreign currencies. 5% (2015: 5%) is
the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents
management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rate. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items,
and adjusts their translation at the end of
the reporting period for a 5% (2015: 5%)
change in foreign currency rate. A positive
number below indicates an increase
in profit for the year where functional
currencies strengthen 5% (2015: 5%)
against the relevant foreign currencies.
For a 5% (2015: 5%) weakening of
functional currencies against the relevant
foreign currencies, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit
for the year.

(B)

MERREERZEREER

™5 E by — &

(i)

B —E
AEBFE BT ER
GNEEFE R 7 B E) - B
IR NEE [ s

M 78 Tt 8 3E T B
W REAREEH
WRRA LR A
HIRNABETAAET
TERINEEE M 2 B
RAZETR 5 M
RPN

BURRE DT

AEBETEMHAR
MEBTRER TX
SR AREBRE T
BE e HARREINE 2
5% (2015%F : 5% ) F+
BERFEZHERE-
5% (2015%F : 5% ) &
MEEEIEAB NI
R NS R B BT R 8
RELLE WREE
BEHERSIEN A
BE) o BRRE
DATIEBIEAINE 5T
BzRBEEEKIR
B IR E R
MEZX25% (2015
F: 5% )EBHEE
BME ST T XE
ZIEEIEREEE S
8 I FHEB% (2015
F:5% )BT F
3% F 2 380 o fiw I
BEE W AR
B2 5% (20154 :
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 29 eWMEE-E&
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) HEEREEHEREE
AND POLICIES - continued — &
Market risk — continued ™G AR - &
(i) Currency risk - continued (i) EEmEE-—E&
Sensitivity analysis — continued BRE DT — &

Decrease in other

Increase (decrease) in profit comprehensive income
aAEm L) Htrmalwmmd
2016 2015 2016 2015
20165 2015% 20164 2015%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAET TET FET
Uss$ e (4,064) - - -
RMB AR (8,840) (9,541) - -
HKS BT 27476 13,880 (16,220) (16,239)
14,572 4,339 (16,220) (16,239)
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity EREERR BRTE
analysis is unrepresentative of the % B H) R B e
inherent foreign exchange risk as the S A E o € i
year end exposure does not reflect the EomTiEREES
exposure during the year. SN [ g o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES - continued

Market risk — continued

(B)

(i)

Fair value and cash flow interest rate
risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation
of the prevailing market interest rate on
bank deposit and bank borrowings (2015:
bank deposits) carried at prevailing market
interest rates based on or by reference
to the interest rates promulgated by the
People's Bank of China. Fixed rate debt
securities, bank and other borrowings
and convertible bonds and bonds expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
During the year, the Group does not
hedge its fair value and cash flow interest
rate risk. Interest rate risk is managed
by the management on an ongoing basis
with the primary objective of limiting the
extent to which net interest expense
could be affected by adverse movements
in interest rates.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk
is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of the interest rate of variable-rate bank
deposits and bank and other borrowings
(2015: bank deposits). The sensitivity
analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates
for bank deposits and bank and other
borrowings (2015: bank deposits) at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis
is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis points (2015: 50
basis points) increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment
of the effect from possible change in
interest rates.

29 TREE-E&
BREREEEERRE

(B)
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™5 E by — &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES - continued

Market risk — continued

(ii) Fair value and cash flow interest rate
risk — continued

If the interest rates had been 50 basis
points (2015: 50 basis points) higher or
lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's profit for the year
would increase/decrease by HK$65,000
(2015: increase/decrease in profit for the
year by HK$1,211,000) after taking into
account the interest capitalisation effect.

Credit risk

At 31 December 2016, the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties
is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual trade and other receivables and
available-for-sale investments at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider
that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because

counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

29 SWMEE-&

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES - continued

Credit risk — continued

For debt securities, the Group manages the
credit risk exposure by using its internal rating
system, and also taking external ratings into
account. Investments in debt securities are
viewed as a way to gain a better credit quality
mapping and, at the same time, to maintain
a readily available source of funding to meet
funding requirements. The Group manages
this credit risk by only dealing with reputable
financial institutions.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in
respect of deposits pledged to an independent
party with carrying amount of HK$963,656,000
(2015: HK$909,525,000). Details of the pledged
deposits is set out in note 20.

In order to minimize the credit risk on deposits
pledged to an independent party, the Group's
management continuously monitors the credit
quality and financial conditions of the debtor and
the level of aforesaid pledged deposits to ensure
that follow-up action is taken timely to recover
overdue amounts, such as certain agreements
entered into by the Group effecting the net-
off of the pledged deposits with certain loans
as mentioned in note 20. In this regard, the
Group's management considers that the Group's
credit risk in respect of the above is significantly
reduced.

Other than concentration of credit risk as
mentioned above, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk
with exposure spread over a number of counter
parties and customers.

(B)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

29.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES - continued

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of borrowings.

Liquidity risk analysis

The following table details the Group's
contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. In addition, the following table details
the Group's liquidity analysis for its derivative
financial instruments.

The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rates, the undiscounted amount is
derived from the interest rate at the end of the
reporting period.
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29.

(B)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

. =t > =
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 29 SRIEE-&
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) HEEMEEEERBK
AND POLICIES - continued - &
Liquidity risk - continued B E B — &
Liquidity risk analysis — continued JEB) R SR 7T — B
On demand Carrying
Weighted or 3 months 1 year 2 years Total amount at
average less than to to to undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 3 months 1 year 2 years 5years  cash flows 2016
R2016F
mE REREES =A% -2 WEE  AFRRE 12A318
THHNE  SRZEA - mE fik:3 REAR ZEHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TER TET TET TET TET TET
Non-derivative financial liabilities 174 £ H& &
Trade payables BAEMATE N/A RER 326,350 - - - 326,350 326,350
Other payables and accruals HtEAFERERTE  NARER 81,492 - - - 81,492 81,492
Amounts due to related ERBBARKE
companies N/A RER 199,129 - - - 199,129 199,129
Convertible bonds and bonds TaRESRES 8.7-12.8% S 63,355 63,355 2,485,080 2,611,790 1,932,313
Bank and other borrowings BIREBEE 1.11-9.64% 67,554 1,373,584 1,808,371 1,188,032 4,437541 3,986,811
674,525 1,436,939 1,871,126 3,673,112 7,656,302 6,526,095
On demand Carrying
Weighted or 3 months 1 year 2 years Total amount at
average less than to to to  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows 2015
R2016%
g REREES =fifz S MEE  ANRRS 128318
THHE  SR=EA 3 meE ki3 ik £t pa: Jiif
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% T TAL TEL TEL TET TEL
Non-derivative financial liabilities 374 & RAE
Trade payables BREATE NA T E 386,017 - - - 386,017 386,017
Other payables and accruals EHEAFERERFE  NATER 59,077 - - - 59,077 59,077
Amounts due to related companies [EfT %72 ) 2 B N/A T8 900,579 - - - 900,579 900,579
Convertible bonds and bonds aRkESRES 8.79.6% - 25,506 325579 1790446 2,141,531 1,485,098
Other borrowings EiEE 1.1113.11% 38,793 2,203,170 - - 2,241,963 2,102,819
1,384,466 2,228,676 325,579 1,790,446 5,729,167 4,933,590
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 29.

(C)  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

Some of the Group's financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of the
consolidated financial assets are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs

TREE-&

(C)

ERMITAZANEENE

FEMUEEHEEREDR
BEFEZERMEEZAR
BEE

AEBETEREENER
SRR ASEEFE TR
I BARMAETE AR
BEAABEMEN (REAR
IR IPACTIERSTITPSE TN
&) e

used).
Fair value as at Valuation
AREE Fair value  technique(s)
Financial assets SREE 2016 2015 hierarchy  and key input(s)
RERHNR
20165 2015 AAEEER TEGARE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Available-for-sale HEERE - 137269 Level 2 Discounted cash flow
investments- - B RABES using the rate
corporate wealth BHoLERN that reflects the
management products Em expected yield and
with underlying of debt the credit risk of
securities the counterparties
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(C)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

TRMEE-&

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at
fair value on a recurring basis

Except as detailed in the following table, the
Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

Carrying amounts

29.

(C)

REE

TRMIAZAREEE
—fE
AEBEUFKLEHEERD
REEFEZEREERS
MmEEZAREE
BRTRAAFMEI EFRR
P& OF BE 75 3R 3R R SR B R
IRz eREENTRAE
ZEREEREAABEES -

Fair values
AAEE
2015 2016 2015
2015%F 20165 201545

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TR TAL

2016
20165
HK$'000
TER
Financial liabilities TRER
Non-current FERE
Liability component of the ~ Al &2 & &5
Convertible Bonds |l 1,202,413

1,180,985 1,284,090 1,179,815

The fair value of liability component of the
Convertible Bonds Il with fair value hierarchy of
level 3, are determined based on the valuation
performed by DTZ Cushman & Wakefield Limited
using discounted cash flow approach and
applying prime rate as adjusted to reflect the
credit risk of the issuer as key inputs.

NABEERRE=ENA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

30.

31.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, deposits of RMB862,000,000
(equivalent to HK$963,656,000) (2015: deposits of
HK$909,525,000) and bank deposit of HK$3,589,000
(2015: nil) were pledged to secure the loans granted to
the Group.

As at 31 December 2016, properties under
development for sale with carrying amount of
approximately RMB1,326,094,000, which is equivalent
to HK$1,482,481,000 and investment properties with
carrying amount of approximately RMB4,301,646,000,
which is equivalent to HK$4,808,942,000 were pledged
to certain bank and other financial institutions to secure
borrowings obtained from the aforesaid bank and other
financial institutions, details of which are set out in
note 24.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s and the non-
controlling shareholder’'s equity interests in Beijing
SkyOcean, properties under development for sale with
carrying amount of approximately RMB596,592,000,
which is equivalent to HK$712,111,000 and
investment properties with carrying amount of
approximately RMB2,636,503,000, which is equivalent
to HK$3,147,011,000 were pledged to a trust fund
company to secure a loan obtained from this trust fund
company. The aforesaid loan was early repaid in full by
the Group during the current year (note 24).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CORPORATE
GUARANTEES

As set out in prior year's consolidated financial
statements of the Group, the Group disposed of the
entire interest of the Quality HealthCare Limited,
Quality HealthCare Medical Holdings Limited,
Quality HealthCare Medical Services Limited, Quality
HealthCare Services Limited and Portex Limited
("Disposal Group”) in 2010. The Group has signed a tax
deed to indemnify the purchaser for tax liabilities of the
Disposal Group prior to the completion of the disposal
which has not been provided for in the closing account
of the Disposal Group as at 30 November 2010. The
valid period for claims under the tax deed shall be 7
years from completion. The Group currently considers it
is not likely that any liabilities will arise therefrom.
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32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
AS LESSEE
Continuing operations

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had
outstanding commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of rented premises which
fall due as follows:

32.

KREHEAE

ERAMEA

BEEEER

&SRS HAR - AR5 EAR RN AT HEH
KERAREEE S 2 BIERER
EER

2016 2015

201645 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

(Re-presented)

(LZEF)

Within one year —F K 4,780 2,054
In the second to fifth year, inclusive &£ - ZF R F

(BHEEEMSF) 717 43

5,497 2,097

Leases are negotiated for a term of one years to five
years (2015: three months to five years) and rentals are
fixed over the respective leases.

AS LESSOR
Continuing operations

The investment properties held by the Group for rental
purpose have committed tenants for one to seven
years of which majority are with fixed rental.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases:

MEFHHE —FERF (20155
=EAERF) MERHREZAEY

EREHEA

FEKERE
AEERAIFHERGZRENELZ
HPAGERR—ZL%F  HPKE
NHEHeRBEEHES -

RIS EIR - NEEIRIET AT AEHAL
EHOHBELE 2 ARKERE R
SER(INE

2016 2015

20164 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

(Re-presented)

(FEE))

Within one year —F R 11,030 4,189
In the second to fifth year, inclusive 5 — &% A 4F

(BRERERME) 23,465 20,992

After five years hFE 37,207 3,577

71,702 28,758
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

33. COMMITMENTS 33. &
2016 2015
2016F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FRETT
Development expenditure in THIBEZERAY
respect of:
Properties under development BRIPSEYME
for sale 923,491 452,567
Investment properties REYE 718,389 642,519
1,641,880 1,095,086
34. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 3 BEBALZESE

Apart from the related party transactions disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,
the Group had the following significant related party
transactions during the year.

(A) PROMOTION SERVICES PROVIDED TO A
RELATED COMPANY

The Group entered into a promotion services
agreement with Beijing SkyOcean Holdings
on 30 June 2015 (the “Promotion Services
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group
will provide Beijing SkyOcean Holdings and its
subsidiaries with marketing strategic advisory
and brand promotion services (“Promotion
Services”) in relation to the promotion of the
trade name of “Beijing SkyOcean” in the PRC,
including marketing analysis, formulating of
marketing strategies, design, and promotion
activities, including publication of journals in
various magazines and providing strategic
advisory services. Further details of the
aforesaid Promotion Services are set out in
the circular of the Company announced on 13
August 2015. The transactions contemplated
under the Promotion Services Agreement were
approved by the shareholders of the Company
at the special general meeting conducted on 31
August 2015. The Group has not yet provided
any of the Promotion Services to Beijing
SkyOcean Holdings and its subsidiaries. On 18
March 2016, the Group and Beijing SkyOcean
Holdings entered into a termination agreement
to terminate and cancel the Promotion Services
Agreement with immediate effect as the Group
intends to concentrate and allocate its resources
to the existing business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

34. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES — continued

(B)

(C)

(D)

During the current year, the Group disposed
of its entire equity interest in a subsidiary,
SkyOcean Culture ZhuoZhou Investment Co.,
Ltd. (“SkyOcean ZhuoZhou"”) to Dreameast
Cultural Investment Co., Ltd., a company held as
to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng, for a consideration
of RMB10,000 (equivalent to HK$11,000), details
of the disposal are set out in note 37

During the year of 2015, the Group disposed
of its entire equity interest in a subsidiary,
Dreameast Future World (Sanhe) Entertainment
Co., Ltd (“"Dreameast Sanhe”), to Dreameast
Cultural Investment Co., Ltd, a company held as
to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng, for a consideration
of RMB2,048,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,549,000).

During the year of 2015, the finance costs on the
loan from a related company are RMB6,170,000,
which are equivalent to HK$7682,000, such
loan was repaid in full during the year ended 31
December 2015.

During the current year, the Group acquired
certain assets through the acquisition of
100% equity interest in Sophie USA Holdings
Limited (BVI) (“Sophie USA") and Jiangsu
Dreameast Cultural Investment Co., Ltd.
("Jiangsu Dreameast”) for considerations of
HK$1 and HK$2,270,000 respectively from
Sophie Holdings Limited and Dreameast Cultural
Entertainment Group Limited, companies held
as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng, details of the
transaction are set out in note 36.

During the year of 2015, the Group acquired
certain assets through the acquisition of 100%
equity interest in Beijing SkyOcean Investment
Management Co., Ltd (“Beijing SkyOcean
Investment”) for a consideration of RMB873,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,087,000) from
SkyOcean Holdings Group Co., Ltd., a company
held as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng.

3. BEBMALIZBE-&

(B)

(C)

(D)

RAFERN AEEDEER
—EHB AR R FARIMNEE
BRAR([KEFEMD 22
HRETERAFEESR
AR (—EBREAREERE
80%Em 2 AR REAA
R #10,0007T (AHE 711,000
7o) WER S 2 FEEHNWE
37

20165  NEE N EHR—
BLEENEEE P St
(Z)REFRAF ([EF
F =) 2 2 ERRRE T A
S EEB0% R 2 AN FE
R BEBRAR RE
A AR 2,048,0007T (18E
492,549,000/ 7T ) °

M2015%F - R B —H @A
RIZERZHBEERAEA
R #6,170,0007C (HHE R
7682,000/%7T) ' ZERE R
HZE2016F 128318 IEFE
EHEE-

NAFEE AEEEBD
LARE BT 12,270,000 7T
B Sophie Holdings Limited &
BRIVCREERFRA
7 (B AHABRTEFES0%
%k 2 A 7)) Y Sophie USA
Holdings Limited (2 &8 g &
Bt5) ([Sophie USA ) KT
BMER LR EFR QA
(DIBRE R ) 2100%&H#
WHEETEE ZERPHIHF
TEERFHI7E36 -

20155 - REEF R
B AR ¥873,0007T (H%E
491,087,000/ 7T ) B K ¥
TREBMARAR (—MH
BB EHEBSO% M 2
7)) Y B Beijing SkyOcean
Investment Management
Co., Ltd ([Beijing SkyOcean
Investment J ) 2100 % 54 1
BETEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao B RM

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

34.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES - continued

The above transactions also constituted connected
transactions as defined in the chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

(E}  OUTSTANDING BALANCES WITH RELATED
PARTIES

(i)

(ii)

At 31 December 2016, amounts due to
related companies of HK$199,129,000
(2015: HK$900,579,000) were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.
Mr. Zhou Zheng has controlling interest in
these related companies.

According to the circular announced
by the Company on 18 May 2015, the
Group proceeded debt restructuring,
which had the effect of exchanging an
amount due to SkyOcean Real Estate
(Qian'an) Co., Ltd of RMB1,500,000,000
by the Convertible Bonds Il issued by
the Company to SkyOcean Investment
Holdings Limited, the immediate holding
company of the Company which is
beneficially owned as to 80% by Mr.
Zhou Zheng. The above debt restructuring
was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting
conducted on 12 June 2015.

The terms and conditions of the
Convertible Bonds Il were finalised and
approved on 24 November 2015, and
on 24 December 2015, the Company
issued the Convertible Bonds Il to
SkyOcean Investment Holdings Limited.
The financial impacts of the debt
restructuring, the finance cost incurred
during the current year and carrying
amounts of the liability component of the
Convertible Bonds Il as at 31 December
2016 are set out in note 25.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

34. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES — continued

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL OF THE GROUP

Key management personnel of the Group
representing the Directors, who have authority
and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group, directly
or indirectly. Compensation to key management
personnel represents Directors’ emoluments
and is disclosed in note 13.

(F)

(G)

GUARANTEES PROVIDE BY RELATED PARTIES

(i)

As at 31 December 2016, Mr. Zhou Zheng
and certain related parties provided joint
personal guarantee for the borrowings
granted by certain bank and other
financial institutions to the Group with a
total amount of RMB840,000,000, which
is equivalent to HK$939,062,000, details
of which are set out in note 24.

As at 31 December 2015, the Company,
Mr. Zhou Zheng and certain related
parties beneficially owned by Mr.
Zhou Zheng provided joint guarantee
for the trust loan granted by a trust
fund company to the Group with total
amount of RMB1,000,000,000, which
is equivalent to HK$1,168,907,000, the
aforesaid loan was fully repaid during the
current year.

SkyOcean Holdings Group Co., Ltd., a
company beneficially owned as to 80%
by Mr. Zhou Zheng provided corporate
guarantee for the other borrowing
granted by a Changjiang Trust and
Huarong Asset to the Group amounting to
RMB900,000,000 and RMB500,000,000,
which are equivalent to HK$1,052,016,000
and HK$584,454,000 details of which are
set out in note 24(b)(i).

3. BEBMALIzZEE-&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao B RM

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

34. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES - continued

(G) GUARANTEES PROVIDE BY RELATED PARTIES
— continued

(iii)

(iv)

Beijing SkyOcean Holdings, a company
beneficially owned as to 80% by Mr.
Zhou Zheng provided corporate guarantee
for the other borrowing granted by a
Bohai Trust to the Group amounting to
RMB396,000,000, which is equivalent to
HK$462,882,000, details of which are set
out in note 24(b)(i).

Mr. Zhou Zheng and certain related party,
provided joint personal guarantee and
Beijing SkyOcean Holdings, a company
beneficially owned as to 80% by Mr. Zhou
Zheng, provided corporate guarantee in
favor of the holders of the Convertible
Bonds |, the Bonds | and the Bonds
Il (note 25). Furthermore, Convertible
Bonds I, the Bonds | and the Bonds Il
are also secured by share charge over
certain number of ordinary shares of the
Company held by SkyOcean Investment
Holdings Limited, the immediate holding
company of the Company, details of
which are set out in paragraph headed
“Mandatory Early Redemption for
Convertible Bonds |, the Bonds | and
the Bonds II” in note 25(i). In addition,
SkyOcean Investment Holdings Limited,
being the holder of Convertible Bonds I,
charged over certain part of Convertible
bonds Il in favour of the holder of Bonds Il
(note 25(i)).
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all employees in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control
of an independent trustee. Under the rule of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme
at 5% (2015: 5%) of the employee’s basic salary
with the maximum contribution of HK$1,500 per
month (2015: HK$1,500 per month).The obligation of
the Group with respect of MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions under the MPF Scheme.
No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contributions payable in future years. The Group's
contributions to the MPF Scheme of HK$1,936,000
(2015: HK$1,516,000) are charged to profit or loss.

The employees of the Company’'s PRC subsidiaries are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government. The
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their employees’ payroll to
the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme which are calculated
based on 20% (2015: 20%) of the employee’s basic
salaries during the year. The Group's contributions to
the PRC retirement benefits scheme of HK$1,814,000
(2015: HK$971,000) are charged to profit or loss.

35.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

36.

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the current year, the Group acquired certain
assets through the acquisition of 100% equity
interest in Jiangsu Dreameast and Sophie USA
for considerations of RMB2,029,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,270,000) and HK$1 from
Dreameast Cultural Entertainment Group Limited and
Sophie Holdings Limited respectively, companies held
as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng. As Jiangsu Dreameast
and Sophie USA do not constitute its business, the
acquisition of the equity interests by the Group is
considered as acquisition of assets and liabilities. The
excess of consideration payable over the assets and
liabilities amounted of HK$4,010,000 were recognised
in other reserve. The net cash inflows arising from the
acquisition is HK$172,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
acquired certain assets through the acquisition of
100% equity interest in Beijing SkyOcean Investment
for a consideration of RMB873,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,087000) from SkyOcean Holdings
Group Co., Ltd., a company held as to 80% by Mr.
Zhou Zheng. As Beijing SkyOcean Investment had
not yet commenced its business, the acquisition of
the equity interest in Beijing SkyOcean Investment by
the Group was considered as an acquisition of assets
and liabilities. The net cash inflows arising from the
acquisition was HK$3,667,000.
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37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 37.

During the current year, the Group disposed of its
entire equity interest in its subsidiaries, SkyOcean
ZhuoZhou and Cautious Base, to Dreameast Cultural
Investment Co., Ltd., a company held as to 80% by
Mr. Zhou Zheng and Purchaser (as defined in note
12), for cash considerations of RMB10,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$11,000) and HK$20,000,000
respectively.

The net assets of these subsidiaries at the date of
disposal were as follows:

HEKE QA

RARFE  AEESFILRESREA
R#10,0007T (1HE PA%I11,000/4 7T )
120,000,000/ 72 BllA £ 8 75 3X1E
KEBRAR (—HHEARLEEHES
80%Em L ARNME T (FE MW
112) HEERMB A RIRFEM &
Cautious BaseZ & BRI AN 25 -

ZEMBRRNLE BN EEFE
LIS

SkyOcean
ZhuoZhou Cautious Total
KEFRM Base @t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT

Property, plant and equipment ER e 34 962 996
Bank balances and cash RITERRR S 283 13,869 14,152
Other receivables, deposits and Hih WA 12 RBNFE

prepayments 25 9,062 9,087
Completed properties held for sale and ERIFEMEREMGEE

other inventories - 75 75
Deferred Income ERWA - (1,304) (1,304)
Trade and other payables and accruals &5 & E Al &+ 78 K B IR FUA (4,472) (12,461) (16,933)
Net (liabilities)/assets disposed of HE (B EEZE (4,130) 10,203 6,073
Cash received BEURE - 20,000 20,000
Consideration received [RE A 1 - 1
Net liabilities/(assets) disposed of PEaE/ (BE)FE 4,130 (10,203) (6,073)
Reclassification adjustment - transfer ~ B EFAX

translation reserve to profit or ~REENBARRER

loss upon disposal of subsidiaries BERBEEES - (5,781) (5,781)

4,141 4,016 8,157
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued 37. HEHWEBAT &
SkyOcean
ZhuoZhou Cautious Total
REFHM Base st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FHEL
Gain on disposal: & 2 W
Recognised in current year profit or RAFERRZBR
loss (note 12) (H7E12) - 4,016 4,016
Recognised as deemed contribution BRAREMFEEREEER
in other reserve 4,141 - 4141
4141 4,016 8,157
Net cash (outflows)/inflows arising HEEEZRE GR)/
from disposal: MAERE:
Consideration received in cash BUCEERE - 20,000 20,000
Less: bank balances and cash wOHERTEREES
disposed of (283) (13,869) (14,152)
(283) 6,131 5,848

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
disposed of its entire equity interest in a subsidiary,
Dreameast Sanhe, to Dreameast Cultural Investment
Co., Ltd, a company held as to 80% by Mr. Zhou
Zheng, for a cash consideration of RMB2,048,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,549,000). The
net cash outflows arising from the disposal was
HK$633,000. Details are set out in note 34 (b).

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X /¥ Bl ZA AR A 7]

RELZE20155F12 8318 IEFE - A&
B LR £ (B AR 2,048,0007T (48
B R #92,549,00078 7T ) [A1E2 8 5 X1
WEBRAR (—HARAREEES
80% =2 AR HEERKB AR
BRIz EHRAER HES
THEE 4 /9 IR & 7t 1 3 88 /3633,00078
TC o B EA R34 (o)



38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B BEHRERMETE
For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE
PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 3. FEREBLATIER

Name of subsidiary

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital

Attributable equity interest
held by the Company

Principal activities
and place of operation

BMAL/ ERTRARL
WEAREHR BYtER A S BA/ZMBEA  ARARBEEZEERAES FTEFRCEHE
2016 2015
2016% 2015F
SkyOcean International United Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
(formerly known as Skyocean 19 August 2010 Hong Kong
International Holdings Limited)
KEBIRBEERA A BB BT 100% 100% REZR
(AIBXFERERERAR) 201058 A19A BB
Skyocean Real Estate (Tangshan) PRC US$25,100,000 100% 100% Property development
Co., Ltd.”" (Wholly foreign-owned 12 December 2011 PRC
limited liability company)
REHE (BIL)ERLA HE 25,100,000% 7T 100% 100% MEER
(NEBEERAEARA) 20115128128 T
Tangshan SkyOcean Commercial PRC RMB5,000,000 100% 100% Property management
Management Co., Ltd.” 8 May 2013 PRC
(Limited liability company)
BELRFBEERERLA HE A& %5,000,0007 100% 100% 7EER
(EREERF) 2013F578H T
Skyleaf Holdings Limited" BVI US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
8 August 2013 Hong Kong
R R 2 A EBRAHS (o 100% 100% REER
201358 A8H B
Beijing SkyOcean™ PRC RMB249,000,000 96.02% 90% Property development
(Limited liability company) 6 March 2014 PRC
IRRFEEREFRAA HE AEE 96.02% 90% MEER
(EREARA) 2014%3A6H 249,000,0007 i
Beijing SkyOcean Investment™ PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
(Limited liability company) 18 March 2014 PRC
ERRFBEREEBERAHA HE AE%10,000,0007C 100% 100% REZR
(EREARA) 2014%3A18R HE
Kings Channel Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
29 January 2014 Hong Kong
SEREBRAR BE 1T 100% 100% #&%R
201451A29A Bk
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38.

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X /¥ Bl ZA AR A 7]

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

— continued

Name of subsidiary

Place and date

of incorporation/

establishment

Issued and fully

paid share capital/

registered capital

38.

Attributable equity interest
held by the Company

TEMNBATIER-&

Principal activities
and place of operation

gRAEL/ ERTRBEZ
WEARAR gk 9 4=k BER/EMRA  ALAMBE2EERAES FTEERCEHY
2016 2015
2016 20154
Dreameast (Sanhe)” PRC US$1,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
(Wholly foreign-owned 29 January 2015 PRC
limited liability company)
BRA (ZA)REERAT HE 1,000,000% 7T 100% 100% REER
(HEBEBRELRAR) 2015%1729A RE
Beijing Skyocean Technology Ltd"™ PRC RMB1,086,957 92% 92% Property management
(Limited liability company) 25 May 2015 PRC
ERRFEEMBBERAA HE AR ¥1,086,9577C 92% 92% MEERE
(BREFAR) 2015957258 HE
17422 Derian Irvine LLC U.SA. US$25,000,000 90% - Property development
19 April 2016 U.SA
17422 Derian Irvine LLC £ 35 25,000,000% 7T 90% - MEER
2016F4F 19A %E
Issued capital held directly by the Company * BETRABARREERFE

English name for identification only

The above table listed the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the operating results of the Group for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

Note:  None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

* X EHEHRSE

A ERBHINESARIEZEAE
BAFEREXEIBRASEEE
FEXTEAD 2ARRMERR -E
ERR RHEMHBARZFHEE

BRI

Mist: RELEBEENBARDETEMR

A E S



38.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38.

— continued
COMPOSITION OF THE GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

TEMNBATEN-&

REEZAK

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

Number of wholly-

Principal activity operation owned subsidiaries
FTEEK ML R R AR b B 2EMBARHE
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Investment holding Hong Kong 12 12
REER BB
Investment holding BVI 1 1
REERK EERXES
Investment holding PRC 1 1
REEK H
Property development and management PRC 6 5
MEBRRER a2
Property development and management U.S.A. 1 0
MEHRNER XEH
Promotion service PRC 1 1
He B RS H
Investment in financial instruments Hong Kong 5 5
SRTHEKE B
Provision of elderly care services Hong Kong 0 4
REEZ R B
Medical equipment distribution Hong Kong 0 2
Provision of corporate services Hong Kong 1 1
R ER i
Inactive BVI 3 3
TmeEx HERTHES
Inactive U.S.A. 2 0
gmaex XHE
Inactive Hong Kong 4 4
Emex B
Inactive Australia 1 1
Emex M
Inactive PRC 1 1
gmeE H
39 41

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

Number of wholly-

Principal activity operation owned subsidiaries
FTEEK EMARL BRI R AR b B 2EMBEARHE
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Property development and management PRC 3 3
MEERNER 1
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
— continued

DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY
THAT HAS MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

The table below shows details of the non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group that has material non-
controlling interest:

Proportion of ownership
interests and voting rights
held by non-controlling

Place of establishment
and principal place

38.

Profit/(loss) allocated to
non-controlling interest

TENMBLAERN &

ARERFEHMERE S
EMfE AR ZEHR
TRIRAEBEEAE AL
B2 IFEEMBRRIZER:

Accumulated
non-controlling interest

Name of subsidiary of business interest at 31 December at 31 December at 31 December
M2A3BFEHEER M2ANBAET M2A318
WEAREE RUBBRIBEEBE FERAERERATELD FEHER2EA/ (B8) it EmMER
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
20165 20155 2016% 20155 2016 20155
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THEL TET TiET
Beijing SkyOcean PRC 3.98% 10% 11,260 67051 43,286 65,633
ERKE H
Others (1,449) (7) 19,199 3,429
Efh
9,811 67,044 62,485 69,062

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's subsidiary that has material non-controlling
interest is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before

TXEDIAEE A EARIEHI R
@ MERR B ERBE - Tt
MBERBER) 2 SR REEAR
AEYHAIC &8

intragroup eliminations.

Beijing SkyOcean ERERRF
2016 2015
2016 20164
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FBIT
Current assets mE)E E 1,597,171 872,373
Non-current assets JERENEE 4,254,126 3,752,277
Current liabilities e B & 2,121,728 2,715,325
Non-current liabilities EmEBEE 2,641,972 1,252,999

Equity attributable to owners RRNFIER AELER

of the Company 1,044,311 590,693
Non-controlling interest JEPE IR =S 43,286 65,633

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X ¥ BIE 2% A IR A 7]
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38.

— continued

DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY
THAT HAS MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

— continued
Beijing SkyOcean - continued

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

TEMNBATEN-&

EREARFEHMERZER
EMBLARZER-&

ERXF-H&

2016 2015
20165 2015%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiE T T
Revenue LON - -
Gain on fair value change of REYWEARBEES 2
investment properties & 502,497 994,615
Expenses 2 (220,537) (324,104)
Profit for the year F 705 F) 281,960 670,511
Profit attributable to owners of the KR BHEE AEERET
Company 270,700 603,460
Profit attributable to the FE 1% 1) 1 2 PR G s A
non-controlling interest 11,260 67,051
Profit for the year F 705 F) 281,960 670,511
Dividends paid to non-controlling [RENEEEE R - myvd
interest - —
Net cash outflow from operating K EE) IR M FEE
activities (635,249) (973,204)
Net cash outflow from investing WEFEE RS KL FE
activities (1,692) (435)
Net cash inflow from financing BLEEE LIRS AT
activities 940,313 976,655
Net cash inflow e m A ERE 303,372 3,016
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39.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 39.

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

KT F BN TR E

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FABIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BE M&E 304 451
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR Z&E 2,472,565 2,469,650
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEWLHY BB A R IR 1,469,134 1,159,602
3,942,003 3,629,703
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and H bW EIE ke Kk
prepayments TETFRIB 3,284 1,138
Bank balances and cash WITHBRIES 137,023 148,122
140,307 149,260
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables and accruals H b JE T 5B R TE IR FRIE 74 3,169
Amounts due to subsidiaries FET B B A R IR 744 390
Amounts due to related companies  JE{TBAEE A 51 ZKIE 7,400 -
8,218 3,559
Net current assets REBEEFE 132,089 145,701
Total assets less current liabilities #ZEERABHAG 4,074,092 3,775,404
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Convertible bonds and bonds AR ES RESH 1,932,313 1,485,098
1,932,313 1,485,098
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,141,779 2,290,306
Equity E
Share capital fi& 7% 26,222 24,646
Reserves Rl 2,115,557 2,265,660
TOTAL EQUITY EResm 2,141,779 2,290,306

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X /¥ Bl ZA AR A 7]
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40.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R M

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H IEFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 39. ARQTBHBERRERERE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY - continued — i
MOVEMENT IN THE COMPANY'S RESERVES AT HERE
Convertible
bonds Exchange
Share Share Other equity translation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
TRRES B
B& BHEE HitfE BEREE e REER @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T THET T T T FiET
At1 January 2015 Ro015E1 418 22299 99,232 - - - 1464959 1,586,490
Profit and total comprehensive income FREF R A NERHE
for the year - - - - - 34,029 34,029
Deemed distribution to the owner ~ BRRARAREEASE
of the Company - - (682,298) - - - (682,298)
Recognition of equity component BRTARESERDS
of convertible bonds - - - 1,327718 - - 1,327718
Exercise of warrants A RRER 518 25,234 - - - - 25,752
Issue of new shares BOER 1,829 138,071 - - - - 139,900
Transaction costs attributable to issue  E1TH Bz X &R
of shares - (2,953) - - - - (2,953)
Exchange difference on translation ~ HBEELZEAEE - - - - (138,332) - (138,332)
At 31 December 2015 20154128318 24,646 259,584 (682,298) 1327718 (138,332) 1,498,988 2,290,306
Loss and total comprehensive expense FREERGARREHE
for the year - - - - - (63,113) (63,113)
Exercise of warrants (note 27) T RRER (Fit27) 1,576 76,455 - - - - 78,031
Exchange difference on translation ~ REELZEREH - - - - (163,445) - (163,445)
At 31 December 2016 0165128318 2620 36039 (682,098 1327718 (B01777) 1435875 2,141,779
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 0. FE}IBRERS

A debt restructuring arrangement was proceeded
during the year of 2015 which had the effect of
replacing an amount due to SkyOcean Real Estate
(Qian'an) Co., Ltd., a company beneficially owned as
to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng, of RMB1,500,000,000 by
the Convertible Bonds Il issued by the Company to
SkyOcean Investment Holdings Limited, the immediate
holding company of the Company which is beneficially
owned as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng. Further details of
which are set out in note 34(e)(ii).

NEEPR2016F # B TEHEM
THE AL REEUARRR MEERE
IR A RIRFIREER AR AR (A
AR EE R HEAS0NES) T2
AR ESIRE AR FIE (8
Z)ERAR (—HAARTEERE
BABOWIEZSHAR]) K E AR
1,500,000,0007CHY R © B Z 5F 1B S,
B EE34(e) i) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 A31H ILFE

a.

42.

EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

(i)

In March 2017, part of loans from a financial
institution (note 24 (b)(ii)) with carrying
amount of RMB99,212,000 (equivalent to
HK$110,914,000) were repaid by the Group. The
pledged deposits in relation to the aforesaid part
of loans (note 20) were also released by the
third party and received by the Group in March
2017

In March 2017, the holder of Convertible Bonds
| as defined in note 25 converted part of the
Convertible Bonds | with principal amount of
RMB9,840,000 into 1,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company at the specific conversion
exchange rate and conversion price, details of
which are set out in note 25.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29
March 2017.

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X /¥ Bl ZA AR A 7]

a.

42.

BBRRRBREER

(i) R2017F37  AEBBEEE
SRMEE A ARK99,212,0007T
(#8 8 7110,914,00056 7T) 2
o REEER (H7E24()
(ii)) ° FA20174E3 A » £ 7t ZF

DEREHEZIEEAR

(Mt5E20) IR EE = H R G
R ANEE IR R201743A

LEIEET/eEE

(i) R201743 A » Al R E A1
BA(EERWiE28)mETE
HER REREE ARG
A& A R #9,840,0007T 2 7] #2
% & %185 #2 51,000,0000% 2
NRIERE  BEFBEHNE

5F25 °

# R B R

BHITEMERE HE S HN2017F3

F29 B #HEfE R R AE AT -
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